LAMBERTON CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING e CITY HALL
September 8, 2025 ¢ 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA/CEREMONIAL DUTIES
A. Additions/Deletions to Agenda
CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Minutes (can all be done in one motion)
1. 8-11-2025 — CC Regular Meeting Minutes
2. 12-4-2025 - EDA Meeting Minutes
GENERAL BUSINESS
A. Bollig Engineering — Scott Kuhiman
1. Grove Street

2. Lead Service Line Replacement

@

Matt Novak — Meeting Recommendations
C. Petitions, Request, Communications
1. Citizen Complaints & Concerns
a. Hubert Update
2. Building/Zoning Permit Requests
a. Meadowland Farmers Coop — Fuel Tank at Lumber Yard Site
b.  Small Cell Facility
3. Request for Council Action
a. RCA - Stavnes Shipping Container
b. RCA-2026 Preliminary Budget & Levy
e 2025-16 Resolution Adopting the 2026 Preliminary Levy
€. RCA-Work Session Date
D. Department Reports
1. Library — Submitted
2. Ambulance Department -
a. Ambulance Repair
b. RCA-Ambulance Members
Fire Department —
Police Department —
Maintenance Department -
Administration/EDA Department — Submitted
E. Ordlnances and Resolutions (can all be done in one motion)
F. Financial Report & Approval of Claims
1. September 2025 Financial Report
2. Approval of Claims
3. 2025 Pool Information
MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
A. Information for Council
1. REC Rate Increases
NEXT MEETING DATES
A. Regular Council Meeting October 14, 2025 at 6:30 PM
ADJOURNMENT

o oA w



LAMBERTON CITY COUNCIL

REGULAR MEETING MINTES
August 11, 2025 e 6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA/CEREMONIAL DUTIES

A

Meeting called to order at 6:30 PM August 11, 2025.

Present: Mayor L. Sik, L. Bittner, D. Irlbeck, A. Cairns, L. Pfarr

Staff in Attendance: V. Halter, J. Thram, K. Mittelstadt, D. Determan, T. Neperman

Others in Attendance: Scott Kuhiman (Bollig), Edward Gilmore (USDA), Tom Anderson, Kyle Hubert, Sandy Polkow,
Debra Jellema, Jadell Forman, Marc Wiedeman, Brenda Derickson

Additions/Deletions to Agenda

1. Add Snow Plowing Complaint

2. Cat Complaint

3. Remove Swearing in Chief Determan

Motion/Second/Pass (Irlbeck/Pfarr/lunanimous 5/0) to approve the agenda as amended.

CONSENT AGENDA

A

Approval of Minutes (can all be done in one motion)
1. 7-14-2025 - CC Regular Meeting Minutes

2. 7-15-2025 - CC Town Hall Meeting Minutes
Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Bittner/ unanimous 5/0) to approve the minutes as listed.

GENERAL BUSINESS

A

C.

D.

USDA RD - Ed Gilmore was present to explain the USDA loans the city has applied to redo Grove Street. A WEP loan will
cover the utility replacement and CF loan will cover the road portion of the project, Gilmore answered questions from the
council.

Bollig Engineering — Scott Kuhiman was present to update the council on Grove Street and the Lead Service Line
replacement project, and other funding applications. The city will sign an agreement with Bollig to hire them to do the Grove
St. projects. Round two is underway to classify lines that are unknown on the private side. Bids were received to replace the
25 private lead service lines. The lowest bid was from T.E. Underground of Tyler, MN. For $229,027.50.

Motion/Second/Pass (Bittner/Pfarr/lunanimous 5/0) to accept the bid from T.E. Underground for replacement of
25 private lead service lines in the amount of $229,027.50.

Motion/Second/Pass (Pfarr/Irlbeck/unanimous 5/0) to approve execute the MPFA grant once available.

Brenda Derickson — Old School Site — Derickson was present to talk about the school’s request for the zoning change
request. Derickson explained that the building is currently zoned R1. By having the building rezoned to commercial or
downtown commercial it is more attractive for someone to come in and buy it. Council explained that they were unable to
answer the questions of residents at the zoning hearing and there was no one present from the school to answer the
questions so they could not vote for the change without some questions being answered. Derickson encouraged the council
to be open minded to different uses for the building that may require a zoning change.

Petitions, Request, Communications
1. Citizen Complaints & Concerns

Complaints that were included in this packet: T Anderson Voicemail, 408 Ash St, 410 Fir Street — (2 Complaints), 5t &
Fir Stop Sign, 5" Street, Tree Stumps, Garbage on Water Bill, 202 3 Ave E, Douglas & 1st St., Grove & 4t

Tom Anderson — Tom Anderson left a voice mail on the City Hall office on July 18, 2025 at approximately 9:00 PM. The
message was played in its entirety at the meeting. In the message Anderson states that he had dead squirrel in his
driveway with foam around its mouth and he has it in his freezer. Anderson stated their will be hell to pay if people are
poisoning animals on his property. Anderson states “you are done inflicting misery on the populous. People, not just me,
are to bashful to say anything. “ Anderson continues to talk about retribution from previous employees going back to Randy
Tordsen. Anderson states that a city employee plowed the catholic church shut after he had been done cleaning it out.
Anderson states the message had better be brought to the city council and that he would be talking to other people as well.
Anderson goes on to state he is tired of this city running amuck. Anderson continues in the message to talk about the
grocery store meeting that was going well until Val got up and talked about the coop thing. Anderson states that there is no
other explanation other than having another big box store wanting to come in and to follow the money.



Mayor Sik explained to Anderson (present at the meeting) that Halter was doing due diligence because going into that

meeting that night the last we had known was the grocery store was going to close. Halter was coming up with options. Sik

stated that she was doing what she was told. Halter stated that Carlson came up to her after the meeting and thanked her
for all the work and information about what rural grocery stores are going through. Discussion turned to Dollar General.
The grocery store was stated to close before Dollar general came into the picture. Kyle Hubert complained about alleys.
Anderson then talked about the dogs and cats being poisoned in the past. Discussion was held. Kyle Hubert then
complained about animal control. Mayor Sik stated the city would have less problems if pet owners would just take care of
their animals. Mayor Sik also stated that all these complaints need to stop. People need to go through the correct process,
if at that time they are not getting response, they can come to the council. Halter stated that people will come to the council
because they don't think anything is being done, or what they feel should be getting done is not getting done. Halter asked
what does the council want to do with the houses that should be torn down, but owners will not cooperate or respond.
Halter stated that these properties are someone’s personal property. We may not like the way they are kept and all of our
standards are different, but they are someone’s personal property and it's not easy to take them down. Halter feels this is a
conversation the council needs to have. Mayor Sik stated to those present making comments, that he would like them to
come with solutions. Discussion was held on stop signs. Tree stumps will be done when they have time, not high priority.
Kyle Hubert brought up weeds at the end of his street. Jadel Morales questioned the council on what happens if nothing
gets done. Mayor Sik stated they should come back to council. Morales brought us some other person’s problem of comer
getting seeded. Discussion held. Morales questioned what a reasonable time frame is. Mayor Sik felt my the next council
meeting. Morales stated that three other people have come to her and stated Justin does not do his job and excuses
himself as a farmer and terrorizes people and they are afraid to come to council and that the council won't do anything.
Morales continued about snow in her driveway and snow removal on corners. Morales then addressed Halter stating she
had come in and said Justin ruined her curb lawn by using his machinery to blow snow onto the her park. Halter stated she
had said it is his responsibility to move snow off the corners. Morales said no that's not what happened that Halter stated
this was a neighbor to neighbor issue. Morales then asked if this was still a neighbor to neighbor issue or a city issue.
Halter stated she does not recall the situation. Halter continued by saying Morales came in to ask why Justin was removing
snow on your corner and told Morales that it is Justin’s responsibility to clean off corners and the neighbor thing was
brought up because Morales tends to turn blame on anyone friends with Brian K. her neighbor she does not get along with
and the fact that Justin and Brian are friends is probably why the neighbor to neighbor thing came up. Mayor Sik stepped in
and stated Morales is starting to accuse city employees of property damage and said we need to talk to our city attorney
before talking to her. Mayor Sik also suggested Morales get an attorney because we are getting into legal territory and if
she has an official complaint direct to our attorney.

Building/Zoning Permit Requests — none

Request for Council Action

a. RCA - First Security Bank Request
+  2025-14 Resolution to Release Pledged Collateral

Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Bittner/unanimous 5/0) to approve resolution 2025-14 to release pledged

collateral requested by First Security Bank.

b. RCA - Handicap Sidewalk Access — Handicap access was requested at the corner of 2nd and Birch. Discussion help.
Halter will give it to the county. Council tabled.

€. RCA - Water Storage Tank Exterior Cleaning and Painting — Discussion was held. Thram stated it needs to get
repainted and two bids have been received.

Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Irlbeck /unanimous 5/0) to approve resolution 2025-14 to release pledged

collateral requested by First Security Bank.

E. Department Reports

1.

Library — Report as submitted to council prior to meeting.

Motion/Second/Pass (Pfarr/Irlbeck/unanimous 4/0) to approve the Library report as submitted. (Bittner
absent for vote.)

Ambulance Department - Director Mittelstadt was present. There were 15 calls in July. There are two people in EMT class now.
Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Irlbeck/unanimous 4/0) to approve accept the ambulance report as given.
(Bittner absent for vote.)

Fire Department — Chief Neperman was present. There have been repairs on a couple of frucks. Trainings coming up and getting
ready to fundraise for new equipment.

Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Bittner/unanimous 5/0) to approve the Fire Dept. report.

Police Department — Chief Determan was present and present his report. There were 35 calls for service in the last month. Council
stated the varied hours are much appreciated.



Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Irlbeck/unanimous 5/0) to approve the Police report as given.

5. Maintenance Department — Thram was present. They have been working on the park and working on alleys. Alleys have not had
gravel or rock on them in over 14 years. Hopes to work on street patching next. Lions Club installed turfin the bottom of the gaga ball pit.
Motion/Second/Pass (Pfarr/Bittner/unanimous 5/0) to approve the Maintenance report as given

6. Administration/EDA Department — Submitted report. Halter asked council for guidance as what her focus should be ordinances,
complaints, housing, child care, getting new business to town. Halter stated she is more than frustrated by the number of complaints
and the constant feeling of inadequacy and the constant negativity of residents. Halter stated she would love to have a community that
is more supportive of their neighbors, she would like to see more involvement in frying to get positive things done. Mayor Sik stated to
keep doing what she’s doing. Discussion was held.

Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Bittner/unanimous 5/0) to approve the Admin/EDA report as given.

F. Ordinances and Resolutions (can all be done in one motion)
1. 2025-15 - Resolution Accepting Donations
G. Financial Report & Approval of Claims
1. August 2025 Financial Report
2. Approval of Claims
3. July Pool Information — was not included in the council packet by mistake.

Motion/Second/Pass (Irlbeck/Cairns/unanimous 5/0) to approve resolutions 2025-015, the August 2025 Financial
Report and Approval of Claims.

4, MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
A. Information for Council
1. Tax Forfeiture Sale — The first sale for the Wetenkamp property will be September 17t. If not sold the second sale will
be October 20t and the final sale would be December/January if the property does not sell with the first two sales.

2. Redwood County Child Care Initiative — Halter explained that the Redwood County is working on child care solutions
that can be used in the communities. According to the latest numbers the RRC school district is short 81 child care
spots. The Redwood County Child Care initiative has surveys out to collect information from parents, providers, and
employers. Everyone is encouraged to take the survey. Then in October there will be a county wide town hall meeting
with the results that the group will use to work towards solutions. Halter put out a separate survey and she received
responses which is giving some direction. Halter met with a facility person from the nursing home. There is possibility
that they could house childcare in empty rooms of their facility.

3. Amy Klobuchar's Office called to say our funding request made the next hurdle, now we wait for the senate to pass the
budget (September/October timeline).
5. NEXT MEETING DATES

A. Regular Council Meeting September 8, 2025 at 6:30 PM
6. ADJOURNMENT

Motion/Second/Pass (Cairns/Bittner/unanimous 5/0) to adjourn the meeting. Meeting adjourned at 9:10 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Valerie Halter Lydell Sik
Clerk



LAMBERTON EDA

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES « CITY HALL
December 4, 2024 « 5:15 PM

1. CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA

e Meeting called to order at 5:15 PM on June 26, 2024
e Present: R. Arkell, P. Mattison, C. Stavnes, L. Bittner
e Staff Present: V. Halter

A. Deletions to Agenda
Motion/Second/Pass (Stavnes/Mattison/unanimous 4/0) to approve the agenda presented.

2. CONSENT AGENDA (if multiple, can all be done in one motion)
A. Approval of Minutes of the:
e QOctober 30, 2024
Motion/Second/Pass (Bittner/Mattison/unanimous 4/0) to approve the minutes.
B. Treasurer’s Report
o November 2024
Motion/Second/Pass (Mattison/Bittner/unanimous 4/0) to approve the treasurer’s report.
3. OLD BUSINESS - Updates
A. Day Care - Halter is waiting to hear on the grant funding.
B. Assisted Living — No Update
C. Old School Campus — Halter explained there is a group looking at taking over the old school site. The
group met with the building committee of RRC. Discussion was held.
D. Southside Addition Lots — No Update
E. Housing / Twin Home Development — Halter attended an open house in Tracy for the UCAP homes
they have built. Discussion was held.
F. Business Inquiries - No Update
4. NEW BUSINESS
A. CD Coming Due - Discussion held.
Motion/Second/Pass (Bittner/Mattison/unanimous 4/0) to leave the CD with First Security
Bank and reinvest in a 7 month CD.
5. EDA BOARD REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
Board terms were discussed. Will look into it further with the by-laws.
6. NEXT MEETING -
A. Wednesday, February 26, 2025 at 5:15
7. ADJOURNMENT

Motion/Second/Pass (Mattison/Bittner/unanimous 4/0) to adjourn the meeting at 5:57 PM.

Respectfully Submitted,

Valerie Halter Lydell Sik
Clerk Mayor



«<BOLLIG

ENGINEERING

Meeting Agenda
Meeting Date: September 8, 2025

Meeting Subject: Lamberton City Council Meeting

L Pursuit of Leveraged Funding
A. USDA-RD: Grove Street Project; everything else
B. MN direct legislative appropriation — already gearing up for next session
C. MN DEED Small Cities Development Program full application — submitted 4/14/2025

D. MN Public Facilities Authority (MPFA) Intended Use Plan (IUP) — LSLR Phase 1, Grove Street,
Watermain Phase 2, LSLR Phase 2

E. CDSR (earmarks) — $2M on the FY26 Senate Interior and Environment Appropriations
Subcommittee bill, for infrastructure improvements; if awarded, grant would come through EPA,
requires a 20% match; this still has a ways to go legislatively

1. Grove Street

A. Motion to execute Owner-Engineer Agreement for Grove street Project (see attached
agreement; USDA RD has reviewed and concurred)

B. Assessment process in progress.

1.  Reselutien-orderingFeasibility Repert, acceptance of Feasibility Report, Improvement

Hearing and ordering Preparation of Plans, Preparation of Assessment Roll and
Assessment Hearing
Il Lead Service Lines

A. Round 2 of MDH Inventory Technical Assistance grant program

1. Classifying unknowns, annual inventory update;
Work to be complete prior to October 31, 2025

B. Service line replacements — Phase 1 (2025 construction)
1. All the paperwork and agreements are in place with MPFA for the project funding

2. Netice-efAward, Execute contract, Preconstruction meeting, Notice to Proceed,
Construction, Substantial Completion, Final Completion/closeout

C. Subsequent Phases (2, 3, 4 identified so far, to pair with watermain replacements)

Designed for Small Cities. Page 10f 1



This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of
the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services, is published in two
parts: (1) this part, the E-500 Agreement form, and (2) the Exhibits to Agreement between Engineer and
Subconsultant for Professional Services. This first part contains a Guidelines for Use section that pertains
to both the Agreement form and the Exhibits.

AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Prepared by

EJCDC

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

(il

ACEC

AMERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES

ASCE

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

NSPE ® NATIONAL SOCIETY OF
=l PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).



Copyright® 2020

National Society of Professional Engineers
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794
(703) 684-2882

WWW.NSPe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

WWwWw.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers
1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400
(800) 548-2723

WWWw.asce.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed
above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

The use of this document is governed by the terms of the
License Agreement for the 2020 EJCDC® Engineering Series Documents.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org,
or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).


http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.ejcdc.org/

AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
Article 1— Services Of ENGINEEI ...ccouuiiie ittt ettt e ettt e e et e e e e sbte e e e ebteeeesbaeeeesbtaeeesstaeessastaneesnes 1
1.01 1Y 070 = N 1
Article 2— OWNEr’'s RESPONSIDIITIES ....eeiiiiiiee i et e e e e e e bte e e e eraee e e snreeeeeanes 1
2.01 o) [=Totd 12} {e] o g g F- | A Te Yo NP SRR 1

2.02  Owner’s Instructions Regarding Bidding/Proposal and Front-End Construction Contract
(Do Y10 0 0= o | £ N 2
2.03 OWNEI-FUINISNHEA SEIVICES ... .utiiii ittt e e e s rbee e e et ee e e et ae e e s sabee e e ssnbeeeesnareeas 3
2.04  Owner’s General ReSPONSIDIILIES ....cccuviiiiiciiieicieie e e e e e saaee e 4
2.05 o 100 1T o L ST TPPPPPPPPPPPRRt 5
Article 3— Schedule FOr RENAEING SEIVICES .....uuiiiiiciiiieiciiiee ettt e st e e ssrte e e e sate e e e serteeeesanes 6
3.01 COMMIBNCEIMEBNT .. nsnes 6
0 N0 0 [ o Tl @e] 2 Y o] =] 4 e o VPSP 6
Article 4— INVOICES AN PAYMENTS .. .uviiiiiiiiie ittt sbre e e e s bee e e e sbae e e e sbtaeeesbaeeeesansaeassanes 6
4.01 [NV ] [l LNt 6
4.02 o 171 01T 01 £ PPNt 6
Article 5— OPINIONS OFf COSE .....uuiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e e et e e e ette e e s e bteeeeebtaeeeesaeeeeestseeesastaeeesastanaesnes 7
5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction COST ........uuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt e e e e arae e e ebee e e e earaeas 7
5.02  Opinions of TOtal ProjECT COSES ......uiiiiiiiiieeiiieeeecitee e et e e et e e e tree e e e ate e e e e eabae e e e eabae e e eenraeeeenarenas 7
Article 6— General CoNSIAEIAtIONS. .......ciiciiie ittt e et e e e eetre e e e etteeeeeettaeeesbaeeassbteeaeesaseaesassenaesnes 7
6.01  Standards Of PEIrfOIMANCE. ......ciii ettt et e e e e e e e tbe e e e et e e e s enbaeeeenreeaeennrenas 7
6.02  Ownership and Use Of DOCUMENTS.........uiiiiiiiiii ettt eetree e e ite e e e e ara e e e e sabae e e e eareeeeeearaeas 9
6.03 [ =T o) o Lol N = T o Y0 oYt =Y SRR 10
6.04 LT ] =Y o= TP OPPTPP 11
6.05  Suspension and TErMINALION ......ccuii ittt e e e e e s e e e e sbree s esabreeeenarenas 12
6.06 Successors, Assigns, and BeNefiCiaries ........occvieiiicieii i 14
6.07  Dispute RESOIULION .eoiiueiiiei ettt e e et ae e e et e e e e e eabaee e esnbeeeeenaseeas 14
6.08 CONLIOIlING LAW; VENUE ..oviiiiiiiie ettt ettt e ettt e e et e e e e bte e e e s bteeeesbtaeessnseaeessntaeaesnnes 15
6.09  Environmental Condition Of SIte ....ccoceiiiiiiiiinii e 15
6.10  Indemnification and MUtUGl WaIVET .........cooiiiriiiiiiieit ettt ettt 16
6.11 2 U=Tolo T o [ 2 U=1 =T 1 4 o) o IR 17
6.12 MiSCEIIANEOUS PrOVISIONS......iiiiiciiiieeciiiie e ettt e ettt e e e e e e e s tbe e e s e abee e e ssbaeesennbaeesennseeas 17
F N o LR A DY TV o SRR 18
7.01 B T=] T aT=Te I =T 'L RS RR U R 18
Article 8 — Exhibits ANd SPeCial PrOVISIONS.......ciiiiiiiiciiiiiee e et e e e e e e e rrre e e e e e s e e ennraeeeeeeeeenas 23
8.01 EXNIDItS 10 ABIrEEMENT .....uiiiiiee e e e e e e et e e e e e e e babe e e e e e e e e eennnreneeeeas 23
30 Vo Y = | AV == =T o V=Y o SRR 23
8.03 Designated RePreSENTatiVES .......c..euiiiiieee et e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e nrar e e e e s 23
8.04  ENgINEer's CartifiCatioNS......c.ueiiicciiie ettt e et e e e etr e e e e eate e e e e nbaee e eeaneeas 23
0L S 0o Yo i [ ot o] 1) (= =T RSP PR 24

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

TOC Page 1of 2



EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

TOC Page 2 of 2



AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This is an Agreement between City of Lamberton (Owner) and Bollig Inc (Engineer). Owner’s Project, of
which Engineer’s services under this Agreement are a part, is generally identified as City of Lamberton
2025 Grove St. Improvements (Project). Other terms used in this Agreement are defined in Article 7.
Engineer’s services under this Agreement are generally identified as City of Lamberton 2025 Grove St.
Improvements.

Owner and Engineer further agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1—SERVICES OF ENGINEER

1.01  Scope
A. Engineer shall provide, or cause to be provided, the services set forth herein and in Exhibit A.

B. All phases of service will include Management of Engineering Services as shown in Exhibit A.
ARTICLE 2—OWNER'’S RESPONSIBILITIES

2.01  Project Information

A. To the extent Owner has not already provided the following, or has new, additional, or
revised information from that previously provided, Owner shall provide Engineer with
information and data needed by Engineer in the performance of Basic and Additional
Services, including Owner’s:

design objectives and constraints;
space, capacity, and performance requirements;
flexibility and expandability needs;

1
2
3
4. design and construction standards;
5. budgetary limitations; and

6

any other available information pertinent to the Project including reports and data
relative to previous designs, construction, or investigation at or adjacent to the Site.

B. Following Engineer’s assessment of initially-available Project information and data and upon
Engineer’s request, Owner shall obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available (if necessary
through retention of specialists or consultants) such additional Project-related information
and data as is reasonably required to enable Engineer to complete its Basic and Additional
Services; or, with consent of Engineer, Owner may authorize the Engineer to obtain or
provide all or part of such additional information as Additional Services. Such additional
information or data may include the following:

1. Property descriptions.

2. Zoning, deed, and other land use restrictions.

3. Surveys, topographic mapping, and utility documentation.
4

Property, boundary, easement, right-of-way, and other special surveys or data,
including establishing relevant reference points.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 1 of 26



2.02

5. Explorations and tests of subsurface conditions at or adjacent to the Site; geotechnical
reports and investigations; drawings of physical conditions relating to existing surface
or subsurface structures at the Site; hydrographic surveys, laboratory tests and
inspections of samples, materials, and equipment; appropriate professional
interpretation of such information or data.

6. Environmental assessments, audits, investigations, and impact statements, and other
relevant environmental, historical, or cultural studies relevant to the Project, the Site,
and adjacent areas.

7. Data or consultations as required for the Project but not otherwise identified in this
Agreement.

Owner shall examine all alternative solutions, studies, reports, sketches, Drawings,
Specifications, proposals, and other documents presented by Engineer (including obtaining
advice of an attorney, risk manager, insurance counselor, financial/municipal advisor, and
other advisors or consultants as Owner deems appropriate with respect to such examination)
and render in writing timely decisions pertaining thereto.

Owner shall furnish to Engineer data as to Owner’s anticipated costs for services to be
provided to Owner by others (including, but not limited to, accounting, bond and financial,
independent cost estimating, insurance counseling, and legal advice) so that Engineer may
assist Owner in collating the various cost categories that comprise Total Project Costs.

Owner shall advise Engineer if any invention, design, process, product, or device that Owner
has requested, required, or recommended for inclusion in the Drawings or Specifications will
be subject to payment (whether by Owner or Contractor) of any license fee or royalty to
others, as required by patent rights or copyrights.

Owner shall inform Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested with respect
to Owner’s evaluation of the possible use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and
Techniques, as defined in Exhibit A.

Owner shall inform Engineer as to whether Engineer’s assistance is requested in identifying
opportunities for enhancing the sustainability of the Project.

Owner’s Instructions Regarding Bidding/Proposal and Front-End Construction Contract
Documents

A.

Owner shall give instructions to Engineer regarding Owner’s procurement of construction
services (including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders,
and requests for proposals, as applicable) and Owner’s construction contract practices and
requirements, and furnish to Engineer (or give specific directions requesting Engineer to use
copies already in Engineer’s possession) the following:

1. Owner’s standard contract forms, general conditions (if other than the current edition
of EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract),
supplementary conditions, text, and related documents and content for Engineer to
include in the draft Bidding/Proposal Documents, and in draft Front-End Construction
Contract Documents;

2. insurance and bonding requirements;

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 2 of 26



protocols for electronic transmittals during bidding and construction;
Owner’s safety and security programs applicable to Contractor and other Constructors;
diversity and other social responsibility requirements;

bidding and contract requirements of funding, financing, or regulatory entities;

N o v M~ Ww

other specific conditions applicable to the procurement of construction or contract
documents;

8. any other information necessary for Engineer to assist Owner in preparing its
Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End Construction Contract Documents.

Owner shall have responsibility for the final content of (1) such Bidding/Proposal Documents,
and (2) such Front-End Construction Contract Documents, other than content furnished by
Engineer concerning the design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise) or
other engineering or technical matters.

1. Owner shall seek the advice of Owner’s legal counsel, risk managers, and insurance
advisors with respect to the drafting and content of such documents.

If there will be an advertisement soliciting bids for construction, Owner shall place and pay
for such advertisement.

2.03  Owner-Furnished Services

A.

Recognizing and acknowledging that Engineer's services and expertise do not include the
following services, Owner shall obtain, as required for the Project:

1. Accounting, bond and financial advisory services (including, if applicable, “municipal
advisor” services as described in Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (2010) and the municipal advisor registration rules issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission), independent cost estimating, and insurance
counseling services.

2. Legal services, including attorney review of proposed Construction Contract
Documents, legal services required by Owner, legal services needed as a result of issues
raised by Contractor, and Project-related legal services reasonably requested by
Engineer.

3. Auditing services, including those needed by Owner to ascertain how or for what
purpose Contractor has used money paid to it.

Owner shall provide the services of an independent testing laboratory to perform all
inspections, tests, and approvals of samples, materials, and equipment required by the
Construction Contract Documents (other than those required to be furnished or arranged by
Contractor), or to evaluate the performance of materials, equipment, and facilities of Owner,
prior to their incorporation into the Work with appropriate professional interpretation
thereof. Owner shall provide Engineer with the findings and reports generated by testing
laboratories, including findings and reports obtained from or through Contractor.

Owner shall acquire or arrange for acquisition of the Site(s) and any temporary or permanent
rights of access, easements, or property rights needed for the Project.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 3 of 26



2.04

With respect to the portions or phases of the Project designed or specified by Engineer,
Owner shall provide, obtain, or arrange for:

1. all required reviews, approvals, consents, and permits from governmental authorities
having jurisdiction, and

2. such reviews, approvals, and consents from others as may be necessary for completion
of each portion or phase of the Project.

Owner may delegate to Contractor or others the responsibilities set forth in
Paragraphs 2.03.C and D.

Owner’s General Responsibilities

A

Owner shall inform Engineer of the policies, procedures, and requirements of Owner that are
applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement.

Owner shall provide Engineer with Owner’s budget for the Project, including type and source
of funding to be used, and will promptly inform Engineer if the budget or funding sources
change.

Owner shall inform Engineer in writing of any safety or security programs that are applicable
to the personnel of Engineer, its Subconsultants, and Engineer’s Subcontractors, as they visit
the Site or otherwise perform services under this Agreement.

Owner shall arrange for safe access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter upon
public and private property as required for Engineer to perform services under this
Agreement.

Owner shall provide necessary direction and make decisions, including prompt review of
Engineer’s submittals, and carry out its other responsibilities in a timely manner so as not to
delay Engineer’s performance of its services.

Owner shall be responsible for all requirements and instructions that it furnishes to Engineer
pursuant to this Agreement, and for the accuracy and completeness of all programs, reports,
data, and other information furnished by Owner to Engineer pursuant to this Agreement.
Engineer may use and rely upon such requirements, programs, instructions, reports, data,
and information in performing or furnishing services under this Agreement, subject to any
express limitations or reservations applicable to the furnished items.

Owner shall give prompt written notice to Engineer whenever Owner observes or otherwise
becomes aware of:

1. any development that affects the scope or time of performance of Engineer’s services;
2. the presence at the Site of any Constituent of Concern; or

3. any relevant, material defect or nonconformance in: (a) Engineer’s services, (b) the
Work, (c)the performance of any Constructor, or (d) Owner’s performance of its
responsibilities under this Agreement.

Owner shall advise Engineer of the identity and scope of services of any independent
consultants employed by Owner to perform or furnish services in regard to the Project,
including, but not limited to, cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and
constructability review.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 4 of 26



I.  If Owner designates a construction manager, site representative, or any individual or entity
other than, or in addition to, Engineer to represent Owner at the Site, Owner shall define and
set forth as an exhibit to this Agreement the duties, responsibilities, and limitations of
authority of such other party and the relation thereof to the duties, responsibilities, and
authority of Engineer.

1.

Owner shall:

Attend and participate in the pre-bid conference, bid opening, pre-construction
conferences, construction progress and other job-related meetings, and Site visits to
determine Substantial Completion and readiness of the completed Work for final
payment.

Primarily communicate with Engineer’s Subcontractors and Subconsultants through the
Engineer.

a. Promptly inform Engineer of the substance of any communications between
Owner and Engineer’s Subcontractors or Subconsultants.

b. Refrain from directing the services of Engineer’s Subcontractors or Subconsultants.

Authorize Engineer to provide Additional Services as set forth in Article 2 of Exhibit A of
the Agreement, as required.

Perform or provide the following:

a. Not Applicable.

K. Owners are responsible for compliance with Domestic Preference Requirements and will
be responsible for the following:

1. Sign agreements for engineering services, construction contracts, and all other
appropriate and necessary documents which include Domestic Preference language.
2. Sign change orders (i.e., C-941 of EJCDC) and partial payment estimates (i.e., C-620
of EJCDC) and thereby acknowledge responsibility for compliance with Domestic
Preference requirements.
3. Where the Owner directly procures products, Owner will obtain Manufacturers’
Certifications and provide copies to Engineer and Contractor.
2.05 Payment
A. Owner shall pay Engineer as set forth in Article 4 and Exhibit J.
B. Engineer’s compensation is summarized as follows; if there is a conflict between the
following summary and the contents of Exhibit J, then Exhibit J will prevail.
I . Basis of
Description of Service Amount asis o .
Compensation
1. Basic Services (Article 1 of Exhibit A) $218,000 Lump Sum
2. Resident Project Representative Services $58,000 Std Hourly Rates
3. Additional Services (Article 2 of Exhibit A) $7,000 Std Hourly Rates
4. Additional Services (Funding Administration) $25,000 Std Hourly Rates

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 5 of 26



Based on a two-month continuous construction period.

1. Compensation items and totals based in whole or in part on Hourly Rates, Direct Labor,
or Percentage of Construction Cost are estimates only.

2.  Lump sum amounts incorporate Engineer’s labor, overhead, profit, and Engineer’s
Subcontractor and Subconsultants’ charges.

3. Engineer’s compensation for each delineated service summarized above will not be
exceeded without the concurrence of the Agency.

ARTICLE 3—SCHEDULE FOR RENDERING SERVICES

3.01 Commencement

A

Engineer is authorized to begin rendering services as of the Effective Date.

3.02 Time for Completion

A

Engineer shall complete its obligations within a reasonable time. Specific periods of time for
rendering services, or specific dates by which services are to be completed, are provided in
Exhibit B, and are hereby agreed to be reasonable.

If, through no fault of Engineer, such periods of time or dates are changed, or the orderly
and continuous progress of Engineer’s services is impaired, or Engineer’s services are delayed
or suspended, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and
amounts of Engineer’s compensation, will be adjusted equitably.

If Owner authorizes changes in the scope, extent, or character of the Project or Engineer’s
services, then the time for completion of Engineer’s services, and the rates and amounts of
Engineer’s compensation, will be adjusted equitably.

If Engineer fails, for reasons within control of Engineer, to complete the performance
required in this Agreement within the time set forth, as duly adjusted, then Owner shall be
entitled, as its sole remedy, to the recovery of direct damages to the extent, if any, resulting
from such failure by Engineer.

ARTICLE 4—INVOICES AND PAYMENTS

4.01 Invoices

A.

Preparation and Submittal of Invoices: Engineer shall prepare invoices in accordance with its
standard invoicing practices, the progress reporting and special invoicing requirements (if
any) in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.01.A, and the terms of ExhibitJ. Invoices will include a
breakdown of services provided. Engineer shall submit its invoices to Owner on a monthly
basis. Invoices are due and payable within 30 days of receipt.

4.02 Payments

A.

Application to Interest and Principal: Payment will be credited first to any interest owed to
Engineer and then to principal.

Disputed Invoices: If Owner disputes an invoice, either as to amount or entitlement, then
Owner shall promptly advise Engineer in writing of the specific basis for doing so; may

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 6 of 26



withhold only that portion so disputed; and must pay the undisputed portion, subject to the
terms of Paragraph 4.01. After a disputed item has been resolved, Engineer shall include the
agreed-upon amount on a new invoice.

Failure to Pay: If Owner fails to make any undisputed payment due Engineer within 30 days
after receipt of Engineer’s invoice, then:

1. amounts due Engineer will be increased at the rate of 1.0% per month (or the maximum
rate of interest permitted by law, if less) from said thirtieth day, and

2. Engineer may, after giving 7 days’ written notice to Owner, suspend services under this
Agreement until Owner has paid in full amounts due. Owner waives any and all claims
against Engineer for any such suspension.

Sales or Use Taxes: If after the Effective Date any governmental entity takes an action that
imposes additional sales or use taxes on Engineer’s services or compensation under this
Agreement, then Engineer may invoice such additional sales or use taxes for reimbursement
by Owner. Owner shall reimburse Engineer for the cost of such invoiced additional sales or
use taxes; such reimbursement will be in addition to the compensation to which Engineer is
entitled under the terms of Exhibit J.

ARTICLE 5—OPINIONS OF COST

5.01 Opinions of Probable Construction Cost

A.

Engineer’s opinions of probable Construction Cost (if any) are to be made on the basis of
Engineer’s experience, qualifications, and general familiarity with the construction industry.
However, because Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment, or
services furnished by others, or over contractors’” methods of determining prices, or over
competitive bidding or market conditions, Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that
proposals, bids, or actual Construction Cost will not vary from opinions of probable
Construction Cost prepared by Engineer. If Owner requires greater assurance as to probable
Construction Cost, then Owner agrees to obtain an independent cost estimate. Opinions of
probable Construction Cost and any revisions thereof must reflect compliance with
Domestic Preference requirements.

5.02  Opinions of Total Project Costs

A.

The services, if any, of Engineer with respect to Total Project Costs will be limited to assisting
the Owner in tabulating the various categories that comprise Total Project Costs. Engineer
assumes no responsibility for the accuracy of any opinions of Total Project Costs. Opinions
of Total Project Costs and any revisions thereof must reflect compliance with Domestic
Preference requirements.

ARTICLE 6—GENERAL CONSIDERATIONS

6.01 Standards of Performance

A.

Standard of Care: The standard of care for all professional engineering and related services
performed or furnished by Engineer under this Agreement will be the care and skill ordinarily
used by members of the subject profession practicing under similar circumstances at the
same time and in the same locality. Engineer makes no warranties, express or implied, under

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 7 of 26



this Agreement or otherwise, in connection with any services performed or furnished by
Engineer.

Technical Accuracy: Owner shall not be responsible for discovering deficiencies in the
technical accuracy of Engineer’s services. Engineer shall correct deficiencies in technical
accuracy without additional compensation, unless such corrective action is directly
attributable to deficiencies in Owner-furnished information.

Engineer’s Subcontractors and Subconsultants: Engineer may retain such Engineer’s
Subcontractors and Subconsultants as Engineer deems necessary to assist in the
performance or furnishing of the services, subject to reasonable, timely, and substantive
objections by Owner.

Reliance on Others: Subject to the standard of care set forth in Paragraph 6.01.A, Engineer
may use or rely upon design elements and information ordinarily or customarily furnished by
others, including, but not limited to, specialty contractors, manufacturers, suppliers, and the
publishers of technical standards.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations, and Policies and Procedures
1. Engineer and Owner shall comply with applicable Laws and Regulations.

2. Engineer shall comply with the policies, procedures, and instructions of Owner that are
applicable to Engineer's performance of services under this Agreement and that Owner
provides to Engineer in writing, subject to the standard of care set forth in
Paragraph 6.01.A, and to the extent compliance is not inconsistent with professional
practice requirements.

3. This Agreement is based on Laws and Regulations and Owner-provided written policies
and procedures as of the Effective Date. The following may be the basis for
modifications to Owner’s responsibilities or to Engineer’s scope of services, times of
performance, or compensation:

a. changes after the Effective Date to Laws and Regulations,

b. thereceipt by Engineer after the Effective Date of Owner-provided written policies
and procedures, and

c. changes after the Effective Date to Owner-provided written policies or procedures.

General Conditions of Construction Contract: The general conditions for any Construction
Contract Documents prepared hereunder are to be the current edition of EJCDC® C-700,
Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract, prepared by the Engineers Joint
Contract Documents Committee, unless expressly indicated otherwise.

Copies of Drawings and Specifications: If Engineer is required to prepare or furnish Drawings
or Specifications under this Agreement, Engineer shall deliver to Owner at least one
complete electronic copy of such Drawings and Specifications, signed and sealed according
to applicable Laws and Regulations, and one complete printed copy, duly signed and sealed.

Engineer shall not be required to sign any document, no matter by whom requested, that
would result in Engineer having to certify, guarantee, or warrant conditions whose existence
Engineer cannot ascertain within the authorized scope of Engineer’s services. Owner agrees

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 8 of 26



6.02

not to make resolution of any dispute with Engineer or payment of any amount due to
Engineer in any way contingent upon Engineer signing any such document.

Engineer shall not at any time supervise, direct, control, or have authority over any
Constructor’s work, nor will Engineer have authority over or be responsible for the means,
methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any
Constructor, or the safety precautions and programs incident thereto, for security or safety
at the Site, nor for any failure of a Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations
applicable to that Constructor’s furnishing and performing of its work. Engineer shall not be
responsible for the acts or omissions of any Constructor.

Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility
for any Constructor’s failure to furnish and perform the Work in accordance with the
Construction Contract Documents.

Engineer shall not be responsible for any decision made regarding the Construction Contract
Documents, or any application, interpretation, clarification, or modification of the
Construction Contract Documents, other than those made by Engineer.

Engineer is not required to provide and does not have any responsibility for surety bonding
or insurance-related advice, recommendations, counseling, or research, or enforcement of
construction insurance or surety bonding requirements.

Engineer’s services do not include providing legal advice or representation.

Engineer’s services do not include (1) serving as a “municipal advisor” for purposes of the
registration requirements of Section 975 of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act (2010) or the municipal advisor registration rules issued by the
Securities and Exchange Commission, or (2) advising Owner, or any municipal entity or other
person or entity, regarding municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal
securities, including advice with respect to the structure, timing, terms, or other similar
matters concerning such products or issuances.

While at the Site, Engineer, its Subconsultants, and Engineer’s Subcontractors, and their
employees and representatives will comply with the applicable requirements of Contractor's
and Owner's safety programs of which Engineer has been informed in writing.

Ownership and Use of Documents

A.

All Documents are instruments of service, and Engineer owns the Documents, including all
associated copyrights and the right of reuse at the discretion of the Engineer. Engineer shall
continue to own the Documents and all associated rights whether or not the Project is
completed.

1. Owner may make and retain copies of Documents for information and reference in
connection with the use of the Documents on the Project.

2. Engineer grants Owner a limited license to use the Documents on the Project,
extensions of the Project, and for related uses of the Owner, subject to receipt by
Engineer of full payment due and owing for all services relating to preparation of the
Documents, and subject to the following limitations:

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 9 of 26



a. Owner acknowledges that such Documents are not intended or represented to be
suitable for use on the Project unless completed by Engineer, or for use or reuse
by Owner or others on extensions of the Project, on any other project, or for any
other use or purpose, without written verification or adaptation by Engineer;

b. any such use or reuse, or any modification of the Documents, without written
verification, completion, or adaptation by Engineer, as appropriate for the specific
purpose intended, will be at Owner’s sole risk and without liability or legal exposure
to Engineer or to its officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and
Subconsultants;

c. Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors,
members, partners, agents, employees, and Subconsultants from all claims,
damages, losses, and expenses, including attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting
from any use, reuse, or modification of the Documents without written verification,
completion, or adaptation by Engineer; and

d. such limited license to Owner shall not create any rights in third parties.

If Engineer at Owner’s request verifies the suitability of the Documents, completes them, or
adapts them for extensions of the Project or for any other purpose, then Owner shall
compensate Engineer at rates or in an amount to be agreed upon by Owner and Engineer.

Engineer shall inform Owner if Engineer is aware of any invention, design, process, product,
or device specified in the Drawings, Specifications, or other Documents that is subject to
payment (whether by Owner or Contractor) of any license fee or royalty to others, as
required by patent rights or copyrights. If Engineer’s good-faith inclusion in the Drawings,
Specifications, or other Documents of new, innovative, or non-standard technologies, for the
benefit of Owner and the Project, results in third-party claims of infringement or violation of
intellectual property rights, then Owner and Engineer shall share equally the costs of
defending against, settling, or paying such claims.

Engineer will obtain Owner’s consent, which will not be unreasonably withheld, prior to
releasing any publicity, including news and press releases, promotional publications, award
and prize competition submittals, and other advertising regarding the subject matter of this
Agreement. Nothing herein will limit the Engineer’s right to include information in
statements of qualifications and proposals to others accurately describing its participation
and participation of employees in the Project.

6.03 Electronic Transmittals

A.

To the fullest extent practical, Owner and Engineer agree to transmit, and accept, Project-
related correspondence, Documents, text, data, drawings, information, and graphics, in
electronic media or digital format, either directly, or through access to a secure Project
website, in accordance with Exhibit F, Electronic Documents Protocol (EDP).

1. Compliance with the EDP by Engineer shall be considered a Basic Service and no direct
or separate compensation will be paid to Engineer for such compliance, unless
provisions for separate compensation are expressly set forth in the EDP.

2. Engineer’s costs directly attributable to changes in Engineer’s Electronic Documents
obligations, after the effective date of this Agreement, necessitated by revisions to

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 10 of 26



6.04

Exhibit F, delayed adoption of Exhibit F, or implementation of other Electronic
Documents protocols, will be compensated as Additional Services.

If this Agreement does not include Exhibit F or otherwise does not establish or include
protocols for transmittal of Electronic Documents by Electronic Means, then Owner and
Engineer may operate without specific protocols or may jointly develop such protocols at a
later date.

Except as stated otherwise in Exhibit F (if included in this Agreement), when transmitting
Electronic Documents by Electronic Means, the transmitting party makes no representations
as to long term compatibility, usability, or readability of the Electronic Documents resulting
from the recipient’s use of software application packages, operating systems, or computer
hardware differing from those used in the drafting or transmittal of the Electronic
Documents, or from those established in applicable protocols.

This Agreement (including the EDP) is not intended to create obligations for Owner or
Engineer with respect to transmittals to or from third parties, except as expressly stated in
the EDP.

Insurance

A.
B.

Engineer shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G.

Additional Insureds: The Engineer’s commercial general liability, automobile liability, and
umbrella or excess liability policies, must:

1. include and list as additional insureds Owner, and any individuals or entities identified
as additional insureds in Exhibit G;

2. include coverage for the respective officers, directors, members, partners, and
employees of all such additional insureds;

3. afford primary coverage to these additional insureds for all claims covered thereby
(including as applicable those arising from both ongoing and completed operations);
and

4. not seek contribution from insurance maintained by the additional insured.
Owner shall procure and maintain insurance as set forth in Exhibit G.

Owner shall require Contractor to purchase and maintain policies of insurance covering
workers' compensation, general liability, motor vehicle damage and injuries, and other
insurance necessary to protect Owner's and Engineer's interests in the Project. Owner shall
require Contractor to cause Engineer, its Subconsultants, and Engineer’s Subcontractors to
be listed as additional insureds with respect to such liability insurance purchased and
maintained by Contractor for the Project. Owner shall give Engineer access to any certificates
of insurance and copies of endorsements and policies obtained by Owner from Contractor.

Owner and Engineer shall each deliver to the other certificates of insurance evidencing the
coverages indicated in Exhibit G. Such certificates must be furnished prior to commencement
of Engineer’s services and at renewals thereafter during the life of the Agreement.

1. Upon request by Owner or any other insured, Engineer shall also furnish other evidence
of such required insurance, including but not limited to copies of policies and

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 11 of 26



6.05

endorsements, documentation of applicable self-insured retentions (if allowed) and
deductibles, full disclosure of all relevant exclusions, and evidence of insurance required
to be purchased and maintained by Subconsultants and Engineer’s Subcontractors. In
any documentation furnished under this provision, Engineer may redact (a) any
confidential premium or pricing information and (b) any wording specific to projects or
jurisdictions other than those applicable to this Agreement.

All construction contracts entered into by Owner with respect to the Project must require
builder’s risk or similar property insurance.

All policies of property insurance relating to the Project, including but not limited to any
builder’s risk or similar policy, must allow for waiver of subrogation rights and contain
provisions to the effect that in the event of payment of any loss or damage the insurers will
have no rights of recovery against any insured thereunder or against Engineer, its
Subconsultants, or Engineer’s Subcontractors. Owner and Engineer waive all rights against
each other, Contractor, Engineer’s Subcontractors and Subconsultants, and the respective
officers, directors, members, partners, employees, agents, consultants, and subcontractors
of each and any of them, for all losses and damages caused by, arising out of, or resulting
from any of the perils or causes of loss covered by any such builder’s risk or similar policy and
any other property insurance relating to the Project. Owner and Engineer shall take
appropriate measures in other Project-related contracts to secure waivers of rights
consistent with those set forth in this paragraph.

All policies of insurance must contain a provision or endorsement that the coverage afforded
will not be canceled, and that renewal will not be refused, until at least 10 days’ prior written
notice has been given to the primary insured. Upon receipt of such notice, the primary
insured must promptly forward a copy of the notice to the other party to this Agreement and
replace the coverage being cancelled or reduced to conform to the requirements of this
Agreement.

At any time, Owner may request that Engineer, or Engineer’s Subcontractors or
Subconsultants, at Owner’s sole expense, provide additional insurance coverage, increased
limits, or revised deductibles that are more protective than those specified in Exhibit G. If so
requested by Owner, and if commercially available, Engineer shall obtain and shall require
Engineer’s Subcontractors or Subconsultants to obtain such additional insurance coverage,
different limits, or revised deductibles for such periods of time as requested by Owner, and
Exhibit G will be supplemented to incorporate these requirements.

Suspension and Termination

A.

Suspension

1. By Owner: Owner may suspend Engineer’s services for up to 90 days upon 7 days’
written notice to Engineer.

2. By Engineer: Engineer may, after giving 7 days’ written notice to Owner, suspend
services under this Agreement:

a. if Owner has failed to pay Engineer for invoiced services and expenses, as set forth
in Paragraphs 4.02.B and 4.02.C;

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 12 of 26



b. in response to the presence of Constituents of Concern at the Site, as set forth in
Paragraph 6.09.D; or

c. if persistent circumstances beyond the control of Engineer have prevented it from
performing its obligations under this Agreement.

B. Termination for Cause

1. Either party may terminate the Agreement for cause upon 30 days’ written notice in the
event of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with the terms
of the Agreement, through no fault of the terminating party.

a. Notwithstanding the foregoing, this Agreement will not terminate under
Paragraph 6.05.B.1 if the party receiving such notice begins, within 7 days of
receipt of such notice, to correct its substantial failure to perform and proceeds
diligently to cure such failure within no more than 30 days of receipt thereof;
provided, however, that if and to the extent such substantial failure cannot be
reasonably cured within such 30-day period, and if such party has diligently
attempted to cure the same and thereafter continues diligently to cure the same,
then the cure period provided for herein will extend up to, but in no case more
than, 60 days after the date of receipt of the notice.

2. In addition to its termination rights in Paragraph 6.05.B.1, Engineer may terminate this
Agreement for cause upon 7 days’ written notice:

a. if Owner demands that Engineer furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s
responsibilities as a licensed professional;

b. if Engineer’s services for the Project are delayed or suspended for more than
90 days for reasons beyond Engineer’s control; or

c. asthe result of the presence at or adjacent to the Site of undisclosed Constituents
of Concern, as set forth in Paragraph 6.09.E.

3. Engineer will have no liability to Owner on account of any termination by Engineer for
cause.

C. Termination for Convenience: Owner may terminate this Agreement for convenience,
effective upon Engineer’s receipt of notice from Owner.

D. Extension of Effective Date of Termination: If Owner terminates the Agreement for cause or
convenience, Owner may set the effective date of termination at a time up to 30 days later
than otherwise provided to allow Engineer to demobilize personnel and equipment from the
Site, to complete tasks whose value would otherwise be lost, to prepare notes as to the
status of completed and uncompleted tasks, and to assemble Project materials in orderly
files. Engineer shall be entitled to compensation for such tasks.

E. Payments Upon Termination: In the event of any termination under Paragraph 6.05,
Engineer will be entitled to invoice Owner and to receive full payment for all services
performed or furnished in accordance with this Agreement and all reimbursable expenses
incurred through the effective date of termination. Upon making such payment, Owner will
have the limited right to the use of Documents, at Owner’s sole risk, subject to the provisions
of Paragraph 6.02.A.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 13 of 26



1. If Owner has terminated the Agreement for cause and disputes Engineer’s entitlement
to compensation for services and reimbursement of expenses, then Engineer’s
entitlement to payment and Owner’s rights to the use of the Documents will be resolved
in accordance with the dispute resolution provisions of this Agreement or as otherwise
agreed in writing.

2. If Owner has terminated the Agreement for convenience, or if Engineer has terminated
the Agreement for cause, then Engineer will be entitled, in addition to the payments
identified above, to invoice Owner and receive payment of a reasonable amount for
services and expenses directly attributable to termination, both before and after the
effective date of termination, such as reassignment of personnel, costs of terminating
contracts with Engineer’s Subcontractors or Subconsultants, and other related close-out
costs, using methods and rates for Additional Services as set forth in Exhibit J.

6.06  Successors, Assigns, and Beneficiaries

A

Owner and Engineer are hereby bound and the successors, executors, administrators, and
legal representatives of Owner and Engineer (and to the extent permitted by
Paragraph 6.06.B the assigns of Owner and Engineer) are hereby bound to the other party to
this Agreement and to the successors, executors, administrators and legal representatives
(and said assigns) of such other party, in respect of all covenants, agreements, and
obligations of this Agreement.

Neither Owner nor Engineer may assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or interest
(including, but without limitation, claims arising out of this Agreement or money that is due
or may become due) in this Agreement without the written consent of the other party,
except to the extent that any assignment, subletting, or transfer is mandated by law. Unless
specifically stated to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment
will release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under this Agreement.

Unless expressly provided otherwise in this Agreement:

1. Allduties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the sole
and exclusive benefit of Owner and Engineer and not for the benefit of any other party.

2. Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to create, impose, or give rise to any duty
owed by Owner or Engineer to any Constructor, other third-party individual or entity,
or to any surety for or employee of any of them.

3. Owner agrees that the substance of the provisions of this Paragraph 6.06.C will appear
in the Construction Contract Documents.

6.07  Dispute Resolution

A.

Unless otherwise required by Exhibit H, Owner and Engineer shall resolve all disputes in the
following manner:

1. Owner and Engineer agree to negotiate all disputes between them in good faith for a
period of 30 days from the date of notice, prior to invoking mediation.

2. Owner and Engineer agree that they shall first submit any and all unsettled claims,
counterclaims, disputes, and other matters in question between them arising out of or
relating to this Agreement or the breach thereof (“Disputes”) to mediation. Owner and

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 14 of 26



Engineer agree to participate in the mediation process in good faith. The process will be
conducted on a confidential basis, and must be completed within 120 days.

3. Ifthe parties fail to resolve a Dispute through negotiations under Paragraph 6.07.A.1 or
mediation under Paragraph 6.07.A.2, then:

a. either or both may invoke the applicable dispute resolution procedures of
Exhibit H for final resolution of Disputes.

b.  If Exhibit H is not included, or if no final dispute resolution method is specified in
Exhibit H, then the parties may exercise their rights at law.

6.08 Controlling Law; Venue

A

This Agreement is to be governed by the Laws and Regulations of the state in which the
Project is located.

Venue for any exercise of rights at law will be the state court having jurisdiction at the
location of the Project; or at the choice of either party, and if federal jurisdictional
requirements can be met, in federal court in the district in which the Project is located.

6.09 Environmental Condition of Site

A.

Owner represents to Engineer that, as of the Effective Date, to the best of Owner’s
knowledge, no Constituents of Concern, other than those disclosed in writing to Engineer,
exist at or adjacent to the Site.

Undisclosed Constituents of Concern: For purposes of this Paragraph 6.09, the presence at
or adjacent to the Site of Constituents of Concern that were not disclosed to Engineer
pursuant to Paragraph 6.09.A, in such quantities or circumstances that such Constituents of
Concern may present a danger to persons or property exposed to them, will be referred to
as “undisclosed” Constituents of Concern.

1. The presence at the Site of materials that are necessary for the execution of the Work,
or that are to be incorporated in the Work, and that are controlled and contained
pursuant to industry practices, Laws and Regulations, and the requirements of this
Agreement or the Construction Contract, are not undisclosed Constituents of Concern.

2. Constituents of Concern that are to be located, identified, studied, removed, or
remediated as part of the services under this Agreement are not undisclosed
Constituents of Concern.

3. Constituents of Concern that are to be located, identified, studied, removed, or
remediated as part of the services under another professional services contract for
Owner, or as part of the work under a construction or remediation contract, are not
undisclosed Constituents of Concern if Engineer has been informed of the general scope
of such contract.

If Engineer encounters or learns of an undisclosed Constituent of Concern at the Site, then
Engineer shall notify (1) Owner and (2) appropriate authorities having jurisdiction if Engineer
reasonably concludes that doing so is required by applicable Laws or Regulations.

It is acknowledged by both parties that Engineer’s scope of services does not include any
services related to undisclosed Constituents of Concern. If Engineer or any other party

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 15 of 26



encounters, uncovers, or reveals an undisclosed Constituent of Concern, or if encountered,
uncovered, or revealed Constituents of Concern are present in substantially greater
guantities or substantially different locations than disclosed or anticipated, or if investigative
or remedial action, or other professional services, are necessary or required by applicable
Laws and Regulations with respect to such Constituents of Concern, then Engineer may, at
its option and without liability for direct, consequential, or any other damages, suspend
performance of services on the portion of the Project adversely affected thereby until such
portion of the Project is no longer so affected; and Owner shall promptly determine whether
to retain a qualified expert to evaluate such condition or take any necessary corrective
action.

If the presence at the Site of undisclosed Constituents of Concern, or of Constituents of
Concern in substantially greater quantities or in substantially different locations than
disclosed or anticipated, adversely affects the performance of Engineer’s services under this
Agreement, then:

1. if the adverse effects do not preclude Engineer from completing its Project services in
general accordance with this Agreement on unaffected or marginally affected portions
of the Project, Engineer may accept an equitable adjustment in its compensation or in
the time of completion, or both; and the Agreement will be amended to reflect changes
necessitated by the presence of such Constituents of Concern; or

2. if the adverse effects are of such materiality to the overall performance of Engineer that
it cannot complete its services without significant changes to the scope of services, time
of completion, and compensation, then Engineer may terminate this Agreement for
cause on 7 days’ written notice.

Owner acknowledges that Engineer is performing professional services for Owner and that
Engineer is not and will not be required to become an "owner," “arranger,” “operator,”
“generator,” or “transporter” of hazardous substances, as defined in the Comprehensive
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended, which are
or may be encountered at or near the Site in connection with Engineer’s activities under this

Agreement.

6.10 Indemnification and Mutual Waiver

A.

Indemnification by Engineer: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,
Engineer shall indemnify and hold harmless Owner, and Owner’s officers, directors,
members, partners, agents, and employees, from losses, damages, and judgments (including
reasonable consultants’ and attorneys’ fees and expenses) arising from third-party claims or
actions relating to the Project, provided that any such claim, action, loss, damages, or
judgment is attributable to bodily injury, sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or
destruction of tangible property (other than the Work itself), including the loss of use
resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any negligent act or omission of
Engineer or Engineer’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees,
Subconsultants, or Engineer’s Subcontractors. This indemnification provision is subject to
and limited by the provisions, if any, agreed to by Owner and Engineer in Exhibit I,
“Limitations of Liability."

Environmental Indemnification: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations,
Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer, its Subconsultants, Engineer’s

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 16 of 26



Subcontractors, and their officers, directors, members, partners, agents, employees, and
subconsultants from all claims, costs, losses, damages, actions, and judgments (including
reasonable consultants’ and attorney’s fees and expenses) caused by, arising out of, relating
to, or resulting from a Constituent of Concern at, on, or under the Site, provided that:

1. any such claim, cost, loss, damages, action, or judgment is attributable to bodily injury,
sickness, disease, or death, or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than
the Work itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, and

2. nothing in this paragraph obligates Owner to indemnify any individual or entity from
and against the consequences of that individual's or entity's own negligence or willful
misconduct.

No Defense Obligation: The indemnification commitments in this Agreement do not include
a defense obligation by the indemnitor unless such obligation is expressly stated.

Percentage Share of Negligence: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, a
party’s total liability to the other party and anyone claiming by, through, or under the other
party for any cost, loss, or damages caused in part by the negligence of the party and in part
by the negligence of the other party or any other negligent entity or individual, will not
exceed the percentage share that the party’s negligence bears to the total negligence of
Owner, Engineer, and all other negligent entities and individuals.

Mutual Waiver: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner and Engineer
waive against each other, and the other’s officers, directors, members, partners, agents,
employees, subconsultants, and insurers, any and all claims for or entitlement to special,
incidental, indirect, or consequential damages arising out of, resulting from, or in any way
related to this Agreement or the Project, from any cause or causes. Such excluded damages
include but are not limited to loss of profits or revenue; loss of use or opportunity; loss of
good will; cost of substitute facilities, goods, or services; and cost of capital.

6.11 Records Retention

A.

Engineer shall maintain on file in legible form, for a period of five years following completion
or termination of its services, or such other period as required by Laws and Regulations, all
Documents, records (including cost records), and design calculations related to Engineer’s
services or pertinent to Engineer’s performance under this Agreement. Upon Owner’s
request, Engineer shall provide a copy of any such item to Owner at cost.

6.12 Miscellaneous Provisions

A.

Notices: Any notice required under this Agreement will be in writing, and delivered: in person
(by commercial courier or otherwise); by registered or certified mail; or by e-mail to the
recipient, with the words “Formal Notice” or similar in the e-mail’s subject line. All such
notices are effective upon the date of receipt.

Survival: Subject to applicable Laws and Regulations, all express representations, waivers,
indemnifications, and limitations of liability included in this Agreement will survive its
completion or termination for any reason.

Severability: Any provision or part of the Agreement held to be void or unenforceable under
any Laws or Regulations will be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions will continue
to be valid and binding upon Owner and Engineer.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 17 of 26



No Waiver: A party’s non-enforcement of any provision will not constitute a waiver of that
provision, nor will it affect the enforceability of that provision or of the remainder of this
Agreement.

Accrual of Claims: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, all causes of
action arising under this Agreement will be deemed to have accrued, and all statutory
periods of limitation will commence, no later than the date of Substantial Completion; or, if
Engineer’s services do not include Construction Phase services, or the Project is not
completed, then no later than the date of Owner’s last payment to Engineer.

ARTICLE 7—DEFINITIONS

7.01 Defined Terms

A

Wherever used in this Agreement (including the exhibits hereto) terms (including the singular
and plural forms) printed with initial capital letters have the meanings indicated in the text
above, in the exhibits, or in the following definitions:

1. Addenda—Written or graphic instruments issued prior to the opening of bids which
clarify, correct, or change the bidding requirements or the proposed Construction
Contract Documents.

2. Additional Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by
Engineer in accordance with Article 2 of Exhibit A of this Agreement.

3. Agreement—This written contract for professional services between Owner and
Engineer, including all exhibits identified in Paragraph 8.01 and any duly executed
amendments.

4. Application for Payment—The form acceptable to Engineer which is to be used by
Contractor during the course of the Work in requesting progress or final payments and
which is to be accompanied by such supporting documentation as is required by the
Construction Contract.

5. Basic Services—The services to be performed for or furnished to Owner by Engineer in
accordance with Article 1 of Exhibit A of this Agreement.

6. Bidding/Proposal Documents—Documents related to the selection of the Contractor,
including advertisements or invitations to bid; requests for proposals; instructions to
bidders or proposers, including any attachments such as lists of available Site-related
documents; bid forms; bids; proposal forms; proposals; bidding requirements; and
qualifications documents.

7. Change Order—A document which is signed by Contractor and Owner and authorizes
an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work or an adjustment in the Construction
Contract Price or the Construction Contract Times, or other revision to the Construction
Contract, issued on or after the effective date of the Construction Contract.

8. Change Proposal—A written request by Contractor, duly submitted in compliance with
the procedural requirements set forth in the Construction Contract, seeking an
adjustment in Construction Contract Price or Construction Contract Times, or both;
contesting an initial decision by Engineer concerning the requirements of the

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 18 of 26



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Construction Contract Documents or the acceptability of Work under the Construction
Contract Documents; challenging a set-off against payments due; or seeking other relief
with respect to the terms of the Construction Contract.

Constituents of Concern—Asbestos, petroleum, radioactive materials, polychlorinated
biphenyls (PCBs), lead-based paint (as defined by the HUD/EPA standard), hazardous
waste, and any substance, product, waste, or other material of any nature whatsoever
that is or becomes listed, regulated, or addressed pursuant to Laws and Regulations
regulating, relating to, or imposing liability or standards of conduct concerning, any
hazardous, toxic, or dangerous waste, substance, or material.

Construction Contract—The entire and integrated written contract between Owner and
Contractor concerning the Work.

Construction Contract Documents—Those items designated as “Contract Documents”
in the Construction Contract, and which together comprise the Construction Contract.
See also definition of “Front-End Construction Contract Documents” below.

Construction Contract Price—The money that Owner has agreed to pay Contractor for
completion of the Work in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.

Construction Contract Times—The number of days or the dates by which Contractor
must: (a) achieve milestones, if any, in the Construction Contract; (b) achieve
Substantial Completion; and (c) complete the Work.

Construction Cost—The cost to Owner of the construction of those portions of the
entire Project designed or specified by or for Engineer under this Agreement, including
construction labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs, and
allowances for contingencies. Construction Cost does not include costs of services of
Engineer or other design professionals and consultants; cost of land or rights-of-way, or
compensation for damages to property; Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance
counseling, or auditing services; interest or financing charges incurred in connection
with the Project; or the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.
Construction Cost is one of the items comprising Total Project Costs.

Constructor—Any person or entity (not including the Engineer, its employees, agents,
representatives, or Subconsultants, or Engineer’s Subcontractors), performing or
supporting construction activities relating to the Project, including but not limited to
Contractors, Subcontractors, Suppliers, Owner’s work forces, utility companies, other
contractors, construction managers, design-builders, testing firms, shippers, and
truckers, and the employees, agents, and representatives of any or all of them.

Contractor—The entity or individual with which Owner enters into a Construction
Contract.

Documents—AlIl documents expressly identified as deliverables in this Agreement,
whether in printed or Electronic Document form, required by this Agreement to be
provided or furnished by Engineer to Owner. Such specifically required deliverables may
include, by way of example, Drawings, Specifications, data, reports, building information
models, and civil integrated management models.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 19 of 26



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.
23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Drawings—That part of the Construction Contract Documents that graphically shows
the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed by Contractor.

Effective Date—The date indicated in this Agreement on which it becomes effective, but
if no such date is indicated, the date on which this Agreement is signed and delivered
by the last of the parties to sign and deliver.

Electronic Document—Any Project-related correspondence, attachments to
correspondence, data, documents, drawings, information, or graphics, including but not
limited to Shop Drawings and other Submittals, that are in an electronic or digital
format.

Electronic Means—Electronic mail (e-mail), upload/download from a secure Project
website, or other communications methods that allow: (a)the transmission or
communication of Electronic Documents; (b) the documentation of transmissions,
including sending and receipt; (c) printing of the transmitted Electronic Document by
the recipient; (d) the storage and archiving of the Electronic Document by sender and
recipient; and (e)the use by recipient of the Electronic Document for purposes
permitted by this Agreement. Electronic Means does not include the use of text
messaging, or of Facebook, Twitter, Instagram, or similar social media services for
transmission of Electronic Documents.

Engineer—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement.

Engineer’s Subcontractor—An individual, firm, vendor, or other entity having a contract
with Engineer to furnish general services, equipment, or materials with respect to the
Project as an independent contractor.

Field Order—A written order issued by Engineer which requires minor changes in the
Work but does not change the Construction Contract Price or the Construction Contract
Times.

Front-End Construction Contract Documents—Those Construction Contract Documents
whose primary purpose is to establish legal and contractual terms and conditions,
typically including the Owner-Contractor agreement, bonds, general conditions, and
supplementary conditions. The term excludes the Drawings and Specifications, and any
Construction Contract Documents delivered or issued after the effective date of the
Construction Contract.

Laws and Regulations; Laws or Regulations—Any and all applicable laws, statutes, rules,
regulations, ordinances, codes, and orders of any and all governmental bodies, agencies,
authorities, and courts having jurisdiction.

Owner—The individual or entity named as such in this Agreement and for which
Engineer's services are to be performed. Unless indicated otherwise, this is the same
individual or entity that will enter into any Construction Contracts concerning the
Project.

Project—The total undertaking to be accomplished for Owner by engineers, contractors,
and others, including planning, study, design, construction, testing, commissioning, and
start-up, and of which the services to be performed or furnished by Engineer under this
Agreement are a part.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 20 of 26



29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Record Drawings—Drawings depicting the completed Project, or a specific portion of
the completed Project, prepared by Engineer and based on Contractor's record copy of
all Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, Change Orders, Work Change Directives, Field
Orders, and written interpretations and clarifications, as delivered to Engineer and
annotated by Contractor to show changes made during construction.

Resident Project Representative—The authorized representative of Engineer assigned
to assist Engineer at the Site during the Construction Phase. As used herein, the term
Resident Project Representative (RPR) includes any assistants or field staff of the RPR.

Samples—Physical examples of materials, equipment, or workmanship that are
representative of some portion of the Work and that establish the standards by which
such portion of the Work will be judged.

Shop Drawings—All drawings, diagrams, illustrations, schedules, and other data or
information that are specifically prepared or assembled by or for Contractor and
submitted by Contractor to illustrate some portion of the Work. Shop Drawings,
whether approved or not, are not Drawings and are not Construction Contract
Documents.

Site—Lands or areas to be indicated in the Construction Contract Documents as being
furnished by Owner upon which the Work is to be performed, including rights-of-way
and easements, and such other lands furnished by Owner which are designated for the
use of Contractor.

Specifications—The part of the Construction Contract Documents that consists of
written requirements for materials, equipment, systems, standards, and workmanship
as applied to the Work, and certain administrative requirements and procedural matters
applicable to the Work.

Subconsultant—An individual, design firm, consultant, or other entity having a contract
with Engineer to furnish professional services with respect to the Project as an
independent contractor.

Subcontractor—An individual or entity having a direct contract with Contractor or with
any other Subcontractor for the performance of a part of the Work.

Submittal—A written or graphic document, prepared by or for Contractor, which the
Construction Contract Documents require Contractor to submit to Engineer, or that is
indicated as a Submittal in the Schedule of Submittals accepted by Engineer. Submittals
may include Shop Drawings and Samples; schedules; product data; Owner-delegated
designs; sustainable design information; information on special procedures; testing
plans; results of tests and evaluations, source quality-control testing and inspections,
and field or Site quality-control testing and inspections; warranties and certifications;
Suppliers’ instructions and reports; records of delivery of spare parts and tools;
operations and maintenance data; Project photographic documentation; record
documents; and other such documents required by the Construction Contract
Documents. Submittals, whether or not approved or accepted by Engineer, are not
Construction Contract Documents. Change Proposals, Change Orders, Claims, notices,
Applications for Payment, and requests for interpretation or clarification are not
Submittals.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 21 of 26



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

45.

Substantial Completion—The time at which the Work (or a specified part thereof) has
progressed to the point where, in the opinion of Engineer, the Work (or a specified part
thereof) is sufficiently complete, in accordance with the Construction Contract
Documents, so that the Work (or a specified part thereof) can be utilized for the
purposes for which it is intended. The terms “substantially complete” and “substantially
completed” as applied to all or part of the Work refer to Substantial Completion thereof.

Supplier—A manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, distributor, materialman, or vendor
having a direct contract with Contractor or with any Subcontractor to furnish materials
or equipment to be incorporated in the Work by Contractor or a Subcontractor.

Total Project Costs—The total cost of planning, studying, designing, constructing,
testing, commissioning, and start-up of the Project, including Construction Cost and all
other Project labor, services, materials, equipment, insurance, and bonding costs,
allowances for contingencies, and the total costs of services of Engineer or other design
professionals and consultants, together with such other Project-related costs that
Owner furnishes for inclusion, including but not limited to cost of land, rights-of-way,
compensation for damages to properties and private utilities (including relocation if not
part of Construction Cost), Owner’s costs for legal, accounting, insurance counseling,
and auditing services, interest and financing charges incurred in connection with the
Project, and the cost of other services to be provided by others to Owner.

Underground Facilities—All active or not-in-service underground lines, pipelines,
conduits, ducts, encasements, cables, wires, manholes, vaults, tanks, tunnels, or other
such facilities or systems at the Site, including but not limited to those facilities or
systems that produce, transmit, distribute, or convey telephone or other
communications, cable television, fiber optic transmissions, power, electricity, light,
heat, gases, oil, crude oil products, liquid petroleum products, water, steam, waste,
wastewater, storm water, other liquids or chemicals, or traffic or other control systems.
An abandoned facility or system is not an Underground Facility.

Work—The entire construction or the various separately identifiable parts thereof
required to be provided under the Construction Contract Documents. Work includes
and is the result of performing or providing all labor, services, and documentation
necessary to produce such construction; furnishing, installing, and incorporating all
materials and equipment into such construction; and may include related services such
as testing, start-up, and commissioning, all as required by the Construction Contract
Documents.

Work Change Directive—A written directive to Contractor issued on or after the
effective date of the Construction Contract, signed by Owner and recommended by
Engineer, ordering an addition, deletion, or revision in the Work.

Agency — The Rural Utilities Service or any designated representative of Rural Utilities
Service, including USDA, Rural Development.

Contractor’s Certification - A certification submitted by Contractor that, to the best of
the Contractor’s knowledge and belief, all Work complies with Domestic Preference
requirements.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 22 of 26



46. Domestic Preference — The Build America, Buy America Act (BABA) requirements
under Title IX of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IlJA), Pub. L. 117-58, §§
70901-70953, and in accordance with 2 CFR 184.

47. Manufacturer’s Certification - Documentation provided by the Manufacturer stating
that Domestic Preference requirements have been satisfied for all provided items.

B. Terminology
1. The word “day” means a calendar day of 24 hours measured from midnight to the next
midnight.
ARTICLE 8—EXHIBITS AND SPECIAL PROVISIONS

8.01  Exhibits to Agreement
The following exhibits are incorporated by reference and included as part of this Agreement:
A. Exhibit A, Engineer’s Services.
B. Exhibit B, Deliverables Schedule.
C. Exhibit C, Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement (form).
D

Exhibit D, Duties, Responsibilities and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project
Representative.

Exhibit E, EJCDC® C-626, Notice of Acceptability of Work (form).
Exhibit F — Not Used

Exhibit G, Insurance.

T o m m

Exhibit H, Dispute Resolution.

Exhibit I, Limitations of Liability.
J.  Exhibit J, Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
8.02  Total Agreement

A. This Agreement (which includes the exhibits listed above) constitutes the entire contractual
agreement between Owner and Engineer and supersedes all prior written or oral
understandings. This Agreement may only be amended, supplemented, modified, or
canceled by a written instrument duly executed by both parties. Amendments should be
based whenever possible on the format of Exhibit C to this Agreement.

8.03  Designated Representatives

A.  With the execution of this Agreement, Engineer and Owner shall each designate a specific
individual to act as representative under this Agreement. Such an individual must have
authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and render decisions with respect to
this Agreement on behalf of the party that the individual represents.

8.04  Engineer's Certifications

A. Engineer certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, or coercive practices in
competing for or in executing the Agreement. For the purposes of this Paragraph 8.04:

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 23 of 26



1. "corrupt practice" means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything of value
likely to influence the action of a public official in the selection process or in the
Agreement execution;

2. "fraudulent practice" means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the selection process or the execution of the Agreement to the detriment of
Owner, or (b) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

3. "coercive practice" means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the selection process or
affect the execution of the Agreement.

8.05  Conflict of Interest

A

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to create or impose any duty on the part of
Engineer that would be in conflict with Engineer’s paramount obligations to the public
health, safety, and welfare under the professional practice requirements governing Engineer,
its Subconsultants, and all licensed professionals employed by Engineer or its
Subconsultants.

If during the term of this Agreement a potential or actual conflict of interest arises or is
identified:

1. Engineer and Owner together will make reasonable, good faith efforts to avoid or
eliminate the conflict of interest; to mitigate any adverse consequences of the conflict
of interest; and, if necessary and feasible, to modify this Agreement to address the
conflict of interest and its consequences, such that progress under the Agreement may
continue.

2. Such efforts will be governed by applicable Laws and Regulations and by any pertinent
Owner’s policies, procedures, and requirements (including any conflict of interest
resolution methodologies) provided to Engineer under Paragraph 2.04.A of this
Agreement.

8.06  Federal Requirements

A.

Agency Concurrence. This Agreement shall not be effective unless the Funding Agency’s
designated representative concurs. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective
unless the Funding Agency’s designated representative concurs. Agency concurrence does
not constitute a commitment to provide financial assistance or payments hereunder but
does signify that this Agreement conforms to Agency’s applicable requirements.

Audit and Access to Records. Owner, Agency, the Comptroller General of the United States,
or any of their duly authorized representatives, shall have access to any books, documents,
papers, and records of the Engineer which are pertinent to the Agreement, for the purpose
of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. Engineer shall maintain all
required records for three years after final payment is made and all other pending matters
are closed.

Restrictions on Lobbying. Engineer and each Consultant shall comply with “Restrictions on
Lobbying” if they are recipients of engineering services contracts and subcontracts that
exceed $100,000 at any tier. If applicable, Engineer must complete a certification form on
lobbying activities related to a specific Federal loan or grant that is a funding source for this

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 24 of 26



Agreement. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal
appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to
influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, or an employee of
a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any
other applicable award. Each tier shall disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that
takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Certifications and disclosures
are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Owner. Necessary certification and disclosure
forms shall be provided by Owner.

Suspension and Debarment. Engineer certifies, by signing this Agreement, that neither it
nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency. Engineer will not contract with any Consultant for this project if it
or its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency. Necessary certification forms shall be provided by the Owner. The
Engineer will complete and submit a form AD-1048, “Certification Regarding Debarment,
Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion — lower tier transactions,” to the Owner.

Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment Prohibitions. The
telecommunication and video surveillance services and equipment prohibitions under 2
CFR 200.216 apply to this contract. This contract may not be used to procure or obtain
equipment, services, or systems that uses covered telecommunications equipment or
services as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as
part of any system. Covered telecommunications equipment is:

1. Telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or ZTE
Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such Entities).

2. Video surveillance and telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera
Communications Corporation, Hangzhou Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or
Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

3. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using
such equipment.

4. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director
of the National Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation,
reasonably believes to be an entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected
to, the government of a covered foreign country.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 25 of 26



This Agreement’s Effective Date is August XX, 2025.

Owner: Engineer:
City of Lamberton Bollig Inc
(name of organization) (name of organization)
By: By:
(individual’s signature) (individual’s signature)
Date: Date:
(date signed) (date signed)

Name: Lydell Sik Name: Brian F. Bollig

(typed or printed) (typed or printed)
Title: Mayor Title: President

(typed or printed) (typed or printed)

Attach evidence of authority to sign.

Attest:

(individual’s signature)

Title:

(typed or printed)
Address for giving notices:

City of Lamberton

Attach evidence of authority to sign.

Attest:

(individual’s signature)

Title:

(typed or printed)
Address for giving notices:

Bollig Inc

112 Second Avenue West, PO Box 356

1721 Technology Drive NE, Suite 100

Lamberton, MN 56152

Willmar, MN 56201

Designated Representative:

Name: Valerie Halter

(typed or printed)

Title: Clerk/Treasurer/Administrator
(typed or printed)

Address:

City of Lamberton

Designated Representative:

Name: Brian F. Bollig

(typed or printed)
Title: President

(typed or printed)
Address:
Bollig Inc

112 Second Avenue West, PO Box 356

1721 Technology Drive NE, Suite 100

Lamberton, MN 56152

Willmar, MN 56201

Phone: 507-752-7601

Email: vhalter@lambertonmn.com

Phone: 320-235-2555

Email: bbollig@bollig-engineering.com

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 26 of 26



This document has important legal consequences; consultation with an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its use or modification. This document should be adapted to the particular circumstances of
the contemplated Project and the controlling Laws and Regulations.

EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services, is published in two
parts: (1) the E-500 Agreement form, and (2) this Exhibits document, consisting of the standard exhibits
used with E-500. The first of the two parts contains a Guidelines for Use section that pertains to both the
Agreement form and the Exhibits.

EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

Prepared By

EJCDC

ENGINEERS JOINT CONTRACT
DOCUMENTS COMMITTEE

ACEC

AmERICAN COUNCIL OF ENGINEERING COMPANIES

T

ASCE

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

NSP= * NATIONAL SOCIETY OF
(= PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERS

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).



Copyright® 2020

National Society of Professional Engineers
1420 King Street, Alexandria, VA 22314-2794
(703) 684-2882

WWW.NSPe.org

American Council of Engineering Companies
1015 15th Street N.W., Washington, DC 20005
(202) 347-7474

WWwWw.acec.org

American Society of Civil Engineers
1801 Alexander Bell Drive, Reston, VA 20191-4400
(800) 548-2723

WWWw.asce.org

The copyright for this EJCDC document is owned jointly by the three sponsoring organizations listed
above. The National Society of Professional Engineers is the Copyright Administrator for the EJCDC
documents; please direct all inquiries regarding EJCDC copyrights to NSPE.

The use of this document is governed by the terms of the
License Agreement for the 2019 EJCDC® Engineering Series Documents.

NOTE: EJCDC publications may be purchased at www.ejcdc.org,
or from any of the sponsoring organizations above.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).


http://www.nspe.org/
http://www.acec.org/
http://www.asce.org/
http://www.ejcdc.org/

EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN OWNER AND ENGINEER
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXHIBIT A—ENGINEER’S SERVICES
EXHIBIT B—DELIVERABLES SCHEDULE
EXHIBIT C—AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT

EXHIBIT D—DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF RESIDENT PROJECT
REPRESENTATIVE

EXHIBIT E—EJCDC® C-626, NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

EXHIBIT F—NOT USED

EXHIBIT F—NOT USED

EXHIBIT G—INSURANCE

EXHIBIT H—DISPUTE RESOLUTION

EXHIBIT I[—LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES: INTRODUCTION
COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1: BASIC SERVICES—LUMP SUM

COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1: ADDITIONAL SERVICES—STANDARD HOURLY RATES

APPENDIX 1: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES SCHEDULE
APPENDIX 2: STANDARD HOURLY RATES SCHEDULE

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

TOCPage 1of1



EXHIBIT A—ENGINEER’S SERVICES

Exhibit A Table of Contents

Article 1— BASIC SERVICES ....coiioiiieeeeitie ettt ee ettt e e stee e e et e e e et ae e e s sstee e e snaaeaeensaeassnnsseeesansseneenn 2
1.01 Management of ENGINEEIING SEIVICES ...ccccuiiiiiiciiiie ettt e earr e e e s nra e e e 2
1.02  Study and REPOIt PRASE......uviiiciiiee ettt ettt e e e s rate e e e s rate e e e snta e e e sntaeeesanes 3
1.03  Preliminary DeSIN PRase......ccccciiii i cccieee ettt ettt e et e e e eate e e e sate e e e sntaeeesntaeeesanes 6
1.04  FiNal DESIZN PRaSE......uuiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt e ettt e e e ettt e e e eata e e e esataeeesnsbeeeennnsaeeean 11
1.05 Bidding/Proposal PRase ......cccueeiiieiiiieiiiee ettt ectee et e vt eeetre e e teeeeateesteeeeaaeesabeesneeesareean 15
1.06  CONSErUCTION PRASE ...oouiiiiiiiii ettt ettt st s e 16
1.07  POSt-CONSErUCLION PRase ...c...coiiiiiieiieieesieeste ettt st st 24

Article 2— ADDITIONAL SERVICES .......ooiuiiiieeeteeteertee sttt ettt ettt st s be e esmee st emeeeneeas 24
2.01 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization ...........cccoceeeeevieeeennen. 24
2.02 Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization .........ccccceeeviiivieeeeeeeeeccnnns 26

Article 1 of the Agreement, Services of Engineer, is supplemented to include the following provisions:

Baseline Information: Owner has furnished the following Project information to Engineer as of the
Effective Date. Engineer’s scope of services has been developed based on this information. As the Project
moves forward, some of the information may change or be refined, and additional information will
become known, resulting in the possible need to change, refine, or supplement the scope of services.

Project Title:

Lamberton 2025 Grove St. Improvements

Type and Size of Facility:

Description of Improvements:  Utility Improvements
Expected Construction Start: 2026

Prior Studies, Reports, Plans:

Facility Location(s): Lamberton, MN
Current Project Budget: $1,819,000 (total project cost)
Funding Sources: USDA Rural Development

Known Design Standards:
Known Project Limitations:
Project Assumptions:

Other Pertinent Information:

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 1 of 29



Engineer shall provide Basic and Additional Services as set forth below.

ARTICLE 1—BASIC SERVICES

1.01 Management of Engineering Services

A.

All phases of Engineer’s services will include management of Engineer’s Project-specific
responsibilities, including but not limited to the following management tasks, whether
separately tracked and itemized or included as being incidental to other phase and scope
task items.

1.

Develop and submit an Engineering Services Schedule. The Engineering Services
Schedule will:

a. be consistent with and serve as a supplement to the Schedule of Deliverables set
forth in Exhibit B.

b. be updated on a regular basis, and as required to reflect any programmatic
decisions by Owner.

c. include, but not be limited to, an anticipated sequence of tasks; estimates of task
duration; interrelationships among tasks; milestone meetings and submittals;
anticipated schedule of construction; and other pertinent Project events.

Develop and submit detailed work plans from Exhibit A tasks.

Coordinate services within Engineer’s internal team, and with Subconsultants and
Engineer’s Subcontractors.

Prepare for and participate in meetings with consultants and contractors working on
other parts of the Project that may affect, or be affected by, Engineer’s services or
resulting construction.

Prepare and submit monthly, as needed, engineering services progress reports to the
Owner. Include summary of services performed in period, expected progress in next
period, percent completion of current tasks, and a description of major issues or
concerns.

Special Invoicing: In addition to, or as a substitute for, Engineer’s standard invoicing,
provide the specified additional information or documentation, following the invoicing
procedures indicated: Not Applicable.

Conduct ongoing management tasks, including:

a. Maintaining communications records and files pertaining to or arising from
Engineer’s services;

b. With respect to Engineer’s services and other directly relevant parts of the Project,
prepare for and participate in periodic progress meetings with Owner to discuss
progress, schedule, budget, issues, potential problems and their resolution; and

c. Preparing agendas prior to and minutes following all Engineer-led meetings.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 2 of 29



B. In all phases of Engineer’s services, Engineer shall prepare draft and final Drawings in
accordance with Engineer's CAD standards, using Autocad Civil 3D 2023.

C. The source documents for the draft and final Specifications in all phases of Engineer’s
services will be Engineer’s standard specifications, unless otherwise mutually agreed upon
by the parties.

D. In all phases of Engineer’s services, Engineer is responsible for Domestic Preference
compliance documentation for the project. This includes but is not limited to:

1. Obtaining manufacturers' certifications for items specified by Engineer as sole source.

2. Verifying and certifying that all items subject to Domestic Preference specified in the
contract are available domestically or are covered by a waiver.

3. Reviewing change order proposals, shop drawings, payment applications, proposed
substitutes and “or-equals,” and any other submittals to ensure Manufacturer
Certifications are submitted for all items subject to Domestic Preference
requirements.

4. Ensuring that all Manufacturers’ Certifications provided by the contractor comply with
Domestic Preference requirements.

5. Maintaining all Domestic Preference documentation throughout the project and
providing Contractor’s and Manufacturers’ Certifications to Owner upon final
completion of the Work. Provide a copy of the Contractor’s Certification to Agency.

6. Certifying, upon final completion of the Work, that the project complies with Domestic
Preference requirements (signing EJCDC C-626 Notice of Acceptability of Work will
suffice for this certification).

E. In all phases of Engineer’s services, Engineer is responsible for ensuring the project does
not violate the prohibitions on telecommunication and video surveillance services and
equipment under 2 CFR 200.216.

1.02  Study and Report Phase
A. Engineer shall:

1. Consult with Owner to define and clarify Owner’s requirements for the Project,
including design objectives and constraints, space, capacity and performance
requirements, flexibility, and expandability, and any budgetary limitations, and identify
available data, information, reports, facilities plans, and site evaluations.

a. If Owner has already identified one or more potential solutions to meet its Project
requirements, then proceed with the study and evaluation of the Owner-identified
potential solutions listed here:

1) None

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 3 of 29



10.

In addition, Engineer must identify, study, and evaluate multiple potential
alternative solutions potentially available to Owner, unless Owner and Engineer
mutually agree with Agency concurrence that only one feasible solution exists.
The number of alternative solutions should be appropriate to the specific project
as concurred in by the Agency.

Deleted

Identify potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements, as needed.
Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet Owner’s Project requirements.

Visit the Site, or potential Project sites, to review existing conditions and facilities, unless
such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and
Report Phase.

Assess initially available Project information and data, including the Baseline
Information set forth at the beginning of this Exhibit A.

Advise Owner of any need for Owner to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to
Engineer additional Project-related information and data, for Engineer’s use in the study
and evaluation of potential solution(s) to Owner’s Project requirements, and
preparation of a related report.

After consultation with Owner, recommend the solution(s) which in Engineer’s
judgment meet Owner’s requirements for the Project.

Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of authorities having jurisdiction to
permit or approve construction or operation of the portions of the Project to be
designed or specified by Engineer, including but not limited to impacts and mitigating
measures identified in previously prepared environmental assessments for the Project
provided to the Engineer or being concurrently prepared for Owner by others.

Advise the Owner of any need for Owner to provide data or services of the types
described in Article 2 of the Agreement, for use in Project design, or in preparation for
Contractor selection and construction.

Assist Owner in evaluating the possible use of building information modeling; civil
integrated management; geotechnical baselining of subsurface conditions at the Site;
innovative design, contracting, or procurement strategies; project delivery method; or
other strategies, technologies, or techniques for assisting in the design, construction,
and operation of Owner’s facilities. The subject matter of this paragraph will be referred
to in Exhibit A as “Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques.”

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 4 of 29



11.

12.

13.

14.

Assist Owner in identifying opportunities for enhancing the sustainability of the Project,
and pursuant to Owner’s instructions, plan for the inclusion of sustainable features in
the design.

Review with Owner the thresholds established in applicable codes, standards, and
design criteria specifically governing the ability of the proposed facilities or
improvements to perform, and to absorb or avoid damage without suffering complete
or substantial failure. As part of the review, identify additional risk assessment studies
or tools that are available to evaluate the susceptibility of the facilities orimprovements
to natural and man-made events beyond the applicable established thresholds. Upon
Owner request, as an additional service, perform additional risk assessment studies or
tools to further evaluate system resiliency beyond the applicable established
thresholds.

Utilities, including Underground Facilities

a. Review any utility mapping and surveys and other utilities documentation made
available by Owner. Take note of observable utilities during Site visit.

b. Identify, in a preliminary manner and to the extent determinable by such mapping
or other information provided by Owner, and by observations at the Site, those
utilities (whether above-ground utilities of any type, or Underground Facilities)
likely to be affected by the Project construction and additional utility facilities or
extensions that will be needed to serve the Project.

c. If the impact on existing utilities or the need for additional utility facilities or
extensions cannot reasonably be determined in a preliminary manner from
mapping or other information provided by Owner, or such information was not
available from Owner, then assist Owner in evaluating the need to either obtain
additional utility mapping and utility documentation during the Study and Report
Phase, or undertake other alternative approaches and contingencies to account for
utility uncertainties in this phase.

d. Advise Owner of additional utility documentation and coordination needed during
the design and construction phases to adequately assess, mitigate, and manage the
impact of the Project (including any additional utility facilities or extensions needed
to serve the Project) on existing utilities.

e. Use ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing
Subsurface Utility Data” as a means to advise the Owner regarding the extent and
identification and mapping of existing Underground Facilities during the design and
construction phases.

1) If Owner has retained a land surveyor, utility engineer, or utility consultant,
collaborate with such individuals or entities regarding the application of
ASCE 38.

Inquire regarding survey methodologies and technologies that would aid in addressing
Owner’s Project requirements. Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any
topographic and other surveys necessary for design. For recommended survey
deliverables, specify a) required technical specifications; b) pertinent datum; c) survey

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 5 of 29



limits, and d) formats of deliverables. Collaborate with land surveyor, when separately
retained by Owner or third party, to develop such scope of work.

15. Prepare a report (the “Report”) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts,
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the
agreed-to requirements, considerations involved, and Engineer’s recommended
solution(s).

a. For each recommended solution, Engineer will separately tabulate Total Project
Cost, itemizing those items and services included within the definition of Total
Project Costs.

b. Engineer will meet with Owner to discuss the draft Report and receive Owner’s
comments.

c. This Report is the Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) defined in RUS Bulletin
1780-2. This document must meet customary professional standards as required
by 7 CFR 1780.55. The Report must be concurred in by the Agency. Cost estimates
in the PER should reflect compliance with Domestic Preference requirements.
This will be certified by stating in the transmittal letter with the PER, “The cost
estimates for this project include the costs of Domestic Preference compliance.”

16. Perform or provide the following other Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables:

a. Provide the appropriate environmental documentation as required by 7 CFR
1970. This documentation must be concurred in by the Agency.

b. Not Applicable.

17. Furnish the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables to Owner
pursuant to the requirements of the Deliverables Schedule in Exhibit B, and review the
deliverables with Owner.

18. Revise the Report and any other Study and Report Phase deliverables in response to
Owner’s and Agency’s comments, as appropriate, and submit revised deliverables
pursuant to the Deliverables Schedule.

Engineer’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on the
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Report (as revised) and any other Study
and Report Phase deliverables.

1.03  Preliminary Design Phase

A.

After acceptance by Owner and concurrence by Agency of the Report and any other Study
and Report Phase deliverables (if Engineer’s services under this Agreement included Study
and Report Phase services); selection by Owner of a recommended solution; issuance by
Owner of any instructions for use of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, or for
inclusion of sustainable features in the design, or enhanced resiliency of the design;
indication by Owner of any specific modifications or changes in the scope, extent, character,
or design requirements of the Project desired by Owner; and any necessary changes,
refinements, and supplementation of the Baseline Information set forth at the beginning of
this Exhibit A, Engineer and Owner shall discuss, resolve, and document in writing any
necessary revisions to Engineer’s scope of services, compensation (through application of

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 6 of 29



the provisions regarding Additional Services, or otherwise), and the time for completion of
Engineer’s services, resulting from the selected solution, related Project Strategies,
Technologies, or Techniques, sustainable design and resiliency instructions, specific
modifications to the Project, or changes, refinements, or supplementation of the Baseline
Information. Any resulting changes to Engineer’s scope of services will be subject to Agency
concurrence.

Upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall:

1.

Review and assess all available Project information and data, including any pertinent
reports or studies (whether prepared by Engineer or others) and any related instructions
from Owner.

Based on the threshold review and assessment of available information and data, advise
Owner of any need for Owner to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to
Engineer any additional information and data, for Engineer’s use in the preparation of a
Preliminary Design Phase Report.

Prepare a Preliminary Design Phase Report in the following format: PDF(s) of applicable
documents.

The Preliminary Design Phase Report will consist of final design criteria, preliminary
drawings, a preliminary list of expected specifications, and written descriptions of the
Project. The Preliminary Design Phase Report will consider the following matters to the
extent applicable to the Project and as necessary to establish the basis of design for
proceeding to final design and construction:

a. The Project concept, intent, performance criteria, desired outcomes, Owner’s
standards and Owner directed improvements and facility elements as established
in the Study and Report Phase and as expressly set forth in the Baseline Information
section of this Exhibit A (collectively the “Project Goals”).

b. Recommended appropriate design criteria for each primary portion and significant
discipline of the design necessary to address the Project Goals.

c. Site conditions and characterization as known at the time of, or to be determined
during, the Preliminary Design Phase, including topography; subsurface
information; Constituents of Concern; cultural, historical, and archaeological
resources at the Site; wetlands information; and evaluations of flora and fauna that
may be affected by the Project.

d. The time schedule for completion of the Project in accordance with Project Goals,
including any recommended changes to the time required to complete the Final
Design Phase (as set forth in Exhibit B, Deliverables Schedule) and estimated
schedule(s) for construction.

e. ldentification of major items of materials and equipment, rationale for selection
with consideration of quality, suitability, pricing, sourcing, regulatory, and bidding
issues affecting recommended selection.

f.  Revised opinions of probable Construction Cost.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 7 of 29



g. The impact of Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques, sustainable
features, and enhanced resiliency selected by Owner for inclusion in the Project on
the Project Goals, schedule and probable Construction Cost, including impact of
multiple prime construction contracts, separate procurement of materials or
equipment, and other alternate project delivery methods when the Project Goals
necessitate and Owner authorizes;

h. Construction Phase quality assurance and quality control needs affecting
development of Drawings and Specifications and other Final Design and Bidding
Phase documents.

i.  The effect of permits and authorizations by other entities and utility coordination
needs on the Project.

j. Other matters and information pertinent to addressing the Project Goals.

In preparing the Preliminary Design Phase Report, use any specific applicable Project
Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques authorized by Owner and Agency during or
following the Study and Report Phase, and include sustainable features and enhanced
resiliency, as appropriate, pursuant to Owner’s instructions.

Visit the Site as needed to prepare the Preliminary Design Phase Report.

If at any point in the Preliminary Design Phase it becomes apparent to Engineer that
additional reports, data, information, or services of the types described in Article 2 are
necessary, then so advise Owner, and assist Owner in obtaining such reports, data,
information, or services.

Above-Ground Utilities

a. Review above-ground utilities information obtained from Owner and from
observations at the Site.

b. Make recommendations regarding any further identification, investigation, and
mapping of above-ground utilities at or adjacent to the Site, for Engineer’s design
purposes or otherwise.

c. Account for above-ground utilities, based on available information, when
advancing design during the Preliminary Design Phase.

Underground Facilities

a. Review Underground Facilities data furnished by Owner. Assist Owner in reducing
and managing risks associated with Underground Facilities by working together
with Owner to jointly establish a procedure (“Underground Facilities Procedure”)
for the further identification, investigation, and mapping of Underground Facilities
at or adjacent to the Site, using ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and
Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data,” as a basis for establishing such
Underground Facilities Procedure.

b. Such Underground Facilities Procedure must take into account the Site and the
nature of the Project.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 8 of 29



Use the Underground Facilities Procedure to aid in the performance of design
services:

1) Account for Underground Facilities, based on available information, when
advancing the design during the Preliminary Design Phase.

2) The Underground Facilities Procedure will include a plan to keep Underground
Facilities information current as Engineer proceeds with the provision of
design services, and to add new or relocated Underground Facilities
information to the base utility or Site drawings.

3) To manage the potential impact of design changes on Underground Facilities,
Engineer shall work together with Owner to modify or reapply the
Underground Facilities Procedure as the design progresses and changes.

10. Mitigation of Utilities Conflicts

a.

Identify potential conflicts between the Project (including existing and new
facilities and structures) and above-ground utilities and Underground Facilities as
reviewed in Exhibit A Paragraphs 1.03.B.8 and 9 above, and advise Owner
regarding the need for resolution of such conflicts with utility and Underground
Facilities owners and permit agencies. Identify the potential need for the relocation
of existing above-ground utilities and Underground Facilities.

Update the Underground Facilities Procedure as necessary for any Underground
Utilities conflicts and relocations.

Working together with Owner, jointly identify which specific parties or other
entities will be responsible for implementation of the various specific parts of the
Underground Facilities Procedure (including those parts that address resolution of
Underground Facilities conflicts), and for resolution of above-ground utilities
conflicts. Such identification will take into account Owner’s authority and standing,
as owner of the Site, with respect to Underground Facilities and above-ground
utilities.

1) To the extent that Owner and Engineer agree that in addition to performing
the design-related obligations set forth in Exhibit A Paragraphs 1.03.B.8 and 9,
Engineer will also implement any non-design part of the Underground
Facilities Procedure (including resolution of Underground Facilities conflicts),
or undertake resolution of above-ground utilities conflicts, such additional
duties will be Additional Services under Article 2 of this Exhibit A.

11. Surveys, Topographic Mapping, and Utility Documentation

a.

Coordinate with Owner’s utility engineer, utility consultant, or land surveyor for
the necessary field surveys, topographic mapping, and utility documentation
required for Engineer’s design purposes, or by the Underground Facilities
Procedure.

If no scope of work and procedure for utility documentation has been established,
selected, or authorized, then at a minimum Engineer will contact utility owners and
obtain available information. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement,

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 9 of 29



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Owner acknowledges that the information gathered from utility owners may be
incorrect, incomplete, outdated, or otherwise flawed, and as to Engineer, bidders,
and Contractor, the Owner accepts all associated risks. Owner reserves all
associated rights as to recourse against the sources of such flawed information and
against third parties.

Prepare initial draft of a comprehensive permit document that identifies Owner’s permit
duties, Engineer’s permit duties, and Contractor’s permit duties, and the schedule for
permitting activities.

Continue to assist Owner with Project Strategies, Technologies, and Techniques that
Owner has chosen to implement in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.03.A.

Obtain Owner’s instructions regarding Owner’s procurement of construction services
(including instructions regarding advertisements for bids, instructions to bidders, and
requests for proposals, as applicable), Owner’s construction contract practices and
requirements, insurance and bonding requirements, electronic transmittals during
construction, and other information necessary for the finalization of Owner’s
Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End Construction Contract Documents.
Engineer must also incorporate all Agency regulations, forms, and design and
construction standards applicable to the project in development of the documents
indicated in this Article.

a. Also obtain copies of Owner’s standard Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-
End Construction Contract Documents (if other than the EJCDC 2018 Construction
Series documents), and any other related documents or content for Engineer to
include in drafts of the Project-specific Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End
Construction Contract Documents, when applicable.

b. Review Owner’s instructions regarding procurement, bidding and contracting of
construction services with respect to effects on the Project design, schedule and
construction and address as needed in the Preliminary Design Phase deliverables.

Prepare the Preliminary Design Phase Report. This Report will consist of, as appropriate,
separate or combined submittals in whole or summary, the Preliminary Design Phase
documents listed in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.03.B.4, and Engineer’s findings and
recommendations for advancing the Project to the Final Design Phase (including
Engineer’s findings and recommendations, if any, regarding permitting, utilities, and
Underground Facilities). The submittal will be in the format of a report, or otherwise
organized and assembled for ease and practicality of use.

a. Based on the information contained in the Preliminary Design Phase documents,
prepare a revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and on the basis of
information furnished by Owner, assist Owner in tabulating the various cost
categories which comprise Total Project Costs.

b. Engineer will meet with Owner to discuss the draft Preliminary Design Phase
submittal and receive Owner’s comments.

Perform or provide the following other Preliminary Design Phase tasks or deliverables:

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 10 of 29



a. None.

17. Furnish the Preliminary Design Phase Report, opinion of probable Construction Cost,
and any other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables to Owner pursuant to the
requirements of the Deliverables Schedule in Exhibit B, and review the deliverables with
Owner.

18. Revise the Report and any other deliverables in response to Owner’s comments, as
appropriate, and submit revised deliverables pursuant to the Deliverables Schedule.

Engineer’s services under the Preliminary Design Phase will be considered complete on the
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Preliminary Design Phase Report (as
revised) and associated documents, revised opinion of probable Construction Cost, and any
other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables.

1.04  Final Design Phase

A

After acceptance by Owner of the Preliminary Design Phase Report and any other Preliminary
Design Phase deliverables; issuance by Owner of any instructions for specific modifications
or changes in the scope, extent, character, or design requirements of the Project desired by
Owner; and any necessary changes, refinements, and supplementation of the Baseline
Information set forth at the beginning of this Exhibit A, Engineer and Owner shall discuss,
resolve, and document any necessary revisions to Engineer’s scope of services,
compensation (through application of the provisions regarding Additional Services, or
otherwise), and the time for completion of Engineer’s services, resulting from specific
modifications to the Project, or changes, refinements, or supplementation of the Baseline
Information.

1. The number of prime contracts for Work designed or specified by Engineer upon which
the Engineer’s compensation has been established under this Agreement is one (1). If
more prime contracts are awarded, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable increase
in its compensation under this Agreement.

2. If more than one prime construction contract is to be awarded for the Work designed
or specified by Engineer, then Owner shall define and set forth (in an exhibit to this
Agreement, or in a subsequent document) the duties, responsibilities, and limitations
of authority of a person or entity that will have authority and responsibility for
coordinating the activities among the various prime Contractors, and any resulting
changes in the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer.

3. In the event that the Work designed or specified by Engineer is to be performed or
furnished under more than one prime construction contract, or if Engineer’s services
are to be separately sequenced with the work of one or more separate design
professional consultants or prime Contractors (such as in the case of fast-tracking),
Owner and Engineer shall, prior to commencement of the Final Design Phase, develop
a schedule for performance of Engineer’s services during the Final Design,
Bidding/Proposal, Construction, and Post-Construction Phases in order to sequence and
coordinate properly such services as are applicable under such separate prime
construction contracts. This schedule is to be prepared and included in or become an

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 11 of 29



amendment to Exhibit A whether or not the work under such construction contracts is
to proceed concurrently.

Upon written authorization from Owner, Engineer shall prepare final Drawings and
Specifications indicating the scope, extent, and character of the Work to be performed and
furnished by Contractor, in accordance with the Preliminary Design Phase Report (as revised)
and other Preliminary Design Phase deliverables. As part of the preparation of the Drawings
and Specifications, Engineer shall prepare interim drafts and final Drawings and
Specifications as follows, pursuant to the Deliverables Schedule in Exhibit B:

1. First Final Design Phase draft of all Drawings and Specifications.

2. Second Final Design Phase draft of all Drawings and Specifications, addressing Owner
comments and including appropriate design advancement.

3. Final Drawings and Specifications that address Owner and Agency comments; complete
the design; are suitable for estimating and pricing by prospective Contractors; and are
complete and ready for construction.

In preparing the Specifications (and any bidding, contract, or other documents that are part
of Engineer’s scope of services), Engineer shall obtain from Owner or Owner’s legal counsel
and Agency any relevant constraints such as requirements for use of domestic steel and iron,
other domestic purchasing requirements, statutory restrictions on utilizing proprietary
specifying methods, and the like, and comply with or account for such constraints in drafting
Specifications, Bidding/Proposal Documents, and other Project documents.

Engineer shall prepare or assemble draft Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End
Construction Contract Documents as follows:

1. Such documents will be based on the 2018 EJCDC Construction Documents, and on the
specific bidding or Contractor selection-related instructions and forms, contract forms,
text, or other content received from Owner.

2.  When Engineer is required to use other than the 2018 EJCDC Construction Documents,
then as required in the Preliminary Design Phase Owner will furnish to Engineer a copy
of the required documents to be used for the Project’s Bidding/Proposal Documents
and Front-End Construction Contract Documents. Prior to the first Final Design Phase
submittal, Engineer will review the bidding and contracting documents furnished by
Owner and provide comments to Owner. Engineer will meet with Owner to discuss
Engineer’'s comments. Owner will consider Engineer’s recommendations to revise
Owner’s documents for the Project.

3. Engineer will furnish to Owner, for review by Owner’s legal counsel, the draft
Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End Construction Contract Documents. Owner
and Owner’s legal counsel must transmit to Engineer, in a timely manner, one
coordinated set of comments and revisions to the draft documents.

4. Engineer will furnish to Agency the draft Bidding/Proposal Documents and Front-End
Construction Contract Documents for review and concurrence.

During the Final Design Phase the Engineer shall continue to account for above-ground
utilities and Underground Facilities as the design advances and is finalized. This may include:

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 12 of 29



1. performing the services assigned to Engineer under the Underground Facilities
Procedure described in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.03 above, including but not limited to the
design-related tasks in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.03.B.9.

2. addressing required and proposed activities or mitigations identified in the analysis of
utilities and by the Underground Facilities Procedure as having an impact on the final
design, and considering such in preparing the Drawings and Specifications.

F. Engineer shall perform or furnish the following other Final Design Phase services:

1. Visit the Site as needed to assist in preparing the final Drawings and Specifications.

2. Assist with or prepare applications for permits and approvals, as follows:

a.

Update comprehensive permit document created in Preliminary Design Phase for
Final Design detail.

Prepare the following applications for Owner’s submittal to authorities having
jurisdiction over the construction or operation of the Project:

1) Minnesota Department of Health Plan Review

Confer with Owner regarding revisions, if any, to the application(s), and make
appropriate revisions to the application(s) for Owner’s resubmittal to the authority
having jurisdiction.

Provide technical criteria, written descriptions, and design data for Owner’s use in
filing applications for permits from or approvals of the authorities having
jurisdiction listed above, including applications for review or approval of the final
design.

Identify and indicate in the Construction Contract Documents the permits and
approvals for which Contractor will be responsible, including work permits, building
permits, and other permits and approvals that will be Contractor’s responsibility;
and, in addition, indicate those permits initially obtained by Owner for which
Contractor will be a co-permittee, together with associated requirements.

Unless expressly indicated otherwise, Engineer’s scope and budget includes
attending one meeting or conference call with each permit and approval-issuing
agency to discuss the Project and receive the agency’s comments on the
application.

Engineer does not guarantee issuance of any required permit or approval.

Fees charged by authorities having jurisdiction for such permits or approvals are
the responsibility of Owner.

3. Advise Owner of any recommended adjustments to the opinion of probable
Construction Cost. Furnish to Owner an updated opinion of probable Construction Cost
with the interim and final deliverables of the Drawings and Specifications.

4, After consultation with Owner, include in the Front-End Construction Contract
Documents any Electronic Document Protocol addressing specific protocols for the
transmittal of Project-related correspondence, documents, text, data, drawings,

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 13 of 29



8.

information, and graphics, in electronic media or digital format, either directly, or
through access to a secure Project website.

Assist Owner in assembling known reports and drawings of Site conditions, and in
identifying the technical data contained in such reports and drawings upon which
bidders or other prospective contractors may rely.

Review the preliminary schedule for the Construction Phase and advise Owner when
initial understanding of the Construction Contract Times must or should be revised, and
furnish Owner with recommendations on revisions to the proposed Construction
Contract Times.

Engineer’s project manager and other appropriate staff will participate in the following
meetings and conference calls if requested by Owner:

a. First draft design review meeting at Owner’s office.
b. Second draft design review meeting at Owner’s office.
c. None

d. Engineer will prepare and distribute minutes of each such meeting and conference
call, indicating attendees, topics discussed, decisions made, and action items for
follow-up.

Perform or provide the following other Final Design Phase activities or deliverables:

a. None

G. Engineer shall complete the Final Design Phase as follows:

1.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Deliverables Schedule in Exhibit B, furnish for
review by Owner, its legal counsel, and other advisors, the final Drawings and
Specifications (as set forth in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.04.B.3 above); assembled drafts of
other Construction Contract Documents including the draft Front-End Construction
Contract Documents; the draft Bidding/Proposal Documents; the most recent opinion
of probable Construction Cost; and any other Final Design Phase deliverables, and
review the deliverables with Owner. The Engineer shall identify the building codes and
accessibility standards used in the design and indicate them on the drawings and
specifications and certify that the final drawings and specifications comply with those
standards.

Revise the final Design Phase deliverables in response to Owner’s comments, as
appropriate, and submit revised deliverables pursuant to the Deliverables Schedule.

Provide the Owner and Agency with a written certification that the final Drawings and
Specifications, other assembled construction Contract Documents, bidding-related
documents (or requests for proposals or other construction procurement documents),
and any other Final Design Phase deliverables comply with all requirements of Agency.

Engineer’s services under the Final Design Phase will be considered complete on the
date when Engineer has delivered to Owner the final Drawings and Specifications;
assembled drafts of the Front-End Construction Contract Documents; the draft
Bidding/Proposal Documents; and any other Final Design Phase deliverables, as revised.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 14 of 29



1.05

Bidding/Proposal Phase

A.

After acceptance by Owner and Agency of the final Drawings and Specifications; assembled
drafts of other Construction Contract Documents, including the draft Front-End Construction
Contract Documents; the draft Bidding/Proposal Documents; the most recent opinion of
probable Construction Cost as determined in the Final Design Phase, and any other Final
Design Phase deliverables, and upon written authorization by Owner to proceed, Engineer
shall:

1.

Assist Owner in advertising for and obtaining bids or proposals for the Work; assist
Owner in issuing assembled Bidding/Proposal Documents and proposed Construction
Contract Documents to prospective contractors; if applicable, maintain a record of
prospective contractors to which documents have been issued; attend pre-bid
conferences, if any; and receive and process contractor deposits or charges, if any, for
the issued documents.

a. Information regarding bidding will be available at the Owner’s office, Engineer’s
office, QuestCDN website, Bollig Inc website, Owner’s legal newspaper, and
Builders Exchange Plan Rooms.

Prepare and issue addenda as appropriate to clarify, correct, or change the issued
documents. Obtain Agency concurrence on any Addenda that modify the Bidding
Documents. Obtain prior concurrence when possible.

Evaluate and determine the acceptability of “or equals” and substitute materials and
equipment proposed by prospective contractors prior to award of contracts for the
Work. Issue a bid addendum for any and all approved “or equals” and substitutes.
Review of substitutes and “or equals” will be in accordance with the General
Conditions of the Construction Contract and applicable Agency requirements. Services
under this paragraph are subject to the provisions of Exhibit A Paragraph A2.01.A.2.

Attend the bid opening; prepare bid tabulation sheets; and assist Owner in evaluating
bids or proposals, assembling final Construction Contracts for the Work for execution
by Owner and Contractor, and in preparing notices of award to be issued by Owner for
such contracts.

Provide information or assistance needed by Owner in the course of any review of bids,
proposals, or negotiations with prospective contractors.

Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of prospective contractors.

Consult with Owner as to the qualifications of subcontractors, suppliers, and other
individuals and entities proposed by prospective contractors, for those portions of the
Work as to which review of qualifications is required by the issued documents.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 15 of 29



10.

If Owner engages in negotiations with bidders or proposers, assist Owner with respect
to technical and engineering issues that arise during the negotiations.

Perform or provide the following other Bidding/Proposal Phase tasks or deliverables:

a. Upon award of the Construction Contract, the Engineer shall furnish to Owner
five executed copies of the Contract Documents and one electronic copy of the
signed documents, including Drawings and Specifications.

b. None

The Bidding/Proposal Phase will be considered complete upon award of Construction
Contracts for the Work and commencement of the Construction Phase, or upon
cessation of negotiations with prospective contractors.

1.06  Construction Phase

A. After completion of the Final Design Phase and concurrent with the Bidding/Proposal Phase,
and after issuance by Owner of any instructions for specific modifications or changes in the
scope, extent, character, design, schedule, number of prime construction contracts, and
other construction requirements of the Project during the Construction Phase desired by
Owner, the Engineer and Owner shall discuss, resolve, and document any necessary revisions
to Engineer’s scope of services or compensation (through application of the provisions
regarding Additional Services, or otherwise), or the time for completion of Engineer’s
services, resulting from specific modifications to the Project.

1.

Engineer shall be responsible only for those Construction Phase services expressly
required of Engineer in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.06, as duly modified. With the exception
of such expressly required services, Engineer shall have no design, Submittal (including
Shop Drawing) review, or other obligations during construction, and Owner assumes all
responsibility for providing or arranging for all other necessary Construction Phase
administrative, engineering, and professional services.

Owner waives all claims against Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners,
agents, employees, and Subconsultants, and Engineer’s Subcontractors, that may be
connected in any way to Construction Phase administrative, engineering, or
professional services except for those services that are expressly required of Engineer
in Exhibit A. Notwithstanding the foregoing waiver, Engineer shall be responsible for any
professional opinions and interpretations provided by Engineer to Owner during the
Construction Phase or Post-Construction Phase, including interpretations or
clarifications of the Construction Contract Documents.

B. Upon successful completion of the Bidding/Proposal Phase, and upon written authorization
from Owner, Engineer shall provide the following services:

1.

General Administration of Construction Contract: Consult with Owner and act as
Owner’s representative as provided in this Agreement and the Construction Contract.
Unless otherwise set forth in the scope of Basic Services (as duly modified), the extent
and limitations of the duties, responsibilities, and authority of Engineer shall be as
assigned in EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions of the Construction Contract
(2018) or other construction general conditions specified in this Agreement. Except as

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 16 of 29



otherwise provided in the Construction Contract, Owner’s communications to
Contractor will be issued through Engineer.

a. If the responsibilities of Engineer as set forth in the Construction Contract are
greater than those Construction Phase services expressly required of Engineer in
Exhibit A Paragraph 1.06, as duly modified, then Owner shall either (1) expand the
scope of the Construction Phase services to match those of the Construction
Contract, and compensate Engineer for any related increases in the cost to provide
Construction Phase services, pursuant to the provisions for compensating
Additional Services, or (2) identify a qualified individual or entity (other than
Engineer) responsible for the additional responsibilities in the Construction
Contract.

b. If Owner, or Owner and Contractor, modify the duties, responsibilities, and
authority of Engineer in the Construction Contract, or modify other terms of the
Construction Contract having a direct bearing on Engineer, or if Owner requires
Engineer’s services for construction that extends longer than the anticipated
Construction Contract Times, then Owner shall compensate Engineer for any
related increases in the cost to provide Construction Phase services, pursuant to
the provisions for compensating Additional Services.

c. Engineer shall not be required to furnish or perform services contrary to Engineer’s
responsibilities as a licensed professional.

Field Office: Engineer and Resident Project Representative (if any) will be based in a field
office at the Site. The field office will be furnished and maintained at Owner’s expense,
and will include reasonable furnishings all required temporary utilities (including
internet service) and facilities, and be secured for Engineer’s (and RPR’s) exclusive use.

Resident Project Representative (RPR): Provide the services of an RPR at the Site to assist
Engineer and to provide more extensive observation of Contractor’s Work. Duties,
responsibilities, and authority of the RPR are as set forth in Exhibit D. The furnishing of
such RPR’s services will not limit, extend, or modify Engineer’s responsibilities or
authority except as expressly set forth in Exhibit D.

Selection of Independent Testing Laboratory: Assist Owner in the selection of an
independent testing laboratory to perform required testing services.

Pre-Construction Conference: Participate in and chair a pre-construction conference
prior to commencement of Work at the Site; prepare and distribute agenda for the
conference and prepare and distribute minutes of such conference.

Electronic Transmittal Protocols: If the Construction Contract does not establish
protocols for transmittal of Electronic Documents by Electronic Means, then Owner,
Engineer, and Contractor shall jointly develop such protocols.

Original Documents: H+reguested-by-Ownerto-do-soaintainMaintain and safeguard

during the Construction Phase at least one original printed record version of the
Construction Contract Documents, including Drawings and Specifications signed and
sealed by Engineer and other design professionals in accordance with applicable Laws
and Regulations. Throughout the Construction Phase, make such original printed record

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 17 of 29



10.

11.

version of the Construction Contract Documents available to Contractor and Owner for
review.

Schedules: Receive, review, and, and, subject to the criteria of the Construction
Contract, determine the acceptability of any and all schedules that Contractor is
required to submit to Engineer, including the progress schedule, schedule of submittals,
and schedule of values. Advise Contractor in writing of Engineer’s comments or
acceptance of schedules.

a. Schedules will be acceptable to Engineer as to form and substance:

1) Progress Schedule: if it provides an orderly progression of the Work to
completion within the Contract Times. Such acceptance will not impose on
Engineer responsibility for the Progress Schedule, for sequencing, scheduling,
or progress of the Work, nor interfere with or relieve Contractor from
Contractor’s full responsibility therefor.

2) Contractor’s Schedule of Submittals: if it provides a workable arrangement for
reviewing and processing the required Submittals.

3) Contractor’s Schedule of Values: if it provides a reasonable allocation of the
Contract Price to the component parts of the Work.

Baselines and Benchmarks: As appropriate, establish baselines and benchmarks for
locating the Work which in Engineer’s judgment are necessary to enable Contractor to
proceed.

Permits: Provide Owner with copies of technical information and supporting data
previously obtained or developed by Engineer for Owner’s use, or for Owner to provide
to Contractor, in obtaining required permits and licenses delegated to Contractor by
Owner.

Visits to Site and Observation of Construction: In connection with observations of
Contractor’s Work while it is in progress:

a. Make visits to the Site at intervals appropriate to the various stages of the Work,
as Engineer deems necessary, to observe as an experienced and qualified design
professional, the progress of Contractor’'s executed Work. Such visits and
observations by Engineer, including its RPR, if any, are not intended to be
exhaustive or to extend to every aspect of the Work or to involve detailed
inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to
Engineer in this Agreement and the Construction Contract Documents, but rather
are to be limited to spot checking, selective sampling, and similar methods of
general observation of the Work based on Engineer’s exercise of professional
judgment, as assisted by its RPR, if any. Based on information obtained during such
visits and observations, Engineer will determine in general if the Work is
proceeding in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents, and
Engineer shall keep Owner informed of the progress of the Work. Engineer will
make a report of Engineer’s visit, summarizing Engineer’s general observations and
any significant findings.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 18 of 29



The purpose of Engineer’s visits to the Site, and representation by the Resident
Project Representative, if any, at the Site, will be to enable Engineer to better carry
out the duties and responsibilities assigned to by this Agreement and undertaken
by Engineer during the Construction Phase, and, in addition, by the exercise of
Engineer’s efforts as an experienced and qualified design professional, to provide
for Owner a greater degree of confidence that the completed Work will conform in
general to the Construction Contract Documents and that Contractor has
implemented and maintained the integrity of the design concept of the completed
Project as a functioning whole as indicated in the Construction Contract
Documents. Engineer will not, during such visits or as a result of such observations
of the Work, supervise, direct, or have control over the Work, nor will Engineer
have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for
security or safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to any
Constructor’s work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors’ work or
schedules, nor for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and
Regulations applicable to furnishing and performing of its work. Accordingly,
Engineer neither guarantees the performance of any Constructor nor assumes
responsibility for any Constructor’s failure to furnish or perform the Work, or any
portion of the Work, in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents.

These site visits must be at least monthly and the Engineer must document all
visits to the project with copies furnished to the Owner and Agency.

12. Defective Work: If, on the basis of Engineer’s observations or as indicated in
documentation available to Engineer, Engineer believes that any part of the Work is
defective under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract
Documents, Engineer will promptly issue written notice to Contractor (with copy to
Owner) of such defective Work. Such notice will communicate the scope, extent (to
Engineer’s understanding) of defect, and associated provisions of the Construction
Contract Documents.

13.

a.

Provide recommendations to Owner regarding whether Contractor should correct
such Work or remove and replace such Work, or whether Owner should consider
accepting the defective Work in accordance with the provisions of the Construction
Contract Documents. Engineer shall give notice to Contractor regarding whether
the defective Work should be repaired, replaced, or will be accepted by Owner.

However, Engineer’s authority to provide this information to Owner or Engineer’s
decision to exercise or not exercise such authority will not give rise to a duty or
responsibility of the Engineer to Contractors, Subcontractors, material and
equipment suppliers, their agents or employees, or any other person(s) or entities
performing any of the Work, including but not limited to any duty or responsibility
for Contractors’ or Subcontractors’ safety precautions and programs incident to
the Work.

Compatibility with Design Concept: If Engineer has express knowledge that a specific
part of the Work that is not defective under the terms and standards set forth in the
Construction Contract Documents is nonetheless not compatible with the design

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 19 of 29



14,

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole, then inform Owner of such
incompatibility, and provide recommendations for addressing such Work.

Clarifications and Interpretations: Accept from Contractor and Owner submittal of all
matters in question concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract
Documents (sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFls),
or relating to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents.
With reasonable promptness, render a written clarification, interpretation, or decision
on the issue submitted, or initiate an amendment or supplement to the Construction
Contract Documents.

Non-reviewable Matters: If a submitted matter in question concerns the Engineer’s
performance of its duties and obligations, or terms and conditions of the Construction
Contract Documents that do not involve (a) the performance or acceptability of the
Work under the Construction Contract Documents, (b) the design (as set forth in the
Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), or (c) other engineering or technical matters,
then Engineer will promptly give written notice to Owner and Contractor that Engineer
will not provide a decision or interpretation.

Field Orders: Subject to any limitations in the Construction Contract Documents,
Engineer may prepare and issue Field Orders requiring minor changes in the Work.

Change Orders and Work Change Directives: Recommend Change Orders and Work
Change Directives to Owner, as appropriate, and prepare Change Orders and Work
Change Directives as required.

Change Proposals and Claims

a. Review and respond to Change Proposals. Review each duly submitted Change
Proposal from Contractor and, within 30 days after receipt of the Contractor’s
supporting data, either deny the Change Proposal in whole, approve it in whole, or
deny it in part and approve it in part. Such actions must be in writing, with a copy
provided to Owner and Contractor. If the Change Proposal does not involve the
design (as set forth in the Drawings, Specifications, or otherwise), the acceptability
of the Work, or other engineering or technical matters, then Engineer will notify
the parties that the Engineer will not resolve the Change Proposal.

b. Provide information or data to Owner regarding engineering or technical matters
pertaining to Claims.

Differing Site Conditions: Respond to any notice from Contractor of differing site
conditions, including conditions relating to Underground Facilities such as utilities, and
hazardous environmental conditions. Promptly conduct reviews and prepare findings,
conclusions, and recommendations for Owner’s use subject to limitations of Engineer’s
obligations under this Agreement.

Contractor’s Submittals: Review and approve or take other appropriate action with
respect to required Contractor Submittals, but only to determine if the items covered
by the Submittals will, after installation or incorporation in the Work, comply with the
requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and for compatibility with the
design concept of the completed Project as a functioning whole as indicated by the

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 20 of 29



21.

22.

23.

Construction Contract Documents. Such reviews and approvals or other action will not
extend to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or to
safety precautions and programs incident thereto. Engineer shall meet any Contractor’s
Submittal schedule that Engineer has accepted.

Substitutes and “Or-equals”: Evaluate and determine the acceptability of substitute or
“or-equal” materials and equipment proposed by Contractor, but subject to the
provisions of Exhibit A Paragraph 2.01.A.2.

Inspections and Tests

a. Receive and review all certificates of inspections, tests, and approvals required by
Laws and Regulations or the Construction Contract Documents. Engineer’s review
of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining whether the results
certified indicate compliance with the Construction Contract Documents and will
not constitute an independent evaluation that the content or procedures of such
inspections, tests, or approvals comply with the requirements of the Construction
Contract Documents. Engineer shall be entitled to rely on the results of such
inspections and tests.

b. Reply to Contractor requests for written concurrence that specific portions of the
Work that are to be inspected, tested, or approved may be covered.

c. Issue written requests to Contractor that specific portions of the Work remain
uncovered.

d. Asdeemed reasonably necessary, request that Contractor uncover Work that is to
be inspected, tested, or approved.

e. Pursuant to the terms of the Construction Contract, require additional inspections
or testing of the Work, whether or not the Work is fabricated, installed, or
completed.

Contractor’s Applications for Payment: Based on Engineer’s observations as an
experienced and qualified design professional and on review of Applications for
Payment and accompanying supporting documentation:

a. Determine the amounts that Engineer recommends Contractor be paid.
Recommend reductions in payment (set offs) based on the provisions for set offs
stated in the Construction Contract. Such recommendations of payment will be in
writing and will constitute Engineer’s representation to Owner, based on such
observations and review, that, within the limits of Engineer’s knowledge,
information and belief, Contractor’s Work has progressed to the point indicated,
the Work is generally in accordance with the Construction Contract Documents
(subject to an evaluation of the Work as a functioning whole prior to or upon
Substantial Completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the
Construction Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the
recommendation), and the conditions precedent to Contractor’s being entitled to
such payment appear to have been fulfilled in so far as it is Engineer’s responsibility
to observe the Work. In the case of unit price Work, Engineer’s recommendations
of payment will include final determinations of quantities and classifications of the

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 21 of 29



Work (subject to any subsequent adjustments allowed by the Construction
Contract Documents).

b. By recommending payment, Engineer shall not thereby be deemed to have
represented that observations made by Engineer to check the quality or quantity
of Contractor’s Work as it is performed and furnished have been exhaustive,
extended to every aspect of Contractor’s Work in progress, or involved detailed
inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to
Engineer in this Agreement. Neither Engineer’s review of Contractor’s Work for the
purposes of recommending payments nor Engineer’s recommendation of any
payment including final payment will impose on Engineer responsibility to
supervise, direct, or control the Work, or for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs
incident thereto, or Contractor’s compliance with Laws and Regulations applicable
to Contractor’s furnishing and performing the Work. It will also not impose
responsibility on Engineer to make any examination to ascertain how or for what
purposes Contractor has used the money paid to Contractor by Owner; to
determine that title to any portion of the Work, including materials or equipment,
has passed to Owner free and clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or
encumbrances; or that there may not be other matters at issue between Owner
and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. By signing
payment application and recommending payment, Engineer is certifying to the
best of their knowledge that all items submitted for payment comply with
Domestic Preference requirements.

24. Contractor’s Completion Documents: Receive from Contractor, review, and transmit to

25.

Owner maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, guarantees, bonds,
certificates or other evidence of insurance required by the Construction Contract
Documents, certificates of inspection, tests and approvals, and Shop Drawings, Samples,
and other data approved as provided under Exhibit A Paragraph 1.06.B.20. Receivefrom

ne a¥al a¥a¥a ad-racorad-do man a a -
S d Ot v 7O v/ A A/

documentsthat-Contractorisreguired-to-submit: Receive from Contractor and review
the annotated record documents which are to be assembled by Contractor in
accordance with the Construction Contract Documents to obtain final payment. The
Engineer shall prepare Record Drawings and furnish such Record Drawings to Owner.

Substantial Completion: Promptly after notice from Contractor that Contractor
considers the entire Work ready for its intended use, visit the Site in company with
Owner and Contractor to review the Work and determine the status of completion.
Follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding the preliminary certificate
of Substantial Completion, punch list of items to be completed, Owner’s objections,
notice to Contractor, and issuance of a final certificate of Substantial Completion. Assist
Owner regarding any remaining engineering or technical matters affecting Owner’s use
or occupancy of the Work following Substantial Completion.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 22 of 29



26.

27.

28.

Other Tasks: Perform or provide the following other Construction Phase tasks or
deliverables:

a. [istanysuch-tasks-er-deliverables-herel: Provide the Owner and Agency with a

written certification that the project complies with Domestic Preference
requirements, to the best of Engineer’s knowledge.

b. Verify and document Contractor implemented environmental mitigation
requirements. Provide documentation to Owner and Agency.

c. [List any other such tasks or deliverables here].

Completion and Acceptability of the Work: After notice from Contractor that the Work
is complete:

a. visit the Site with Owner and Contractor to determine if the Work is in fact
complete and acceptable;

b. notify Contractor of any part of the Work that is found during the visit to be
incomplete or defective, and subsequently confirm that Contractor has corrected
any such deficiencies;

c. follow the procedures in the Construction Contract regarding review and response
to Contractor’s application for final payment and accompanying documentation;
and

d. if Engineer is satisfied that the Work is complete and acceptable, provide a notice
to Owner and Contractor using EJCDC® C-626, Notice of Acceptability of Work
(attached as Exhibit E), stating that the Work is acceptable (subject to the
provisions of the Notice and this Exhibit A) within the limits of Engineer’s
knowledge, information, and belief, and based on the extent of the services
provided by Engineer under this Agreement. Upon Substantial Completion, the
Engineer shall provide a copy of the Certificate of Substantial Completion to the
Agency.

Standards for Certain Construction-Phase Decisions: Engineer will render decisions
regarding the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents, and judge the
acceptability of the Work, pursuant to the specific procedures set forth in the
Construction Contract for initial interpretations, Change Proposals, and acceptance of
the Work. In rendering such decisions and judgments, Engineer will not show partiality
to Owner or Contractor, and will not be liable to Owner, Contractor, or others in
connection with any proceedings, interpretations, decisions, or judgments conducted
or rendered in good faith.

Duration of Construction Phase: The Construction Phase will commence with the execution
of the first Construction Contract for the Project or any part thereof and will terminate upon
written recommendation by Engineer for final payment to Contractor. If the Project involves
more than one prime contract as indicated in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.04.A.1, then
Construction Phase services may be rendered at different times in respect to the separate
contracts. Subject to the provisions of Article 3, Engineer shall be entitled to an equitable
increase in compensation if Construction Phase services (including Resident Project

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 23 of 29



Representative services, if any) are required after the original date for completion and
readiness for final payment of Contractor as set forth in the Construction Contract.

1.07 Post-Construction Phase

A.

Upon written authorization from Owner during the Post-Construction Phase, Engineer shall:

1. Together with Owner, visit the Project to observe any apparent defects in the Work,
make recommendations as to replacement or correction of defective Work, if any, or
the need to repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas, and assist Owner in
consultations and discussions with Contractor concerning correction of any such
defective Work and any needed repairs.

2. Together with Owner, visit the Project within one month before the end of the
Construction Contract’s correction period to ascertain whether any portion of the Work
or the repair of any damage to the Site or adjacent areas is defective and therefore
subject to correction by Contractor.

3. Perform or provide the following other Post-Construction Phase tasks or deliverables:
a. None

The Post-Construction Phase services may commence during the Construction Phase and, if
not otherwise modified in this Exhibit A, will terminate 12 months after the commencement
of the Construction Contract’s correction period.

ARTICLE 2—ADDITIONAL SERVICES

2.01 Additional Services Not Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization

A.

Engineer shall advise Owner that Engineer is commencing to perform or furnish the
Additional Services of the types listed below. For such Additional Services, Engineer need not
request or obtain specific advance written authorization from Owner. Engineer shall cease
performing or furnishing such Additional Services upon receipt of written notice to cease
from Owner. These services are not included as part of Basic Services and will be paid for by
Owner as indicated in Exhibit J.

1. Substantive design and other technical services in connection with Work Change
Directives, Change Proposals, and Change Orders to reflect changes requested by
Owner.

2. Services essential to the orderly progress of the Bidding/Proposal and Construction
Phases and not wholly quantifiable prior to those Phases or otherwise dependent on
the actions of prospective individual bidders or contractors and including:

a. making revisions to Drawings and Specifications occasioned by the acceptance of
substitute materials or equipment other than “or equal” items;

i - Deleted

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 24 of 29



10.

11.

c. evaluation and determination of an excessive number of proposed "or equals" or
substitutions, whether proposed before or after award of the Construction
Contract; and

d. providing to the Contractor or Owner additional or new information not previously
prepared or developed by the Engineer for their use in applying for or obtaining
required permits and licenses, in responding to agency comments on such
applications, or in the administration of any such permits or licenses.

Services resulting from significant delays, changes, or price increases occurring as a
direct or indirect result of materials, equipment, or energy shortages.

Additional or extended services arising from (a) the presence at the Site of any
Constituent of Concern or items of historical or cultural significance, (b) emergencies or
acts of God endangering the Work, (c) damage to the Work by fire or other causes during
construction, (d) a significant amount of defective, neglected, or delayed Work, (e)
acceleration of the progress schedule involving services beyond normal working hours,
or (f) default by Contractor.

Implement coordination of Engineer’s services with other parts of the Project that are
not planned or designed by Engineer or its Subconsultants, unless Owner furnished to
Engineer substantive information about such other parts of the Project prior to the
parties’ entry into this Agreement, in the Baseline Information section of this Exhibit A,
or otherwise in Exhibit A; if such substantive information has been so provided,
coordination of Engineer’s services will be part of Basic Services.

Implement the specific parts of an Underground Facilities Procedure that are assigned
to Engineer, or above-ground utilities tasks that are assigned to Engineer as the Project
progresses (but not including the design-related services already assigned to Engineer
as a Basic Service).

Services (other than Basic Services during the Post-Construction Phase) in connection
with any partial utilization of the Work by Owner prior to Substantial Completion.

Evaluating unreasonable or frivolous requests for interpretation or information (RFls),
Change Proposals, or other demands from Contractor or others in connection with the
Work, or an excessive number of RFls, Change Proposals, or demands.

Reviewing a Shop Drawing or other Contractor submittal more than three times, as a
result of repeated inadequate submissions by Contractor.

While at the Site, compliance by Engineer and its staff with those terms of Owner's or
Contractor's safety program provided to Engineer subsequent to the Effective Date that
exceed those normally required of engineering personnel by federal, State, or local
safety authorities for similar construction sites.

To the extent the Project is subject to Laws and Regulations governing public or
government records disclosure or non-disclosure, Engineer will comply with provisions
applicable to Engineer, and Owner will compensate Engineer as Additional Services for
Engineer’s costs to comply with any disclosure or non-disclosure obligations beyond
those identified in the Basic Services.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 25 of 29



12. Services directly attributable to changes in Engineer’s Electronic Documents obligations

after the effective date of the Agreement.

2.02  Additional Services Requiring Owner’s Written Authorization

A.

If authorized in writing by Owner, and approved by Agency, Engineer shall provide Additional
Services of the types listed below. These services are not included as part of Basic Services
and will be paid for by Owner as indicated in Exhibit J.

1.

Obtain or provide specified additional Project-related information and data to enable
Engineer to complete its Basic and Additional Services.

Preparation of special and customized reporting, invoicing, and related support
documentation in addition to that identified to be provided under Basic Services.

Preparation of applications and supporting documents (in addition to those furnished
under Basic Services) for private or governmental grants, loans, or advances in
connection with the Project; preparation or review of environmental assessments and
impact statements (not including preparation of the environmental documentation
required by 7 CFR 1970); review and evaluation of the effects on the design
requirements for the Project of any such statements and documents prepared by
others; and assistance in obtaining approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the
anticipated environmental impact of the Project.

Services to make measured drawings of existing conditions or facilities, to conduct tests
or investigations of existing conditions or facilities, or to verify the accuracy of drawings
or other information furnished by Owner or others.

Services resulting from significant changes in the scope, extent, or character of the
portions of the Project designed or specified by Engineer, or the Project’s design
requirements, including, but not limited to, changes in size, complexity, Owner’s
schedule, character of construction, or method of financing; and revising previously
accepted studies, reports, Drawings, Specifications, or Construction Contract
Documents when such revisions are required by changes in Laws and Regulations
enacted subsequent to the Effective Date or are due to any other causes beyond
Engineer’s control.

Services resulting from Owner’s request to evaluate additional Study and Report Phase
alternative solutions beyond those agreed to in Exhibit A Paragraph 1.02.A.1-, but only
if the Owner’s request is made after completion of the Study and Report Phase.

Services required as a result of Owner’s providing incomplete or incorrect Project
information to Engineer.

Providing renderings or models for Owner’s use, including development, management,
and other services in support of building information modeling or civil integrated
management.

Undertaking investigations and studies including, but not limited to:

a. All-hazards risk assessments and other studies to evaluate the feasibility of
enhancing the resiliency of the design;

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 26 of 29



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

b. detailed consideration of operations, maintenance, and overhead expenses;

c. the preparation of feasibility studies (such as those that include projections of
output capacity, utility project rates, project market demand, or project revenues)
and cash flow analyses, provided that such services are based on the engineering
and technical aspects of the Project, and do not include rendering advice regarding
municipal financial products or the issuance of municipal securities;

d. preparation of appraisals;

e. with respect to proprietary systems or processes requiring licensing, providing
services necessary to assist Owner in obtaining such licensing.

f.  detailed quantity surveys of materials, equipment, and labor; and

g. audits or inventories required in connection with construction performed or
furnished by Owner.

Furnishing services of Subconsultants or Engineer’s Subcontractors for other than Basic
Services.

Providing data or services of the types described in Article 2, when Owner retains
Engineer to provide such data or services instead of Owner furnishing the same.

Providing the following services:

a. Services attributable to more prime construction contracts than specified in
Exhibit A Paragraph 1.04.A.1.

b. Services to arrange for performance of construction services for Owner by
contractors other than the principal prime Contractor, and administering Owner’s
contract for such services.

Services during out-of-town travel required of Engineer, other than for visits to the Site
or Owner’s office as required in Basic Services (Article 1 of Exhibit A).

Preparing for, coordinating with, participating in and responding to structured
independent review processes, including, but not limited to, construction management,
cost estimating, project peer review, value engineering, and constructability review
requested by Owner; and performing or furnishing services required to revise studies,
reports, Drawings, Specifications, or other documents as a result of such review
processes.

Preparing additional bidding-related documents (or requests for proposals or other
construction procurement documents); preparing pre-qualification procedures and
documents, and participating in pre-qualifying prospective Bidders; and preparing
Construction Contract Documents for alternate bids.

Assistance in connection with bid protests, rebidding, or renegotiating contracts for
construction, materials, equipment, or services.

Preparing conformed Construction Contract Documents that incorporate and integrate
the content of all addenda and any amendments negotiated by Owner and Contractor.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 27 of 29



18.

19.

20.

21.
22.

23.

24,

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.
30.

Services to assist Owner in developing or modifying protocols for transmittal of
Electronic Documents by Electronic Means after the effective date of this Agreement,
either by revising or adapting Exhibit F to the Project or implementing other Electronic
Documents protocols among Project participants.

Any services by Engineer in connection with Owner or Engineer providing a Document
to a Requesting Party under Exhibit F Paragraph 1.01.D (see Exhibit F, Electronic
Documents Protocol), or any other distribution of a Document to a third party. Such
services may include but are not limited to preparing the data contained in the
requested Document in a manner deemed appropriate by Engineer; creating or
otherwise preparing and distributing the Document in a format necessary to respond to
Owner’s direction or decision to provide the Document to a requesting party, including
Contractor, in a format other than that required for deliverables from Engineer to
Owner; and services in connection with obtaining required releases from the third
parties to which the Documents will be distributed. Compensation for these Additional
Services is not contingent upon Owner’s reimbursement from the requesting party.

Providing Construction Phase services beyond the original date for completion and
readiness for final payment of Contractor, but only if such services increase the total
qguantity of services to be performed in the Construction Phase, rather than merely
shifting performance of such services to a later date.

Supplementing Record Drawings with information regarding the completed Project,
Site, and immediately adjacent areas obtained from field observations, Owner, utility
companies, and other reliable sources.

Conducting surveys, investigations, and field measurements to verify the accuracy of
Record Drawing content obtained from Contractor, Owner, utility companies, and other
sources; revise and supplement Record Drawings as needed.

Preparation of operation, maintenance, and staffing manuals.

Protracted or extensive assistance in refining and adjusting of Project equipment and
systems (such as initial startup, testing, and balancing).

Assistance to Owner in training Owner’s staff to operate and maintain Project
equipment and systems.

Assistance to Owner in developing systems and procedures for (a) control of the
operation and maintenance of Project equipment and systems, and (b) related
recordkeeping.

Preparing to serve or serving as a consultant or witness for, or producing documents for
or on behalf of, Owner in any litigation, arbitration, mediation, lien or bond claim, or
other legal or administrative proceeding involving the Project (but not including
disputes between Owner and Engineer).

Overtime work requiring higher than regular rates.

Providing construction surveys and staking to enable Contractor to perform its work
other than as required under Exhibit A Paragraph 1.06.B.9; any type of property surveys

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 28 of 29



or related engineering services needed for the transfer of interests in real property;
providing construction and property surveys to replace reference points or property
monuments lost or destroyed during construction; and providing other special field
surveys.

31. Providing more extensive services required to enable Engineer to issue notices or
certifications requested by Owner.

32. Extensive services required during any correction period, or with respect to monitoring
Contractor’s compliance with warranties and guarantees called for in the Construction
Contract (except as agreed to under Basic Services).

33. Other additional services performed or furnished by Engineer not otherwise provided
for in this Agreement.

Exhibit A—Engineer’s Services.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 29 of 29



EXHIBIT B—DELIVERABLES SCHEDULE

Paragraphs 2.04.E, 3.02.A, and Exhibit A of the Agreement are supplemented by the following paragraph
and table.

Engineer shall furnish Documents to Owner as required in Column 2 of the following table (and as further
described in Exhibit A), according to the schedule in Column 4. Owner shall comment or take other
identified actions with respect to the Documents as indicated in Column 2 (and as further described in

Exhibit A), according to the schedule in Column 4.

Party Action Exhibit A Reference Schedule

Engineer Submit 1 review copies of the Report 1.02.A.17 Within 90 days of the Effective
and other Study and Report Phase Date.
deliverables to Owner.

Owner Submit comments regarding the Report | 1.02.A.18 Within 30 days of the receipt
and other Study and Report Phase from Engineer of the Report
deliverables to Engineer. and other Study and Report

Phase deliverables.

Engineer Submit 1 copies of the revised Report 1.02.A.18 Within 60 days of the receipt of
and other Study and Report Phase Owner’s comments regarding
deliverables to Owner. the Report and other Study

and Report Phase deliverables.

Engineer Submit 1 review copies of the 1.03.B.17 Within 120 days of Owner’s
Preliminary Design Report, opinion of authorization to proceed with
probable Construction Cost, and other Preliminary Design Phase
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables services.
to Owner.

Owner Submit comments regarding 1.03.B.18 Within 14 days of the receipt
Preliminary Design Report, opinion of from Engineer of Preliminary
probable Construction Cost, and other Design Report, opinion of
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables probable Construction Cost,
to Engineer. and other Preliminary Design

Phase deliverables.

Engineer Submit 1 copies of the revised 1.03.B.18 Within 60 days of the receipt of
Preliminary Design Report, opinion of Owner’s comments regarding
probable Construction Cost, and other the Preliminary Design Report,
Preliminary Design Phase deliverables opinion of probable
to Owner. Construction Cost, and other

Preliminary Design Phase
deliverables.

Engineer Submit 1 copies of the first Final Design | 1.04.B.1 Within 180 days of Owner’s
Phase draft of Drawings and authorization to proceed with
Specifications to Owner. Final Design Phase services.

Owner Submit comments and instructions 1.04.B.1 Within 14 days of the receipt of
regarding the first Final Design Phase the first final Design Phase
draft of Drawings and Specifications to drafts of Drawings and
Engineer. Specifications from Engineer.

Exhibit B—Deliverables Schedule.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 10of3




Party Action Exhibit A Reference Schedule

Engineer Submit 1 copies of the second Final 1.04.B.2 Within 60 days of the receipt of
Design Phase drafts of Drawings and Owner’s comments and
Specifications to Owner. instructions regarding the first

Final Design Phase drafts of
Drawings and Specifications.

Engineer Submit 1 of copies of draft 1.04.D.3; Concurrent with submittal to
Bidding/Proposal and Front-End 1.04.F.8 Owner of the second Final
Construction Contract Documents, as Design Phase drafts of
required, and any other Final Design Drawings and Specifications.
Phase deliverables (other than
Drawings and Specifications) to Owner.

Owner Submit comments and instructions 1.04.B.2 Within 14 days of the receipt
regarding the second Final Design from Engineer of the second
Phase drafts of Drawings and Final Design Phase drafts of
Specifications to Engineer. Drawings and Specifications.

Engineer Submit 1 copies of the final, completed, | 1.04.B.3 and Within 60 days of the receipt of
pricing-ready and construction-ready 1.04.G.1 Owner’s comments and
Drawings and Specifications to Owner. instructions regarding the

second Final Design Phase
drafts of Drawings and
Specifications.

Owner Submit comments and instructions 1.04.G.2 Within 14 days of the receipt
regarding the final, completed, pricing- from Engineer of the final,
ready and construction-ready Drawings completed, pricing-ready and
and Specifications to Engineer. construction-ready Drawings

and Specifications.

Owner Submit comments and instructions 1.04.D.3; Concurrent with Owner’s
regarding drafts of Bidding/Proposal 1.04.F.8 submittal of comments and

and Front-End Construction Contract
Documents, and any other Final Design
Phase deliverables (other than
Drawings and Specifications) to
Engineer.

instructions regarding the final,
completed, pricing-ready and
construction-ready Drawings
and Specifications.

Exhibit B—Deliverables Schedule.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 2 of 3




Party

Action

Exhibit A Reference

Schedule

Engineer Submit to Owner: Within 60 days of receipt of
1 copies of the revised final, completed, | 1.04.G.2 Owner’s final comments and
pricing-ready and construction-ready instructions regarding the
Drawings and Specifications; and regarding the final, completed,
1 of copies of assembled pricing-ready and construction-
Bidding/Proposal and Front-End ready Drawings and
Construction Contract Documents, and | 1.04.G.3 Specifications, the
any other Final Design Phase Bidding/Proposal and Front-
deliverables. End Construction Contract
Documents, and any other
Final Design Phase
deliverables.
Engineer Submit 1 copies of Bidding/Proposal 1.05.A9.a Within 30 days of written
Phase deliverables (if any) identified in authorization by Owner to
Exhibit A Paragraph 1.05.A.9.a to proceed with Bidding/Proposal
Owner. Phase services.
Engineer Submit 1 copies of Construction Phase 1.06.B.26.a Within 60 days of Substantial
deliverables (if any) identified in Exhibit Completion.
A Paragraph 1.06.B.26.a to Owner.
Engineer Submit 1 copies of Post-Construction 1.07.A3.a Within 365 days of Substantial

Phase deliverables (if any) identified in
Exhibit A Paragraph 1.07.A.3.a to
Owner.

Completion.

Exhibit B—Deliverables Schedule.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page3of3




EXHIBIT C—AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT

AMENDMENT TO OWNER-ENGINEER AGREEMENT

Amendment No. [Enter Amendment Number]

Owner: [Name of Owner]
Engineer: [Name of Engineer]
Project: [Name of Project]

Effective Date of Owner-Engineer Agreement:  [Effective Date of Agreement]
Nature of Amendment: (Check those that apply)

Additional Services to be performed by Engineer

Modifications to services of Engineer

Modifications to responsibilities of Owner

Modifications of payment to Engineer

Modifications to time(s) for rendering services

Modifications to other terms and conditions of the Agreement

gogooo

Description of Modifications:

[Here describe the modifications, in as much specificity and detail as needed. Use an attachment if
necessary. Include cost breakdown and documentation, if applicable.]

Agreement Summary:

Original agreement amount:

Net change for prior amendments:
This amendment amount:
Adjusted Agreement amount:
Change in time for services (days or date, as applicable):

v nnun

Owner and Engineer hereby agree to modify the above-referenced Agreement as set forth in this
Amendment. The Effective Date of the Amendment is [Enter Effective Date of Amendment].

Owner Engineer
(typed or printed name of organization) (typed or printed name of organization)
By: By:
(individual’s signature) (individual’s signature)
(Attach evidence of authority to sign.) (Attach evidence of authority to sign.)
Date: Date:
(date signed) (date signed)

Name: Name:

(typed or printed) (typed or printed)
Title: Title:

(typed or printed) (typed or printed)

Exhibit C—Amendment to Owner-Engineer Agreement.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page1of1



EXHIBIT D—DUTIES, RESPONSIBILITIES, AND LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY OF RESIDENT PROJECT
REPRESENTATIVE

ARTICLE 1—RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE SERVICES

Article 1 of the Agreement, Services of Engineer, and Exhibit A, Engineer's Services, are supplemented to
include Exhibit D Paragraphs 1.01, 1.02, and 1.03, as follows:

1.01 Resident Project Representative

A.

Engineer shall furnish a Resident Project Representative ("RPR") to observe progress and
quality of the Work. RPR is Engineer's representative at the Site, will act as directed by and
under the supervision of Engineer, and will confer with Engineer regarding RPR's actions.

The RPR will provide full-time representation frevise-if-representation-will-beless-thanfull
timel, unless requested in writing by the Owner and waived in writing by the Agency.

Subject to the scope of RPR's observations of the Work, which may include field checks of
materials and installed equipment, Engineer shall endeavor to identify defects and
deficiencies in the Work. However, Engineer shall not, as a result of such RPR observations
of the Work, supervise, direct, inspect, or have control over the Work, nor shall Engineer
(including the RPR) have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques,
sequences, or procedures of construction selected or used by any Constructor, for security
or safety at the Site, for safety precautions and programs incident to the Work or any
Constructor's work in progress, for the coordination of the Constructors' work or schedules,
or for any failure of any Constructor to comply with Laws and Regulations applicable to the
performing and furnishing of its work. The Engineer (including RPR) neither guarantees the
performance of any Constructor nor assumes responsibility for any Constructor's failure to
furnish and perform the Work, or any portion of the Work, in accordance with the
Construction Contract Documents. In addition, the specific terms set forth in Exhibit A
Paragraph 1.06 are applicable.

1.02  Duties and Responsibilities of RPR

A.

The duties and responsibilities of the RPR are as follows:

1. General: RPR's dealings in matters pertaining to the Work in general will be with
Contractor. RPR's dealings with Subcontractors shall only be through or with the full
knowledge and approval of Contractor. RPR shall generally communicate with Owner
only with the knowledge of and under the direction of Engineer.

2. Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample
submittals, schedule of values, and other schedules prepared by Contractor and consult
with Engineer concerning acceptability of such schedules.

3. Conferences and Meetings: Attend meetings with Contractor, such as preconstruction
conferences, progress meetings, job conferences, and other Project-related meetings
(but not including Contractor's safety meetings), and as appropriate prepare and
circulate copies of minutes thereof.

Exhibit D—Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 1 of 5



Safety Compliance: Comply with Site safety programs, as they apply to RPR, and if
required to do so by such safety programs, receive safety training specifically related to
RPR's own personal safety while at the Site.

Liaison

a. Serve as Engineer's liaison with Contractor. Working principally through
Contractor's authorized representative or designee, assist in providing information
regarding the provisions and intent of the Construction Contract Documents.

b. Assist Engineer in serving as Owner's liaison with Contractor when Contractor's
operations affect Owner's on-Site operations.

c. Assistin obtaining from Owner additional details or information, when required for
proper execution of the Work.

Clarifications and Interpretations: Receive from Contractor submittal of any matters in
guestion concerning the requirements of the Construction Contract Documents
(sometimes referred to as requests for information or interpretation—RFls), or relating
to the acceptability of the Work under the Construction Contract Documents. Report to
Engineer regarding such RFls. Report to Engineer when clarifications and interpretations
of the Construction Contract Documents are needed, whether as the result of a
Contractor RFI or otherwise. Transmit Engineer's clarifications, interpretations, and
decisions to Contractor.

Shop Drawings, Samples, and other Submittals

a. Receive Samples that are furnished at the Site by Contractor.
b. Receive Contractor-approved Shop Drawings.

c. Receive other Submittals from Contractor.

d. Record date of receipt of Samples, Contractor-approved Shop Drawings, and other
Submittals.

e. Notify Engineer of availability of Samples for examination, and forward Contractor-
approved Shop Drawings and other Submittals to Engineer. When appropriate
recommend distribution of Submittal to specified Subconsultants.

f.  Advise Engineer and Contractor of the commencement of any portion of the Work
requiring a Shop Drawing or Sample submittal, if RPR believes that the submittal
has not been received from Contractor, or has not been approved by Contractor or
Engineer.

Proposed Modifications: Consider and evaluate Contractor's suggestions for
modifications to the Drawings or Specifications, and report such suggestions, together
with RPR's recommendations, if any, to Engineer. Transmit Engineer's response (if any)
to such suggestions to Contractor.

Review of Work; Defective Work

a. Report to Engineer whenever RPR believes that any part of the Work is defective
under the terms and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents,

Exhibit D—Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 2 of 5



and provide recommendations as to whether such Work should be corrected,
removed and replaced, or accepted as provided in the Construction Contract
Documents. Installation of items that do not comply with Domestic Preference
requirements is considered defective Work.

Inform Engineer of any Work that RPR believes is not defective under the terms
and standards set forth in the Construction Contract Documents, but is nonetheless
not compatible with the design concept of the completed Project as a functioning
whole, and provide recommendations to Engineer for addressing such Work.

Advise Engineer of that part of the Work that RPR believes should be uncovered for
observation, or requires special testing, inspection, or approval.

10. Inspections, Tests, and System Start-ups

a.

f.

Consult with Engineer in advance of scheduled inspections, tests, and systems
start-ups.

Verify that tests, equipment, and systems start-ups and operating and
maintenance training are conducted in the presence of appropriate Owner's
personnel, and that Contractor maintains adequate records thereof.

Observe, record, and report to Engineer appropriate details relative to the test
procedures and systems start-ups.

Observe whether Contractor has arranged for inspections required by Laws and
Regulations, including but not limited to those to be performed by public or other
agencies having jurisdiction over the Work.

Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having
jurisdiction over the Work, record the results of these inspections, and report to
Engineer.

Nothing in this Agreement will be construed to require RPR to conduct inspections.

11. Records

a.

Maintain at the Site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job conferences,
copies of Construction Contract Documents including all Change Proposals, Change
Orders, Field Orders, Work Change Directives, Addenda, additional Drawings issued
subsequent to the execution of the Construction Contract, RFls, Engineer's
clarifications and interpretations of the Construction Contract Documents,
progress reports, approved Shop Drawing and Sample submittals, and other
Project-related documents.

Prepare a daily report or keep a diary or log book, recording Contractor's hours on
the Site, Subcontractors present at the Site, weather conditions, data relative to
qguestions of Change Proposals, Change Orders, Field Orders, Work Change
Directives, or changed conditions, Site visitors, deliveries of equipment or
materials, daily activities, decisions, observations in general, observations on
Domestic Preference and environmental mitigation compliance, and specific
observations in more detail as in the case of observing test procedures; and send
copies to Engineer.

Exhibit D—Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 3 of 5



12.

13.

14.

15.

c. YUpenreguestfrom-Ownerto-EngineerpPhotograph or video Work in progress or

Site conditions.

d. Record and maintain accurate, up-to-date lists of the company names and points
of contact for Contractors, Subcontractors, and major Suppliers of materials and
equipment.

e. Maintain records for use in preparing Project documentation.

f.  Upon completion of the Work, furnish original set of all RPR Project documentation
to designated recipients.

Reports

a. Furnish periodic reports as required of progress of the Work and of Contractor's
compliance with the progress schedule and schedule of Shop Drawing and Sample
submittals.

Contractor- Deleted

c.  Furnish to Engineer and Owner copies of all inspection, test, and system start-up
reports.

d. Immediately inform appropriate parties of the occurrence of any Site accidents,
emergencies, natural catastrophes endangering the Work, possible force majeure
or delay events, damage to property by fire or other causes, or the discovery of any
potential differing site condition or Constituent of Concern.

Payment Requests: Review applications for payment with Contractor for compliance
with the established procedure for their submission and forward with
recommendations to Engineer, noting particularly the relationship of the payment
requested to the schedule of values, Work completed, and materials and equipment
delivered at the Site but not incorporated in the Work.

Certificates, Operation and Maintenance Manuals: During the course of the Work, verify
that materials and equipment certificates, operation and maintenance manuals and
other data required by the Contract Documents to be assembled and furnished by
Contractor are applicable to the items actually installed and in accordance with the
Contract Documents, and have these documents delivered to Engineer for review and
forwarding to Owner prior to payment for that part of the Work.

Completion

a. Participate in Engineer's visits to the Site regarding Substantial Completion, assist
in the determination of Substantial Completion, and prior to the issuance of a
Certificate of Substantial Completion submit a punch list of observed items
requiring completion or correction.

b. Participate in Engineer's visit to the Site in the company of Owner and Contractor,
to determine completion of the Work, and prepare a final punch list of items to be
completed or corrected by Contractor.

Exhibit D—Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 4 of 5



c. Observe whether all items on the final punch list have been completed or
corrected, and make recommendations to Engineer concerning acceptance and
issuance of the Notice of Acceptability of the Work (Exhibit E).

16. Domestic Preference

a. Observe and report on compliance with Domestic Preference requirements
including but not limited to: Verifying that items delivered to the site are
accompanied by Domestic Preference documentation, as applicable, and
photographing stored and installed items to document compliance.

1.03 Limitations of Authority

A

Resident Project Representative shall not:

1.

Authorize any deviation from the Construction Contract Documents or substitution of
materials or equipment (including "or-equal" items).

Exceed limitations of Engineer's authority as set forth in this Agreement.

Undertake any of the responsibilities of Contractor, Subcontractors, or Suppliers, or any
Constructor.

Advise on, issue directions relative to, or assume control over any aspect of the means,
methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of the Work, by Contractor or any other
Constructor.

Advise on, issue directions regarding, or assume control over security or safety
practices, precautions, and programs in connection with the activities or operations of
Owner or Contractor.

Participate in specialized field or laboratory tests or inspections conducted off-site by
others except as specifically authorized by Engineer.

Accept Shop Drawing or Sample submittals from anyone other than Contractor.

Authorize Owner to occupy the Project in whole or in part.

Exhibit D—Duties, Responsibilities, and Limitations of Authority of Resident Project Representative.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 5 of 5



EXHIBIT E—EJCDC® C-626, NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK

NOTICE OF ACCEPTABILITY OF WORK (EJCDC® C-626 2018)

Owner: Owner’s Project No.:
Engineer: Engineer’s Project No.:
Contractor: Contractor’s Project No.:
Project:

Contract Name:
Notice Date: Effective Date of the Construction Contract:

The Engineer hereby gives notice to the Owner and Contractor that Engineer recommends final payment
to Contractor, and that the Work furnished and performed by Contractor under the Construction Contract
is acceptable, expressly subject to the provisions of the Construction Contract's Contract Documents
("Contract Documents") and of the Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services
dated [date of professional services agreement] ("Owner Engineer Agreement"). This Notice of
Acceptability of Work (Notice) is made expressly subject to the following terms and conditions to which
all who receive and rely on said Notice agree:

1.

This Notice has been prepared with the skill and care ordinarily used by members of the engineering
profession practicing under similar conditions at the same time and in the same locality.

This Notice reflects and is an expression of the Engineer's professional opinion.

This Notice has been prepared to the best of Engineer's knowledge, information, and belief as of the
Notice Date.

This Notice is based entirely on and expressly limited by the scope of services Engineer has been
employed by Owner to perform or furnish during construction of the Project (including observation
of the Contractor's Work) under the Owner Engineer Agreement, and applies only to facts that are
within Engineer's knowledge or could reasonably have been ascertained by Engineer as a result of
carrying out the responsibilities specifically assigned to Engineer under such Owner Engineer
Agreement.

This Notice is not a guarantee or warranty of Contractor's performance under the Construction
Contract, an acceptance of Work that is not in accordance with the Contract Documents, including
but not limited to defective Work discovered after final inspection, nor an assumption of
responsibility for any failure of Contractor to furnish and perform the Work thereunder in
accordance with the Contract Documents, or to otherwise comply with the Contract Documents or
the terms of any special guarantees specified therein.

This Notice does not relieve Contractor of any surviving obligations under the Construction Contract,
and is subject to Owner's reservations of rights with respect to completion and final payment.

Engineer

By (signature):

Name (printed):
Title:

Exhibit E—Notice of Acceptability of Work.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page1of1



EXHIBIT G—INSURANCE

ARTICLE 1—INSURANCE

Paragraph 6.04 of the Agreement, Insurance, is supplemented to include the following Exhibit G
Paragraphs 1.01 and 1.02:

1.01 Insurance Policies and Limits

A. In accordance with Paragraph 6.04.A of the Agreement, the insurance that Engineer must
procure and maintain, and the policy limits of such insurance, are as follows:

Policy limits of not less
Coverage
than:
Workers’ Compensation
State | Statutory
Employer’s Liability
Each accident $500,000
Each employee $500,000
Policy limit $500,000
Commercial General Liability
General Aggregate $1,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000
Bodily Injury and Property Damage—Each Occurrence $1,000,000
Automobile Liability
Bodily Injury
Each Person S
Each Accident $
Property Damage
Each Accident IB
Or
Combined Single Limit
Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) | $1,000,000
Excess or Umbrella Liability
Each Occurrence $1,000,000
General Aggregate $1,000,000
Professional Liability
Each Claim $2,000,000
Annual Aggregate $2,000,000
Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Liability Insurance
Each Claim S
General Aggregate S
Other Insurance [Specify]
Each Claim S
General Aggregate S

Exhibit G—Insurance.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 10of3



1.02

B. In accordance with Paragraph 6.04.C of the Agreement, the insurance that Owner must
procure and maintain, and the policy limits of such insurance, are as follows:

Policy limits of not less
Coverage
than:
Workers’ Compensation
State | Statutory
Employer’s Liability
Each accident $100,000
Each employee $500,000
Policy limit $100,000
Commercial General Liability
General Aggregate $2,000,000
Personal and Advertising Injury S
Bodily Injury and Property Damage—Each Occurrence $3,000,000
Automobile Liability
Bodily Injury
Each Person $
Each Accident $
Property Damage
Each Accident IB
Or
Combined Single Limit
Combined Single Limit (Bodily Injury and Property Damage) | $2,000,000
Excess or Umbrella Liability
Each Occurrence S
General Aggregate S
Unmanned Aerial Vehicle Liability Insurance
Each Claim S
General Aggregate S
Other Insurance [Specify]
Each Claim $
General Aggregate $
Additional Insureds
A. Owner shall cause Engineer, its Subconsultants, and its Engineer's Subcontractors to be listed
as additional insureds on any of Owner's general liability policies that are applicable to the
Project. The following individuals or entities are to be listed on Owner's general liability
policies of insurance (and on Contractor's policies required under Paragraph 6.04.D of the
Agreement) as additional insureds:
Name of Additional Insured Address
Bollig Inc 1721 Technology Drive NE, Suite 100, Willmar, MN 56201
(Engineer)

Bonnema Runke Stern Inc | 4566 Highway 71 NE, Suite 1, Willmar, MN 56201
(Surveyor)

American Engineering Testing, Inc. | 550 Cleveland Avenue North, St. Paul, MN 55114
(Geotechnical Engineer)

[Other Additional Insured] [Other Additional Insured’s Corporate Address]

Exhibit G—Insurance.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 2 of 3



During the term of this Agreement the Engineer shall notify Owner of any other
Subconsultant or Engineer's Subcontractor to be listed as an additional insured on Owner's
and applicable Contractor's general liability policies of insurance.

The Owner must be listed on Engineer's general liability policy as provided in
Paragraph 6.04.B.

For applicable Contractor's general liability policies of insurance, the additional insured
endorsements will include both ongoing operations and products and completed operations
coverage through ISO Endorsements CG 20101001 and CG 20371001 (together). If
Contractor demonstrates to Owner that the specified ISO endorsements are not
commercially available, then Contractor may satisfy this requirement by providing equivalent
endorsements.

For applicable Contractor's general liability policies of insurance, Contractor shall provide
ISO Endorsement CG 20 32 07 04, "Additional Insured—Engineers, Architects or Surveyors
Not Engaged by the Named Insured" or its equivalent for Engineer, Subconsultants, and other
design professional additional insureds.

Exhibit G—Insurance.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page3of3



EXHIBIT H—DISPUTE RESOLUTION

ARTICLE 1—DISPUTE RESOLUTION METHOD

Paragraph 6.07 of the Agreement, Dispute Resolution, is supplemented to include the following Exhibit H
Paragraph 1.01:

1.01  Arbitration

A. Method for Resolution of Disputes: All Disputes between Owner and Engineer that have not
been resolved by negotiations or mediation will be settled by arbitration administered by the
American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration
Rules (subject to the conditions and limitations of this Exhibit H Paragraph 1.01). This
agreement to arbitrate will be specifically enforceable under the prevailing law of any court
having jurisdiction.

B. Arbitration Provisions

1. Notice of the demand for arbitration must be filed in writing with the other party to the
Agreement and with the selected arbitration administrator. The demand must be made
within a reasonable time after the Dispute has arisen. In no event may the demand for
arbitration be made after the date when institution of legal or equitable proceedings
based on such Dispute would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations.

2. The arbitrator(s) must be licensed engineers, architects, contractors, attorneys, or
construction managers. Hearings will take place pursuant to the standard procedures of
the Construction Arbitration Rules that contemplate in-person hearings. The arbitrators
will have no authority to award punitive or other damages not measured by the
prevailing party's actual damages, except as may be required by statute or the
Agreement. Any award in an arbitration initiated under this clause will be limited to
monetary damages and include no injunction or direction to any party other than the
direction to pay a monetary amount.

3. If the applicable arbitration rules require a preliminary mediation, but the parties have
already participated in mediation with respect to the Dispute, then the second
mediation is not required.

4. The rules of any arbitration must be supplemented to include the following: The award
rendered by the arbitrators must be in writing, and include (a) a precise breakdown of
the award, and (b) a written explanation of the award specifically citing the Agreement
provisions deemed applicable and relied on in making the award.

5. The award rendered by the arbitrators will be consistent with this Agreement and final,
and judgment may be entered upon it in any court having jurisdiction thereof, and will
not be subject to appeal or modification.

6. The arbitrators will have the authority to allocate the costs of the arbitration process
among the parties, but will only have the authority to allocate attorneys' fees if a specific
Law or Regulation or this Agreement expressly permits them to do so.

Exhibit H—Dispute Resolution.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 10of 2



The parties agree that failure or refusal of a party to pay its required share of the
deposits for arbitrator compensation or administrative charges will constitute a waiver
by that party of the right to present evidence or cross-examine witness. In such event,
the other party will be required to present evidence and legal argument as the
arbitrator(s) may require for the making of an award. Such waiver will not allow for a
default judgment against the non-paying party in the absence of evidence presented as
provided for above.

Except as may be required by Laws or Regulations, neither party nor an arbitrator may
disclose the existence, content, or results of any arbitration hereunder without the prior
written consent of both parties, with the exception of any disclosure required by Laws
and Regulations or the Agreement. To the extent any disclosure is allowed pursuant to
the exception, the disclosure must be strictly and narrowly limited to maintain
confidentiality to the extent possible.

If a Dispute in question between Owner and Engineer involves the work of a Contractor,
Subcontractor, or consultants to the Owner, Subconsultants to the Engineer, or
Engineer's Subcontractors (each a "Joinable Party"), and such Joinable Party has agreed
contractually or otherwise to participate in a consolidated arbitration concerning this
Project, then either Owner or Engineer may join such Joinable Party as a party to the
arbitration between Owner and Engineer hereunder. Nothing in this Exhibit H
Paragraph 1.01 nor in the provision of such contract consenting to joinder will create
any claim, right, or cause of action in favor of the Joinable Party and against Owner or
Engineer that does not otherwise exist.

Exhibit H—Dispute Resolution.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT I—LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

ARTICLE 1—LIMITATIONS OF LIABILITY

Paragraph 6.10 of the Agreement is supplemented to include Exhibit| Paragraph(s) 1.01, Mutual
Indemnification and 1.02, Limitation of Engineer's Liability:

1.01 Mutual Indemnification

A.

Indemnification by Owner: To the fullest extent permitted by Laws and Regulations, Owner
shall indemnify and hold harmless Engineer and its officers, directors, members, partners,
agents, employees, and Subconsultants, and Engineer's Subcontractors, from and against
any and all claims, costs, losses, and damages (including but not limited to all fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and all court,
arbitration, or other dispute resolution costs) arising out of or relating to the Project,
provided that any such claim, cost, loss, or damage is attributable to bodily injury, sickness,
disease, or death or to injury to or destruction of tangible property (other than the Work
itself), including the loss of use resulting therefrom, but only to the extent caused by any
negligent act or omission of Owner or Owner's officers, directors, members, partners, agents,
employees, or others retained by or under contract to the Owner with respect to this
Agreement or to the Project.

1.02  Limitation of Engineer's Liability

A

Engineer's Liability Limited to Amount of Engineer's Compensation: To the fullest extent
permitted by Laws and Regulations, and notwithstanding any other provision of this
Agreement, the total liability, in the aggregate, of Engineer and Engineer's officers, directors,
members, partners, agents, employees, Subconsultants, and Engineer's Subcontractors, to
Owner and anyone claiming by, through, or under Owner for any and all claims, losses, costs,
or damages whatsoever (including but not limited to direct, indirect, special, incidental,
punitive, exemplary, or consequential damages) arising out of, resulting from, or in any way
related to the Project or the Agreement from any cause or causes, including but not limited
to the negligence, professional errors or omissions, strict liability, breach of contract,
indemnity obligations, or warranty express or implied of Engineer or Engineer's officers,
directors, members, partners, agents, employees, Subconsultants, or Engineer's
Subcontractors, will not exceed the total compensation received by Engineer under this
Agreement.

Exhibit I—Limitation of Liability.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page1of1



EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1: BASIC SERVICES—LUMP SUM

ARTICLE 1—COMPENSATION PACKET BC-1: BASIC SERVICES—LUMP SUM

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following Exhibit J Paragraph 1.01:

1.01

Compensation for Basic Services (other than Resident Project Representative)—Lump Sum
Method of Payment

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Basic Services set forth in Exhibit A (except for Resident Project
Representative services, if any) as follows:

1.

A Lump Sum amount of Two Hundred Eighteen Dollars ($218,000) based on the
following estimated distribution of compensation:

a. Study and Report Phase SO
b. Preliminary Design Phase $65,000
c. Final Design Phase $87,000
d. Bidding and Negotiating Phase $22,000
e. Construction Phase $33,000
f.  Post-Construction Phase $11,000

Engineer may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted
herein to be consistent with services actually rendered, but compensation will not
exceed the total Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the Owner and
Agency.

The Lump Sum includes compensation for Engineer's services and services of Engineer's
Subcontractors and Subconsultants, if any. Appropriate amounts have been
incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor costs, overhead, profit, and expenses
(other than any expressly allowed Reimbursable Expenses).

In addition to the Lump Sum, Engineer is also entitled to reimbursement from Owner
for the following Reimbursable Expenses (see Appendix 1 for rates or charges): Not
Applicable.

The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for Engineer's services will be based upon
Engineer's estimate of the percentage of the total services actually completed during
the billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses are expressly allowed, Engineer may
also bill for any such Reimbursable Expenses incurred during the billing period.

B. Period of Service: The compensation amount stipulated in Compensation Packet BC-1 is
conditioned on a period of service not exceeding thirty-six (36) months. If such period of
service is extended, the compensation amount for Engineer's services will be appropriately
adjusted, with concurrence of the Owner and Agency.

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Compensation Packet BC-1: Basic Services—Lump Sum.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page1of1



EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
COMPENSATION PACKET RPR-2: RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE—STANDARD HOURLY RATES

ARTICLE 2—COMPENSATION PACKET RPR-2: RESIDENT PROJECT REPRESENTATIVE—STANDARD
HOURLY RATES

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following Exhibit J Paragraph 2.01:

2.01 Compensation for Resident Project Representative Services—Standard Hourly Rates Method of
Payment

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Resident Project Representative Services as follows:

1. Resident Project Representative Services: For services of Engineer's Resident Project
Representative (RPR), if any, under Exhibits A and D, an amount equal to the cumulative
hours charged by each class of Engineer's personnel providing RPR services times
Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class, plus RPR-related Reimbursable
Expenses and RPR-related Engineer's Subcontractors' and Subconsultants' charges, if
any. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in Appendix 2, Standard Hourly Rates Schedule.

2. The total compensation under this paragraph is estimated to be Fifty-eight Thousand
Dollars ($58,000) based upon full-time RPR services on an eight-hour workday, Monday
through Friday, over a 45 day construction schedule.

B. Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses

1. For those Reimbursable Expenses that are directly related to the provision of RPR
services and are not already accounted for in the compensation for Basic Services,
Owner shall reimburse Engineer, using the rates set forth in Appendix 1, Reimbursable
Expense Schedule, to this Exhibit J when applicable.

2. Such Reimbursable Expenses include, to the extent RPR-related, the expenses identified
in Appendix1 and the following: transportation (including mileage), lodging, and
subsistence incidental thereto; providing and maintaining field office facilities including
furnishings and utilities; subsistence and transportation of Resident Project
Representative; toll telephone calls, mobile phone charges, and courier charges;
reproduction of reports, Drawings, Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement
documents, Construction Contract Documents, and similar items. In addition, if
authorized in advance by Owner, Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses
incurred for the use of highly specialized equipment.

3. The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be those
internal expenses related to RPR services that are actually incurred or allocated by
Engineer, plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to such services,
the latter multiplied by a factor of 1.15.

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment

1. Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the RPR-related charges of
Engineer's Subcontractors and Subconsultants, that compensation will be the amounts

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative—Standard Hourly Rates.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 10of 2



billed by Engineer's Subcontractors and Subconsultants to Engineer times a factor of
1.15.

Factors: The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer's Subcontractors' and
Subconsultants' factors include Engineer's overhead and profit associated with
Engineer's responsibility for the administration of such services and costs.

Estimated Compensation Amounts

a. Engineer's estimate of the amounts that will become payable for specified services
are only estimates for planning purposes, are not binding on the parties, and are
not the minimum or maximum amounts payable to Engineer under the Agreement.

b. When estimated compensation amounts have been stated herein and it
subsequently becomes apparent to Engineer that the total compensation amount
thus estimated will be exceeded, Engineer shall give Owner and Agency written
notice thereof, allowing Owner to consider its options, including suspension or
termination of Engineer's services for Owner's convenience. Upon notice Owner
and Engineer will promptly review the matter of services remaining to be
performed and compensation for such services. Owner shall either exercise its right
to suspend or terminate Engineer's services for Owner's convenience, agree to
such compensation exceeding said estimated amount, or agree to a reduction in
the remaining services to be rendered by Engineer, so that total compensation for
such services will not exceed said estimated amount when such services are
completed. If Owner decides not to suspend Engineer's services during
negotiations and Engineer exceeds the estimated amount before Owner and
Engineer have agreed to an increase in the compensation due Engineer or a
reduction in the remaining services, then Engineer shall be paid for all services
rendered hereunder.

The Standard Hourly Rates and the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted
annually (as of January 1) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to
Engineer for RPR-related services and expenses. Changes will not be effective unless
and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.

To the extent necessary to verify Engineer's charges and upon Owner's timely request,
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at-cest at no cost.

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Compensation Packet RPR-2: Resident Project Representative—Standard Hourly Rates.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1: ADDITIONAL SERVICES—STANDARD HOURLY RATES

ARTICLE 3—COMPENSATION PACKET AS-1: ADDITIONAL SERVICES—STANDARD HOURLY RATES

Article 2 of the Agreement is supplemented to include the following Exhibit J Paragraph 3.01:

3.01

Compensation for Additional Services—Standard Hourly Rates Method of Payment

A. Owner shall pay Engineer for Additional Services, if any, as follows:

1.

For services of Engineer's personnel engaged directly on the Project pursuant to
Exhibit A Paragraph 2.01 or 2.02, except for services as a consultant or witness under
Exhibit A Paragraph 2.02.A.28 (which if needed will be separately negotiated based on
the nature of the required consultation or testimony), an amount equal to the
cumulative hours charged by each class of Engineer's personnel providing such
Additional Services times Standard Hourly Rates for each applicable billing class, plus
Additional Services-related Reimbursable Expenses and Additional Services-related
Engineer's Subcontractors' and Subconsultants' charges, if any.

B. Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses

1.

For those Reimbursable Expenses that are directly related to the provision of Additional
Services, and are not already accounted for in the compensation for Basic Services or
RPR-related services, Owner shall reimburse Engineer, using the rates set forth in
Appendix 1 to this Exhibit J when applicable.

Such Reimbursable Expenses include, to the extent Additional Services-related, the
expenses identified in Appendix 1 and the following categories: transportation
(including mileage), lodging, and subsistence incidental thereto; providing and
maintaining field office facilities including furnishings and utilities; toll telephone calls,
mobile phone charges, and courier charges; reproduction of reports, Drawings,
Specifications, bidding-related or other procurement documents, Construction Contract
Documents, and similar items. In addition, if authorized in advance by Owner,
Reimbursable Expenses will also include expenses incurred for the use of highly
specialized equipment.

The amounts payable to Engineer for Reimbursable Expenses, if any, will be the
Additional Services-related internal expenses actually incurred or allocated by Engineer,
plus all invoiced external Reimbursable Expenses allocable to such Additional Services,
the latter multiplied by a factor of 1.15.

C. Other Provisions Concerning Payment for Additional Services

1.

Whenever Engineer is entitled to compensation for the charges of Engineer's
Subcontractors and Subconsultants, such compensation will be the amounts billed by
Engineer's Subcontractors and Subconsultants to Engineer times a factor of 1.15.

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Compensation Packet AS-1: Additional Services—Standard Hourly Rates.
Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.

Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,

and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.
Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).
Page 10of 2



Factors: The external Reimbursable Expenses and Engineer's Subcontractors' and
Subconsultants' factors include Engineer's overhead and profit associated with
Engineer's responsibility for the administration of such services and costs.

The Standard Hourly Rates and the Reimbursable Expenses Schedule will be adjusted
annually (as of January 1) to reflect equitable changes in the compensation payable to
Engineer for Additional Services-related services and expenses. Changes will not be
effective unless and until concurred in by the Owner and Agency.

To the extent necessary to verify Engineer's charges and upon Owner's timely request,
Engineer shall make copies of such records available to Owner at-eest at no cost.

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Compensation Packet AS-1: Additional Services—Standard Hourly Rates.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page 2 of 2



EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
APPENDIX 1: REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES SCHEDULE

Reimbursable Expenses are subject to review and adjustment per ExhibitJ. Rates and charges for
Reimbursable Expenses as of the date of the Agreement are:

FAX */page
8%"x11" Copies/Impression **/page
Black & White Copies: 8% x 11 $0.10/page
Black & White Copies: 11 x 17 $0.50/page
Black & White Copies: 24 x 36 $3.00/page
Color Copies: 8% x 11 $2.00/page
Color Copies: 11 x 17 $4.00/page
Blue Print Copies **/sq. ft.
Reproducible Copies (Mylar) **/sq. ft.
Reproducible Copies (Paper) */sq. ft.
Mileage (auto) */mile
Field Office Daily Charge $50/day
Mileage (Field Truck) */mile
Field Survey Equipment */day
Confined Space Equipment */day plus expenses
Resident Project Representative Equipment */month
Computer CPU Charge */hour
Specialized Software */hour
Personal Computer Charge */hour
CAD Charge */hour
CAE Terminal Charge */hour

VCR and Monitor Charge
Video Camcorder
Electrical Meters Charge
Flow Meter Charge

*/week, or S /month
*/day, plus $ /tape

*/week, or S /month
*/week, or S /month

B2 V0 0 Vo il Vo S8 Vo S VoS Vo SV Vo RV R V2 V2 0 V2 b Vo Sl Vo i Vo Bk V0 Sl V0 B Vo S V0 S V0 L Vo S V0 S V0 B V0 SV S V0 B Vg S V0 (V0 B V0 I V0 L0 V0 V0 S V0 LB V0 S V0 B V0 V2 B V0 S V)

Rain Gauge */week, or S /month
Sampler Charge */week, or S /month
Dissolved Oxygen Tester Charge * /week

Fluorometer * /week

Laboratory Pilot Testing Charge */week, or S /month
Soil Gas Kit */day

Submersible Pump */day

Water Level Meter */day, or $ /month
Soil Sampling */sample
Groundwater Sampling */sample

Health and Safety Level D */day

Health and Safety Level C */day

Electronic Media Charge */hour

Long Distance Phone Calls */minute

Mobile Phone */minute

Meals and Lodging */at cost

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Appendix 1: Reimbursable Expenses Schedule.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page1of1



EXHIBIT J—PAYMENTS TO ENGINEER FOR SERVICES AND REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES
APPENDIX 2: STANDARD HOURLY RATES SCHEDULE

A. Standard Hourly Rates

1. Standard Hourly Rates are set forth in this Appendix 2 to this ExhibitJ and include
salaries and wages paid to personnel in each billing class plus the cost of customary and
statutory benefits, general and administrative overhead, non-project operating costs,
and operating margin or profit.

2. The Standard Hourly Rates apply only as specified in Exhibit J.

B. Schedule: Hourly rates for services performed on or after the date of the Agreement are:

Billing Class Hourly Rate ($/hr) Project Anticipated
Staff

Principal Engineer $175-235 $225
Sr. Project Engineer $120-195 S174
Senior Architect $120-195 $165
Project Engineer (I-V) $90-155 $140
Construction Observer/Manager $75-145 $130
Technician (I-I1V) $85-160 $135
Funding Specialist $75-160 $150
Project Coordinator $85-125 $115
Registered Land Surveyor $105-165 $165
Survey Crew $145 $145
Survey Tech (I-1V) $65-115 $115
Standard hourly rates include general copies, faxes, CADD equipment, phone calls, meals and
lodging. Project staff hourly rates may change but will always stay within the hourly rate
range unless otherwise changed by an Amendment to this Agreement.

Exhibit J—Payments to Engineer for Services and Reimbursable Expenses.
Appendix 2: Standard Hourly Rates Schedule.

Exhibits to EJCDC® E-500, Agreement between Owner and Engineer for Professional Services.
Copyright® 2020 National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council of Engineering Companies,
and American Society of Civil Engineers. All rights reserved.

Modified to include RD edits from RUS Bulletin 1780-26 (5/10/2024).

Page1of1



MY MINNesOTA

PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORITY

8/13/2025

The Honorable Lydell Sik
Mayor, City of Lamberton
PO Box 356, 112 2" Avenue
Lamberton, MN 56152

Dear Mayor Sik:

| am pleased to inform you that the Minnesota Public Facilities Authority (MPFA) has approved
project financing for the City of Lamberton on 8/13/2025 under the Lead Service Line Replacement
(LSLR) Program in the form of a Project Order agreement. The project consists of 25 lead service
line replacements under MDH project ID 1640003-14. MPFA’s financing for project costs is as
follows:

DWSRF LSLR 0% loan S0
DWSRF LSLR Principal Forgiveness grant $323,931
Total Project Costs $323,931

In addition to the above project funding, the MPFA Project Order will include a separate grant, in
the same amount as the above loan, which will be used by the recipient, immediately upon receipt,
to repay the LSLR loan to the MPFA. This grant will be provided after final disbursement on the loan
has been made.

Total MPFA Project Order: $323,931

The LSLR Program has been funded through 1) federal capitalization grants from the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency to MPFA’s Drinking Water State Revolving Fund and 2) state
appropriations to MPFA.

We congratulate the City of Lamberton for its successful application and its commitment to replace
lead service lines within its drinking water infrastructure system.

The Project Order contract will be sent to you shortly through the DocuSign system. A
disbursement request form is available on MPFA’s SharePoint site.

If you have any questions about this project financing or about the MPFA’s programs in general,
please feel free to contact me at 651-259-7472.

Regards,

Steve Wielzn

Steve Walter, Executive Director
MN Public Facilities Authority

C: Rep. Cal Warwas, Spencer Igo, Chris Swedzinski, Paul Torkelson
Sen. Robert Fransworth, Gary Dahms

Minnesota Public Facilities Authority

1%t National Bank Building e 332 Minnesota St. e Suite W820 e Saint Paul, MN 55101-1378 e USA
651-259-7469 e 800-657-3858 TOLL FREE @ 651-296-8833 FAX @ mn.gov/pfa

An equal opportunity employer and service provider



From: kyle hubert

To: Valerie Halter
Subject: Before pics
Date: Saturday, August 30, 2025 10:40:56 PM

Here are the before pics of the weeds. You could not even see the signs etc. I sent you the pics
of after [ removed them. Be great if city would spray these before they get out of hand yearly.
Thanks Kyle

’

Sent from Yahoo Mail for iPhone


mailto:kylehubert506@yahoo.com
mailto:vhalter@lambertonmn.com
https://mail.onelink.me/107872968?pid=nativeplacement&c=Global_Acquisition_YMktg_315_Internal_EmailSignature&af_sub1=Acquisition&af_sub2=Global_YMktg&af_sub3=&af_sub4=100000604&af_sub5=EmailSignature__Static_&af_ios_store_cpp=9d3a686e-218d-4849-8298-b480188dc8ac&af_android_url=https%3A%2F%2Fplay.google.com%2Fstore%2Fapps%2Fdetails%3Fid%3Dcom.yahoo.mobile.client.android.mail%26listing%3Demail_signature

From: kyle hubert

To: Valerie Halter
Subject: Weeds
Date: Saturday, August 30, 2025 5:20:16 PM

Valerie and council I took the weeds down myself with a machine. Be nice now if the city
sprayed them as spray is not cheap. Thanks Kyle Hubert

%



mailto:kylehubert506@yahoo.com
mailto:vhalter@lambertonmn.com

1 for iPhone

i

Sent from Yahoo Ma


https://mail.onelink.me/107872968?pid=nativeplacement&c=Global_Acquisition_YMktg_315_Internal_EmailSignature&af_sub1=Acquisition&af_sub2=Global_YMktg&af_sub3=&af_sub4=100000604&af_sub5=EmailSignature__Static_&af_ios_store_cpp=9d3a686e-218d-4849-8298-b480188dc8ac&af_android_url=https%3A%2F%2Fplay.google.com%2Fstore%2Fapps%2Fdetails%3Fid%3Dcom.yahoo.mobile.client.android.mail%26listing%3Demail_signature

BUILDING/ZONING
PERMIT APPLICATION

Office of Clerk/Treasurer = 112 2nd Ave West « PO Box 356 « Lamberton, MN 56152 « (507) 752-7601

Property Owner: %MV/&J E/Mﬂ é‘fo

Mailing Address: /0/ /JJ’;/ 5 Phone: So7 S’l G b_? /Z

City, State Zip: /ﬂméd//_:v‘, Wﬂ/ Zo(% 7 Email EScnlre QMﬁL op, A
[

PROPERTY INFORMATION

Property Address: ZC’JDL/(I Uf //M//f/ Parcel Number:
Property Type: Residential Commercial Industrial

PROJECT INFORMATION L
Type of Project: Dimentions of Project: Vé//"‘ﬁ‘/ Q’“"Sle’ V"C JL““t
New Structure Alteration/Repair Length: !Sﬂé— Width: LS-QL

Addition O Height: lLﬁé’ Area: #9—/’-}'[- X SS‘Q/- \N/

Project Description: ,V/g,(,na_l G /2 D .;VQ &é:u-.S(n. hozesl Ja&“—‘( J{-’co(

SU Cavnen Q-PJ A olL [_,wm,LW qc«.fc—Q ﬂ(CA»zr u(g—/
}%uu,dluuc g Sw Covie 46 bwt'vajj'ﬂa.o"\—[) /[ /ecfc.(
S

Estimated Construction Cost (including materials and labor):

All Bulding/Zoning Permit Applications must include a detailed site plan drawn to scale.

APPLICANT STATEMENT ApeietiomE =)
| hereby apply for a building permit and | acknowledge that the information provided above and E@E@EW =1
on the submitted site plan is complete and accurate and that all work will be in conformance with AUG 2 5 2025
the approved plan and codes, covenants & ordinances of the Clty of Lamberton and with :
Minnesota State Building Codes.

CITY OF LAMBERTON
I understand that this is a permit application and work is not to start without a permit. Payment Stamp
H H . < M 5 Sl N
Applicant Signature: d S{.’ _ Date: f,27—Z) Permit Number:
P

f This Application has been Reviewed and Approved by:

/ Putlic Works Supervisor

Building/Zoning Administrator
The City of Lamberton is an Equal Opportunity Provider and Employer






Fire Codes:

https://go.boarddocs.com/ma/hudsonma/Board.nsf/files/D34JL.54D4230/Sfile/20240305%20fuel%20island%20tank%
20testing.pdf

4.3.2.1.1 Tanks storing Class 1, Class II, or Class IIIA stable liquids and operating at
pressures not in excess of 2.5 psig shall be located in accordance with the following table:

Minimum Distance from Minimum Distance from
Property Line that is or Can Nearest side of Any Public
Be built upon, including the Way or from Nearest Important
Opposite Side of a Public Way  Building on the Same Property
Tank Capacity (gal) (ft) (ft)
275 or less 5 5
276 to 750 10 5
751 to 12,000 15 5
12,001 to 30,000 20 5

4.3.2.1.5 Tanks storing IIIB stable liquids shall be located in accordance with table
232.1.5.

Pollution Control:

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/business-with-us/aboveground-tank-requirements

State Statute:

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/7151/



https://go.boarddocs.com/ma/hudsonma/Board.nsf/files/D34JL54D4230/$file/20240305%20fuel%20island%20tank%20testing.pdf
https://go.boarddocs.com/ma/hudsonma/Board.nsf/files/D34JL54D4230/$file/20240305%20fuel%20island%20tank%20testing.pdf
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/business-with-us/aboveground-tank-requirements
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/7151/

Googled Information — with Statute Links

Minnesota statutes related to small cells are found in Chapter 237, specifically sections 237.162 and
237.163, which define the term "small wireless facility" and outline the rules for placing them in public
rights-of-way. These statutes allow local governments to regulate the placement of small cells and
wireless support structures, but they also establish a framework that permits these facilities to be a
"permitted use" in the right-of-way. While local governments can require permits and charge fees, they
are restricted in their ability to prohibit small cells and must follow specific procedures, including
requirements for providing access to existing city-owned structures for collocation. [1, 2, 3, 4]

Key Minnesota Statutes

Minn. Stat. § 237.162 -
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162#:~:text=Public%20right%2Dof%2Dway.,
easements %200f%20local%20government%20units.

defines key terms, such as "telecommunications right-of-way user," "small wireless facility," and "micro
wireless facility". [3]

Minn. Stat. § 237.163 - https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163

addresses the placement and regulation of small wireless facilities and wireless support structures in the
public right-of-way, establishing when they are considered a "permitted use". [2]

Al responses may include mistakes.

[1] https://www?2.minneapolismn.gov/government/departments/public-works/traffic-parking-
services/street-lighting-policy/small-cell/

[2] https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163

[3] https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162

[4] https://lims.minneapolismn.gov/Download/FileV2/18552/wcemsp-202239-(1).pdf



https://www2.minneapolismn.gov/government/departments/public-works/traffic-parking-services/street-lighting-policy/small-cell/
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163#:%7E:text=(e)%20A%20telecommunications%20right%2Dof%2Dway%20user%20may%20place,application%20for%20a%20small%20wireless%20facility%20permit.
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162
https://lims.minneapolismn.gov/Download/FileV2/18552/wcmsp-202239-(1).pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162#:%7E:text=Public%20right%2Dof%2Dway.,easements%20of%20local%20government%20units
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162#:%7E:text=Public%20right%2Dof%2Dway.,easements%20of%20local%20government%20units
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163#:%7E:text=(e)%20A%20telecommunications%20right%2Dof%2Dway%20user%20may%20place,application%20for%20a%20small%20wireless%20facility%20permit.
https://www2.minneapolismn.gov/government/departments/public-works/traffic-parking-services/street-lighting-policy/small-cell/
https://www2.minneapolismn.gov/government/departments/public-works/traffic-parking-services/street-lighting-policy/small-cell/
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.163#:%7E:text=(e)%20A%20telecommunications%20right%2Dof%2Dway%20user%20may%20place,application%20for%20a%20small%20wireless%20facility%20permit.
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/237.162
https://lims.minneapolismn.gov/Download/FileV2/18552/wcmsp-202239-(1).pdf

2101 Highway 13 W

Q E d Burnsville, MN 55337
A ge

608.644.1449 phone
608.644.1549 fax

Consulting Engineers, Inc.

August 25, 2025

Verizon Wireless

10801 Bush Lake Road
Bloomington, MN 55438
Contact: Beth Berg
Phone: (612) 723-1508

SUBJECT: POLE REVIEW AND FOUNDATION DESIGN REPORT
SMALL CELL INSTALLATION
MNO8 LAMBERTON HS SC [17528437]
LAMBERTON, MINNESOTA
EDGE PROJECT #42266

Ms. Berg:

Edge Consulting Engineers, Inc. has been asked to complete a pole review and foundation
design for the above mentioned site. One loading scenario was considered in the analysis. This
loading condition takes into account the existing loading along with the proposed loading. The
proposed primary equipment elevation is at 37.6 feet above ground level on this 40 foot tall pole
which has been shortened to 35 feet for the purpose of this installation. The results of the pole
review show that under the proposed loading only, the stress ratio of the pole’s controlling
element is approximately 47%.

For this analysis, the loads were calculated in accordance with the Minnesota Building Code
(IBC 2018) and all of its referenced standards. The capacities of the pole were calculated in
accordance with the current LRFD Specifications for Structural Supports for Highway Signs,
Luminaires, and Traffic Signals (AASHTO 2015) and all of its referenced standards. See the
Antenna Wind Load Calculations and pole design drawing attachments for further detalils.

EQUIPMENT INFORMATION

# Appurtenance Status

1 JMA CX160MI236-1C Proposed
3 Ericsson AIR 1672 Proposed
1 Ericsson RRUs 4455 Proposed
1 Ericsson RRUs 4490 Proposed
1 Ericsson Power 6308 Proposed
2 Raycap RSCAC-1333-P-240 Proposed
1 Electric Meter Proposed

It is not permitted to mount banners or overhead wires on the pole.



Utilizing the Valmont MN457941P1 pole design without the T-base option dated 12/4/2019, it
was determined that the applied reactions and stresses at the base of the pole from the
proposed equipment loading condition are less than the Valmont calculated design capacities.
Therefore, it was determined that the structure is capable of safely supporting the proposed
loading. The anchor rods are to be provided by Valmont, and have been sized accordingly to
the demand required.

It is proposed to install the pole on a new cast-in-place foundation constructed with normal
weight concrete having a minimum f'c of 4,000psi and ASTM A615 Grade 60 rebar. The
proposed foundation is an 11’-0” long x 2’-6” diameter concrete pier that is to be flush with the
ground. The foundation is to have twelve (12) #7 vertical reinforcing bars and twelve (12) #4
horizontal shear reinforcing bars with two shear ties in the top 5 inches of the pier and the ties
evenly spaced thereafter. See the Drilled Pier Foundation Calculations attachment for further
details.

If the proposed loading condition is altered from that analyzed or it is determined that any of the
assumptions are not accurate, this analysis shall be deemed obsolete and further analysis will
be required.

Refer to the MNO8 Lamberton HS SC Construction Drawings created by Edge Consulting
Engineers for all applicable plan work, notes, and details.

Please feel free to contact us if you have any questions or concerns.
Sincerely,

Edge Consulting Engineers, Inc.

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

I hereby certify that this plan, specification, or report
was prepared by me or under my direct supervision
and that | am a duly licensed Professional Engineer

/% %&4/ under the laws of the State of Minnesota

Print Name: Andrew J. Edelstein

Joseph C. Borkowski, E.I.T.
Project Engineer

(2) Attachments Date: RO License# 57199

Signature:




© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC

|
|
|
} CONSULTANT:
| SCOPE OF WORK Ed
| N Edge
| . WORK PRODUCT SUPPLIED BY INSTALLED BY Commulting Engmsers, inc.
2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
} NEW POLE EDGE CONTRACTOR BORNSIILLE, i Sesr
‘ NEW CONCRETE FOUNDATION VERIZON CONTRACTOR wunw.edgeconsult. com
; T PO e M POUen " | reomooneieomme | reonooo eLecec
| FIBER CONDUIT WITHIN RIGHT OF WAY:; CLIENT:
| TO BE TRENCHED/DIRECTIONALLY BORED BELOW GRADE FIBERPROVIDER FIBER PROVIDER
| FIBER HAND HOLE WITHIN RIGHT OF WAY FIBER PROVIDER FIBER PROVIDER ]
} FIBER CONDUIT BETWEEN HAND HOLE AND POLE BASE VERIZON CONTRACTOR ‘\I erlzon
| NEW VERIZON EQUIPMENT VERIZON CONTRACTOR 10801 BUSH LAKE RD
‘ BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438
| MNO8 LAMBERTON HS SC
1 NEW POLE
|
\J
| LAMBERTON, MINNESOTA o
| , -:O LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL
| ENGINEER
|
| g
| "-...\.-"“
| &l19hat
} | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
‘ SHEET INDEX SITE LOCATION MAP DIRECTORY POLE LOCATION UNDER WY DIRECT SUPERVISION
| NOTERT \AMADULY LICENSED
\ w {. w PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
L] m VERIZON WIRELESS: UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
} N OI - s H E ET TITLE § ¥ .gj CONTACT: NETWQRK OUTREA(.:H ) STATE OF MINNESOTA.
‘ G001 TITLE SHEET } e ‘,‘2 3rd Ave E ) EMAIL: vznetworkminnesota@verizonwireless.com
) n
} C-101 SITE PLAN i ENGINEERING COMPANY:
T-201 SITE ELEVATION & ANTENNA CONFIGURATION Berton Coo 9 i : EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC.
| P& Milton Towing o 2101 HIGHWAY 13 W.
| T-501 INSTALLATION DETAILS \ & Recovery ‘ BURNSVILLE, MN 55337 \
CONTACT: KATELYN MOLINE i
} T-502 MOUNTING DETAILS PHONE: 608,644 1449 ke
‘ T-701 ANTENNA & EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS X 8 fus
k O
| T-702 ANTENNA & EQUIPMENT SPECIFICATIONS 4 ASSET OWNER: b : = % ?
| E-101 FIBER & POWER ROUTING PLAN Ave E VERIZON WIRELESS 3 AR w ==z
‘ 5th 10801 BUSH LAKE RD. AL VR ws=
| E-501 GROUNDING & UTILITY DETAILS Sturm Funeral Home o BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438 ) 7 % ~ s
| D-101 TRAFFIC & PEDESTRIAN PLANS M - W i~
} R-001 GENERAL NOTES ' @ ¢ ,,\, = 9
| R-002 GENERAL NOTES o ’ : = S 5
o]
‘ - FOUNDATION DETAILS x PROJECT INFO - k8o
| Y : % Nl <
| SITE LOCATION : o =4
| APPROX. ADDRESS: i G SR TR
| 1 Ave E 605 BIRCH STREET : :
c 7 LAMBERTON, MN 56152
| W w REDWOOD COUNTY
| Jin Ave @, B ¥
| 3 SITE COORDINATES (PER 1A): - U
| = LAT: 44° 13' 37.21" N (44.227003°) 3
‘ 9 LONG: 95° 15' 41.18" W (-95.261439°)
wn e W _1 GROUND ELEV.: 1142' AMSL = PROJECT NO: 17528437
| ) m A Lamberton Pool LOCATION CODE: | 472866
| P 5 s
= . RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
PROJECT NUMBER:
} (ﬁ g Valley View Manar o 17528437 N STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
E u‘ gth Ave W gth AVe E y - DATE: DESCRIPTION:
| w 177) LOCATION CODE: 07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266
| o o 472866 o
} g 2 EXISTING POLE TYPE: B SUBMITTAL:
“:T 5 @ N/A O INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:
‘ w w ; ALT | 07/25/25 |REV.A
} %] T [T TTT EI)\J(IIASTING POLE FINISH: ; 3 = ALT | 0811525 | REV.0
4 sl A AL >
| .
NEW POLE MATERIAL: :
} UTILITY INFORMATION ONE Ca, STEEL -~
| o NEW POLE FINISH:
| POWER PROVIDER: “ PAINTED
| REDWOOD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE N
| c 60 PINE ST. » U PAINT CODE:
1 CLEMENTS, MN 56224 < I RAL 8017/SW 6006
| g PHONE: 1.844.905.2209 Y S cHEckeD| 1
| 3 <%, V/\\ POLE DISPOSAL INFORMATION: BY
| E S INTERN N/A EDGE
| 8 Eeo | s11e74
| 2 ROW CONTACT: TO OBTAIN LOCATION OF PARTICIPANTS'
‘ § * PROVIDED BY OTHERS CITY OF LAMBERTON UNDERGROUND FACILITIES BEFORE YOU DIG ~uall Ence 42266
| 5 112 SECOND AVE. W. IN MINNESOTA, CALL GOPHER STATE ONE - "M Frou #
‘ 8 ** SEE STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS FOR APPROVED DETAILS AND SPECIFICATIONS; LAMBERTON, MN 56152 CALL
2 DETAILS INCLUDED IN CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS FOR CONVENIENCE ONLY. PHONE: 507.752.7601 L FINAL
| g TOLL FREE: 1-800-252-1166 i
} g CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL PLANS AND EXISTING DIMENSIONS/CONDITIONS FAXALOCATE: 1-800-236-4967 \ ceer G-001
g ON SITE. IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY ENGINEER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES PRIOR TO MN STATUTE REQUIRES MIN. OF 48 HOURS -
g .
} b PERFORMING ANY WORK OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE SAME. NOTICE BEFORE YOU EXCAVATE NUMBER
|
|
\


Otto Dingfelder
Pencil


W

-
=

g /

°

s L

g 5
[ o
8 P
3 1

B | %
S GENERAL NOTES: (THIS SHEET) o

~

8 ~ | 1. NORTH ARROW SHOWN AS APPROXIMATE. /

g 2. SITE PHOTOS PROVIDED BY EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC. \

& 3. THE ENTIRE SITE SHALL BE RESTORED TO PRE-PROJECT / \

s C OVERVIEW OF SITE CONDITIONS AT THE COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT. a

\ SCALE:

— N\ MR/ CONSULTANT:
\ N 2 N z
= T = =
= I = = Y Edge
/// \\\ /// \\\ Ci I Ei 1
N onsulting Engineers, Inc.
\ I\ N 2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
BURNSVILLE, MN 55337
ar - 608.644.1449 VOICE
— www.edgeconsult.com
%
2
() CLIENT:
® \L PARKING
=2 LOT ﬂ\
Q =
] verizon
o
) \1
< \\\\ //// 10801 BUSH LAKE RD
% :\ /: BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438
= <
” S
7, N .
\ ///I | \\\\ ENGINEER SEAL:
)
o &
K&
\ 4"’%“\«"@
O ¥
St
R
S
oL
| I
- S £
. \ S (A
| = =
A AERIAL OVERVIEW . iy, = =
~ N z Z S '"GET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
) = ju I\ UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
= = OTHER THAN THE EXGEPTIONS
NEW FIBER OPTIC SERVICE BY; I NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
FiBER PROVIDER 7\ gt
\ \ I \ UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
NEW FIBER HAND HOLE;\\ STATE OF MINNESOTA.
BY FIBER PROVIDER ~_ [
—  e— —
NEW FIBER OPTIC SERVICE BETWEEN
POLE BASE AND FIBER HAND HOLE BY;
VERIZON GC V
1
NEW ELECTRIC METER BY; \\\\‘ I I////
VERIZON GC S 2
NEW POLE AND CONCRETE - = 8 IS
FOUNDATION; BY VERIZON GC /// \\\ n O
7/ \\ I &
mw zZu
<5Z
-l =
STREET SIGN [- M
(TYP.) w % %
==
\ N GRASS B3
NEW UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL j\ © %
CONDUIT BETWEEN POLE BASE AND Ss
POWER SOURCE; BY REDWOOD P4 =z
ELECTRIC, SEE E-101 FOR\DETNLS \ \‘ | I/ =3
\ /,
\ N
= et
= <
\ 7, , \\\\
OVERVIEW OF SITE \ m
Ezl(_:EITTIL\‘ E| 'l\.lJEN ?TEYRPG)ROVND PROJECT NO: 17528437
: LOCATION CODE: | 472866
RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:

DATE: | DESCRIPTION:

07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266

SUBMITTAL:

INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:

ALT | 07/25/25 | REV.A

ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0

CHECKED!
5 KJM

EDGE
smemp | S11674

EDGE
PROJ. # 42266

SET
SEe | FINAL

5' 0 5' 10'

11" x17"-1"=10"
22"x34"-1"=5'

wee | G=101

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



CONSULTANT:

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT LOADING GENERAL NOTES: (THIS SHEET)
PROPOSED ANTENNA LOADING Ed e
ANTENIEN EEN A EN A EN RS e A B =GR BRTEST QTY|MANUFACTURER MODEL HEIGHT MOUNT ORIENTATION 1. REFER TO STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS IDENTIFIED ON G-001 FOR g
e L el HEIGHT | WIDTH | WEIGHT | TP | CENTER | DT DT T Erosson Py Py AU e v STRUCTURAL FOUNDATION DETAILS OF EXISTING POLE. Consulting Engineers, Inc.
ALPHA 340° | 1 JVA CX060MI236-1C 294" 14" 38.6Ibs 388 37.6' 2 0 - — g - . 2. ALLHARDWARE SHALL BE STAINLESS STEEL. BE&‘E;&'{E['EVY N o557
ALPHA 340° 1 ERICSSON ARR1672 204" 7.9 26.5 Ibs 329 32.0" 2° 0° ! ERICSSON Radiod490 285 Gen2Ral Street +90 3. ALL CABLES SHALL BE SECURED TO POLE EVERY 36" OR LESS. 608.644.1449 VOICE
oETA o T RSO ARi672 e e wooh - - . . 1 ERICSSON PSU6308 285' Gen2 Rail Street -90° 4. LIGHTNING RODS SHALL BE INCLUDED WHERE REQUIRED. wunw.edgeconsult.com
: : Slbs | 929 320 2 0 p RAYGAP RSCAC-1335.P 220 %5 Band Strap Steet 50" 5. ALLNEW POLE MOUNTED EQUIPMENT TO BE PAINTED TO MATCH POLE;
GAMVA 220° 1 ERICSSON ARR1672 204" 7.9 26.5 Ibs 329 32.0" 2° 0° SEE PAINT SPECIFICATION IDENTIFIED ON G-001. -
1 RAYCAP RSCAC-1333-P-240 %5 Band Strap Street +90° 6. AR PRODUCTS ARE TO BE WRAPPED IN A 3M VINYL FILM. CONTRACTOR IS TO UTILIZE CLENT:
"HYDROPHOBIC mmW 5G WRAP" COLOR MATCHED TO NEW STRUCTURE;
ANTENNA & EQUIPMENT KEY PEOPLESOFT NO. 900-243-7, OR APPROVED EQUIV.

A verizon

10801 BUSH LAKE RD
BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438

PROPOSED POLE
View Direction: STREET -90° STREET +180° STREET STREET +90° Py poe TRUE NORTH
ANTENNATIP HEIGHT: 39.2 AGL. ENGINEER SEAL:
J\ MAX APPURTENANCE MAXIMUM APPURTENANCE HEIGHT | 39.2 AGL.
. 3 T e 9
Y ELEV: 39.2 o &
4~ C/L OF CAN ANTENNA c 4%0\ S
¥ ELEV: 376 X
QQ QO )
CAN ANTENNA U2 ‘}9
B
o s
4. TOPOFPOLE (1) CAN ANTENNA é,év"

¥ ELEV: 35'

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS
NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER

(3) ANTENNA INTEGRATED
RADIO(S)

GLOAR s B I
ELEV: 32 : - W

UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
RADIO UNIT POLE STATE OF MINNESOTA.
RADIO UNIT (BELOW)
g~ C/L OF ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT |
¥ ELEV: 285 |
g~ C/L OF ANCILLARY EQUIPMENT EﬁY}’ER SUPPLY ' 4
NYoELEV: 265 S~ e=lY el Q
4 C/LOFPOLEPENETRATION PN == = = o = <
W ELEV: 255 = § pras)
(2) DISCONNECT NOTE. 5T?
SURGE ARRESTOR(S) CONTRACTOR TO WEATHERPROOF POLE : g 0z I-IZJ
1. ALLANTENNAAZIMUTHS TO BE FROM TRUE NORTH. =0z
< W — s
>2x-
Wwoaog
C ANTENNA LAYOUT PLAN EJI (3] <§( e
SCALE: 11"x17"-3/4"=1-0" w g c—o' Ig.g
22"x 34" - 1-1/2" = 1-0" 239
-2z
nhu=3
NEW STEEL POLE; TRUE NORTH E
/ VALMONT MN457941P1
<
(3) ANTENNA
INTEGRATED RADIO
PROJECT NO: 17528437
LOCATION CODE: 472866
RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
DATE: DESCRIPTION:
07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266
SUBMITTAL:
INT. DATE: DESCRIPTION:
ALT | 07/25/25 |REV.A
ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0
/ ELECTRIC METER

$ C/L OF METER
ELEV: 5'

CHECKED!
5 KJM

g CIL OF POLE HAND HOLE Shees | st1e7a

c
g

§

=

Z

a

oY & — el (i - NOTE: SITE ID

5 YV ELEV: 1.7 O

3 1. ALLANTENNAAZIMUTHS TO BE FROM TRUE NORTH. EDGE

g| 4 FNSHEDGRADE e . PROJ.# | 42266

g ¥ ELEV:0=AGL SEE NOTE 1 FOR DETAILS ser [ FinaL

§ B POLE ELEVATION D ANTENNA LAYOUT PLAN

g SCALE: 11" x 17" - 3/16" = 10" SCALE: 11"x 17" - 3/4" = 10" SHEET

g 22" x 34" - 3/8" = 1-0" 22" x 34" - 1-1/2" = 10" NUMBER T-201
Z

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
‘ PENETRATIONS PER VERIZON REQUIREMENTS
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
} © EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC
|

\



L:\42200\42266\Design\CAD\CD\PIot\T-501.dgn

CAN ANTENNA

CAN ANTENNA SHROUD

(3) ANTENNA INTEGRATED
RADIO(S)

ERICSSON RADIO UNIT

STREETMACRO
BRACKET (TYP.)

POWER SUPPLY
UNIT

RADIO UNIT

ERICSSON GEN2 RAIL
AND BRACKET (TYP.)

ERICSSON HINGE
BRACKET (TYP.)

(2) DISCONNECT

BAND STRAP (TYP.)/@
RAYCAP BRACKET (TYP.)

SURGE ARRESTOR
CONTRACTOR TO WEATHERPROOF /
POLE PENETRATIONS PER VERIZON
REQUIREMENTS
NEW STEEL POLE;
|~ VALMONT MN457941P1

/ CAN ANTENNA

CAN ANTENNA BASE BRACKET

UNIVERSAL CANTENNA SLEEVE

STANDARD POLE TOP MOUNT

NOTE:

1. THE MOUNT IS SHOWN WITHOUT THE SHROUD FOR CLARITY

B CAN ANTENNA

BAND STRAP (TYP.)

BAND STRAP (TYP.)

I

ANTENNA
INTEGRATED RADIO

ERICSSON
STREETMACRO
BRACKET
L ‘
N PN J
NOTES:

1. THE ORIENTATION SHOWN IS FOR CLARITY AND DOES NOT
ACCURATELY REPRESENT THE AZIMUTH OF THE ANTENNAS.

2. EQUIPMENT QUANTITIES SHOWN FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES
ONLY AND MAY NOT REPRESENT THE FINAL INSTALLATION.

c ANTENNA INTEGRATED RADIO

CONSULTANT:

Edge

Consulting Engineers, Inc.
2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
BURNSVILLE, MN 55337
608.644.1449 VOICE
www.edgeconsult.com

CLIENT:

verizon

10801 BUSH LAKE RD
BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438

ENGINEER SEAL:

| HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS
NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA.

POLE ISOMETRIC

ERICSSON RADIO

V4 N

N\ J
ERICSSON

/  GEN2 BRACKET

ERICSSON

K POLE CLAMP

BAND STRAP
(

TYP.) ‘

T

Uj;@w A

ERICSSON PSU

N ,,,//
ERICSSON ]
GEN2 RAIL

NOTE:

1. EQUIPMENT QUANTITIES SHOWN FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES
ONLY AND MAY NOT REPRESENT THE FINAL INSTALLATION.

D ERICSSON RADIO & PSU

RADIO \

BAND STRAP (TYP.)

RADIO UNIT HINGE MOUNT

NOTE:

1. EQUIPMENT QUANTITIES SHOWN FOR ILLUSTRATIVE PURPOSES
ONLY AND MAY NOT REPRESENT THE FINAL INSTALLATION.

E REMOTE RADIO UNIT

INSTALLATION DETAILS
MNO08 LAMBERTON HS SC
LAMBERTON. MINNESOTA

PROJECT NO: 17528437
LOCATION CODE 472866
RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025

STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:

DATE: | DESCRIPTION:

07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266

SUBMITTAL:

INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:

ALT | 07/25/25 |REV.A

ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0

CHECKED!
5 KJM

EDGE
smemp | S11674

EDGE
PROJ. # 42266

SET
SEe | FINAL

wee | T=-9501

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC

|
|
|
‘ CONSULTANT:
| MANUFACTURER: CONCEALFAB MANUFACTURER: MSFDS - STREET MACRO
| MODEL: STANDARD POLE TOP MOUNT (PART # 007948) g MOUNTING KITS
‘ DIMENSIONS: 12.75" x 10.75" (H x W) 107 MODEL: ERICSSON KIT . Edge
DIMENSIONS: 14.24" x 6.22" x 5.33" (Hx W x D)
} TO BE USED WITH UNIVERSAL CANTENNA Consulting Engineers, Inc.
SLEEVE MOUNT W/ SINGLE BOLT ADAPTER 2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
| PLATE (PART # 900192-F) B%’;‘Eﬁwﬁg“"&‘o?éé“
\ * — www.edgeconsult.com
‘ > RAYCAP MOUNTING
— BRACKET " 5.33"
| ® 22
- CLIENT:
‘ /
| DISCONNECT/SURGE
| ARRESTOR fimi] ]
| verizon
| M ©
| UNIVERSAL CANTENNA SLEEVE — 10801 BUSH LAKE RD
| BAND STRAP (TYP.) 7 U ' BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438
|
} ENGINEER SEAL:
|
| 7 . . &
| < Q&
N 1 ) & \&0
YA
| ° < O O
- LN
| o = RS
| o % XY
b K0
| o o‘v&
} FR
[ [
|
‘ N 0 n H | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
‘ = SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
| 0}~ S s
‘ EEU Eij NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
‘ PROFESSIONAL ESNCGJE\J_FEE
— UNDER THE LAW.
| L /<"/ > STATE OF MINNESOTA.
‘ g
| 4
~— ~— ISOMETRIC VIEW SIDE VIEW
} SIDE VIEW ISOMETRIC VIEW I —— E—
|
|
|
| DISCONNECT/SURGE ARRESTOR STANDARD POLE TOP MOUNT MSFDS - ERICSSON MOUNTING KIT N6«
| A B c =15 ,5
(2}
z
s
} MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON Q E 5
MODEL: GEN2 RAIL/BRACKET KIT MODEL: GEN2 RAIL/BRACKET KIT MODEL: SXK 109 2403/1 (U] o=
| DIMENSIONS: RAIL: 6.71" x VARIES x 1.4" (H x W x D) DIMENSIONS: 3.15" x 6.89" x 9.25" (H x W x D) (PACKAGE) 2 % z
| BRACKET: VARIES x VARIES x 2" (H x W x D) ***THIS ASSEMBLY DETAIL IS SHOWN IN VERTICAL ORIENTATION. B B WEIGHT: 7.1 LBS (PACKAGE) - (@)
| WEIGHT: VARIES ERICSSON RAIL ASSEMBLIES CAN BE INSTALLED IN HORIZONTAL N N MAXIMUM EQUIPMENT WEIGHT: 66.1 LBS = < E
| ORIENTATION. RAIL/BRACKET KIT IS SECURED TO POLE USING 1/2" N 4 2 -0
BAND STRAPS UTILIZING MOUNTING SLOTS ON RAIL, CALLED OUT o INCLUDES (1) BASE CLAMP, (2) HINGE BRACKETS, =1 o m
| . BELOW, OR CLAMPED TO POLE USING POLE CLAMP BACK PLATE (1) BACK CLAMP AND (2) BOLTS FOR ATTACHMENT o) % =
| 8 AND THREADED RODS (MAX. 5.1" DIA. POLE IF USING RODS) o = 5
| ’ 1 351 LBs. INSTALL POLE — ACCOMODATES (2) 3/4" BANDSTRAPS (NOT INCLUDED) =
} =] M 5] RAIL (TYP.) BAND STRAP (TYP.) —
| SLE — ASSEMBLED KIT = ,”w.'
| HEAVY MEDIUM LIGHT \ - ‘
| 11" SEF 901 377/3 SEF 901377/2 SEF 901 377/1 S~ BAND STRAP (TYP.) : \‘M‘w‘u,i N
| 5.27 LBS. _ POLE CLAMP || 1
| ISOMETRIC VIEW - BRACKET ~—_ poLE h D 1
spsene ! | s PROJECT NO 17528437
| sigls S~ ASSEMBLED KIT 1) “ N LOCATION CODE: | 472866
| <‘| B ‘\ | RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
} 1.5 |SOMETR|C V|EW - RA"_ 8 RAIL | \‘ ‘\‘| STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
1% JI X il ‘\I\I ) DATE: | DESCRIPTION:
| 7.031LBS. e NG “ % p q 07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266
} @M@M@m@ B Y i e N = =
; - | -
‘ glelsls z LRSS POLE GIL -~ N i SUBMITTAL:
‘ @ —— — “,l | | PLAN VIEW INT. | DATE: [DESCRIPTION:
| - === S . NZ i s [rev-o
| ! 8.80 LBS. ’ R /@ _ & -
| S EE ¢ (4) M8 HEX BOLT
FRONT VIEW -~ = =
‘ lalslel e /
| eisgizlisls POLE CLAMP - N (4) M8 FLAT WASHER H H
P v Y
} P - ~ (4) M8 HEX NUT
| 1 10.54 LBS. T & — ° ° ]
| 5 B m a8 M a8 m e m 5] M a8 " A
: — — vV vu o U N
| g slelslslels \_ H F arecken|
= = =
| 3 **x40" AND 63" RAILS BAND STRAP SLOT (TYP.) EDGE
| 5 NOT SHOWN Ebce | st1674
| o
| 2 FRONT VIEW SIDEVIEW  SIDE VIEW ISOMETRIC VIEW EXPLODED VIEW FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW e
| 5 RAIL RAIL BRACKET POLE CLAMP PROJ. #
| S SET [ FinaL
| 8 ERICSSON GEN2 RAIL/BRACKET KIT ERICSSON GEN2 RAIL/'BRACKET ASSEMBLY RADIO UNIT HINGE MOUNT
} é D E F SHEET
N
| % NUMBER T'502
|
|
|
\



CONSULTANT:
MANUFACTURER: RAYCAP MANUFACTURER: JMA MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON
MODEL: RVZDC-2210-P-48 MODEL: CX160MI236-1C MODEL: AIR1672
DIMENSIONS: 10.43" x 8" x 1.18" (H x W x D) DIMENSIONS: 35.4" x @ 14" (H x W) DIMENSIONS: 20.4" x 7.9" x 5.9" (H x W x D) Edge
WEIGHT: 8 LBS. WEIGHT: 35 LBS. WEIGHT: 26.45 LBS
POWER SOURCE: AC Consulting Engineers, Inc.

2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
BURNSVILLE, MN 55337

608.644.1449 VOICE
flfﬂ AT —HH: I CLIENT:

www.edgeconsult.com
erizon
\/ 10801 BUSH LAKE RD

BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438

1.18"

214"

2.5"

1 PORT LAYOUT

PLAN VIEW

7.9" 5.9"
| ENGINEER SEAL:

35.4"
32.9"

ANTENNA i s
//_ QQtoQ'éo

10.43"

20.4"

SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS
NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA.

O oooco

] | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN

5.6"

ISOMETRIC VIEW SIDE VIEW \ =5 gwev =0 . ﬂ
MOUNTING BRACKET

o FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW

A RAYCAP MOUNTING BRACKET B JMA CX160MI236-1C c ERICSSON AIR1672

MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON ] MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON MANUFACTURER: ERICSSON

MODEL: RADIO 4455 - MODEL: RADIO 4490 —— MODEL.: PSU 6308

DESCRIPTION: DUAL BAND RADIO, AC POWER "g DIMENSIONS: 20.6" x 15.7" x 7.0" (H x W x D) ¢ DIMENSIONS: 18.8" x 13.5" x 4.33" (H x W x D)
DIMENSIONS: 30" x 10.4" x 5.9" (H x W x D) = WEIGHT: 68.4 LBS WEIGHT: 30.86 LBS.

WEIGHT: 59.5 LBS j<l

MNO08 LAMBERTON HS SC
LAMBERTON. MINNESOTA

o] [e] E

PLAN VIEW

ANTENNA & EQUIPMENT
SPECIFICATIONS

A | w _ .

b :
‘ ‘ . e - PLAN VIEW ! M PROJECT NO 17528437
PLAN VIEW e w0 o LOCATION CODE: | 472866

104" 5.9"

TINEREY =y ™

RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
LT 1] 15.7" 7.0" 13.5" 433" DATE: | DESCRIPTION:
07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266

q SUBMITTAL:
[ 1L 1 — ” H_H H [m» INT. | DATE: | DESCRIPTION:

ALT | 07/25/25 |REV.A
ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0

wan

30"

20.6"
L2
®
18.8"
]

o] | TN ||
1”
|

g — ° ° g;!ECKED KJM

% = B HH =

% UQ \J Shees | st1e7a

8@ FRONT VIEW FRONTVIEW SIDEVIEW FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW Eoce | 42266

é SET

§ @ ERICSSON RADIO 4455 @ ERICSSON RADIO 4490 @ ERICSSON PSU 6308 (POWER SUPPLY UNIT) e | FNAL

e | T-701

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



CONSULTANT:
MANUFACTURER: RAYCAP

75" MODEL: RSCAC-1333-P-240 A
DIMENSIONS: 10.43"8.59"5.06" (H x WD) NEBREAKER PANEL TO DISCONNECT Y Edge
MAIN BREAKER: 60A Consuiting Engineers, Inc.

NEW ELECTRIC METER, 2101 HIGHWAY 13 W

BRANCH BREAKERS: UP TO (6) 15A, 20A, OR 30A BURNSVILLE, MN 55337

608.644.1449 VOICE
www.edgeconsult.com

@ A CAUTION A 8

Transmitting Antenna(s)
Radio frequency fields beyond

SECURED TO POLE EXTERIOR;
SEE DETAIL BELOW

SUPPLIED WITH MOUNTING BRACKET:
RVZDC-2210-P-48

L:\42200\42266\Design\CAD\CD\PIot\T-702.dgn

APPROVED EQUAL

TYP. CABLE MANAGEMENT

FRONT VIEW

SIDE VIEW

ELECTRIC METER

FIELD VERIFY (TYP.)

POLE HAND HOLE; PROVIDED AND
INSTALLED BY POLE MANUFACTURER

BOLT (TYP.)

ELECTRIC METER

F

EDGE
PROJ. # 42266

SET
SEe | FINAL

wowees | T=702

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| 1cto i
this point MAY EXCEED the FCC
\ Occupational exposure limit. Bﬂgﬁi\#‘%M;E;gﬁLﬁEER’\éG$ég ﬁ CLIENT:
} o gr:;uailzligl?::d signs and B 7.5 B THROUGH POLE INTERIOR \ [ VERIZON GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO
) . USE MANUFACTURER PROVIDED
| Call verizon at 1-800-264 6620 ] ] N CONDUIT PENETRATIONS TO PASS m
| point, - orkine beyond thls N GENERIC POLE SHOWN FOR CLARITY; \ LIQUIDTIGHT (OR APPROVED EQUIV.) ‘,‘I rlz n
| Sit ||.)/ PSLC:, SEE T-201 FOR SITE SPECIFIC POLE = FLEX CONDUIT FROM THE POLE \
ite H i ELEVATION | INTERIOR TO THE METER HOUSING
| - 7 Transmitting Antenna(s) 8.50" 5.06" ‘ BL})OOS%I\%'?OI—'NLAB;(I\‘JESRSBSB
| \ verizon J mﬂi‘:io :i':tq;;gg[f;'tﬁse *’FE&O'"‘ : : ‘ NEW LIQUIDTIGHT (OR APPROVED
| e el limit EQUIV.) FLEX CONDUIT FROM
ccupational exposure limit. NEW FIBER HAND HOLE; VERIFY MMHH | SERVICE CONDUIT TO ELECTRIC
| Obey all posted signs and BY PROVIDER LOCATION WITH
| ) site guidelines. SITE PLAN | /_ METER; VERIZON GENERAL ENGINEER SEAL:
| 75" “| call verizon at 1-800-264-6620 T NEW FIBER OPTIC P/ CONACTOR TO DETERMINE
PRIOR to working beyond this SERVICE CONDUIT; FINAL SIZE )
| point. BY PROVIDER . é'@
| ;i . Q I &
Site ID/ PSLC: GRADE | 400\ S
\ 3 v 111 Q~° @éé?'
i < 11 < ()
} Transmitting Antenna(s) A verizon J . | Ll It E Q&*&Oe
Radio frequency fields beyond this o T LlI—J = ovo° ¥
| point MAY EXCEED the FCC General | © o o 0‘&
| Population exposure limit. < & | z z QQ,(,&V'
| N Obey all posted signs and site =} w Hj
© ((“’)) guidelines. %) 7]
| Call Verizon at 1-800-264-6620 VAN
| PRIOR to working beyond this | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
| point. = SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
| Site ID/ PSLC: ) ) U] UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
| — — s NEW ELECTRIC SERVICE A Eeor,
| - verizon J NEW 2" SCH 40 PVC CONDUIT FROM FIBER CONDUIT FROM POWER THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
. PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
HAND HOLE TO POLE BASE; BY VERIZON GC SOURCE TO ELECTRIC METER UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
‘ = STATE OF MINNESOTA.
|
| NOTES: NOTES:
| FRONT VIEW SIDE VIEW
1. THE GC IS TO CONFIRM WITH VZW CE ON THE PROPER COLOR AND 1. CONDUIT TO BE 42" BELOW GRADE OR 6" BELOW FROST DEPTH,
} HEIGHT THE RF SIGNS ARE TO BE ATTACHED TO THE POLE WHICHEVER IS DEEPER.
| -
|
| RF WARNING SIGNS DISCONNECT / SURGE ARRESTOR CONDUIT ROUTING DETAIL E o<
| A B c E [/, X% 5
| aZ0R
I
| 5822
-
| z
| MANUFACTURER: MILBANK MOUNT: SADDLE BRACKET a : |9 3
‘ MODEL: U5168-XTL-100 DIMENSIONS: 6" x 18" x 2.2" (H x W x D) METER ORIENTATION w o % 3
DIMENSIONS: 30" x 14.125" x 4.5" (H x W x D) -l Z
| WEIGHT: 42 LBS. ROADWAY °<5 m GEJ '9
| - <
‘ 100 AMP HD BYPASS RNGLS 4T/5T SIDE WIREWAY TRAFRIS FLORY P 8 3
‘ OH/UG METER MAIN 22kA SCCR MOUNT TO BE SECURED TO NOTE: P 0
| POLEBY GC (TYP.) C;D] TO BE MOUNTED |"_‘ n é <
| THIS SIDE; OPPOSITE b4
| POLE  THE FLOW OF TRAFFIC <
} A — ;
| 14.125" 45" \.\;\;\ —
| T I
| TOWER STANDOFF BRACKET UNIVERSAL SNAP-IN e = T —- sy
| 2" CONDUIT PENETRATION IN e e por
| —_ — . POLE WALL (TYP.); PROVIDED - ———yp -
AND INSTALLED BY POLE LOCATION CODE: | 472866
} —J MANUFACTURER RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
= STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
‘ N = DF;‘I(IiLLESEEISE ;—SA¥g NCSH DATE: | DESCRIPTION:
| = )
‘ POLE s FIELD VERIFY (TYP.) 07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266
TOWER STANDOFF BRACKET; S
| 1-1/2" TO 3" DIA.: SITE PRO 1 #: MST-O / SADDLE BRACKET (TYP.); ABB P/N ELECTRIC METER SUBMITTAL:
| OR APPROVED EQUAL #PMBJS4 (OR APPROVED EQUIV.); /_ INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:
| 3" DIA. AND UP: SITE PRO 1 #: LST-0 BRACKET CAN BE ATTACHED TO ALT | 07125125 |REV. A
\ OR APPROVED EQUAL © o 5 THE POLE IN EITHER ORIENTATION,
| ® RAIL ON TOP OR BOTTOM CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL | ALT | 08/15/25 | REV. 0
| MASTER LOCK PADLOCK
175D ON THE BASE OF THE
| O METER DOOR; SUPPLIED BY
| —_— CONTRACTOR
| 1/2" STAINLESS STEEL ] —
| BAND STRAPS SUPPLIED —_ 6 —]
BY CONTRACTOR e —E—
| —6- — _ | ——
‘ dod DRILL MOUNTING HOLES; TTe— T
| FIELD VERIFY (TYP.) - CHECKED| 1« j\1
| BY
| UNIVERSAL SNAP-IN; NEW POLE
| SITE PRO 1 #: 12SH-3 OR DRILL MOUNTING HOLES; WASHER (TYP.) S, | s11e74
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
\



L:\42200\42266\Design\CAD\CD\PIlot\E-101.dgn

NORTH
Y,

EXISTING
BUILDING

R-\-\( LN
pROPE
pPRO%:
A GRASS -
EXISTING
BUILDING
1 7, E
RTY LN
EXISTING _ , _pROPE! 2%
BUILDING APPROX Z

\ EXISTING
EXISTING POLE MOUNTED TRANSFORMER, BUILDING
TO BE USED AS POWER SOURCE.
%
2
%
2
®
e
O \
e}
z
%
\ \NE
pROPERTLE
APPROX‘
-
=}
[
=)
EXISTING
BUILDING

EXISTING

BUILDING /_,\55'

—
//‘ — o = EB"/
% 149'-
% - N
/

7 2

UTILITY PLAN

A

7\ ‘
e N )

/ 480 )

&

\
NEW ELECTRIC METER; \ 54
BY VERIZON GC \
STREET SIGN \
(TYP.) \
\
(o]
/ g
B\
\

EXISTING ELECTRICAL SERVICE CONDUIT TO
ROUTE BETWEEN POLE BASE AND POWER
SOURCE, APPROX. 490'-0" + IN LENGTH;

BY REDWOOD ELECTRIC

i1 o
\ 'O

£ e
~ NEW FIBER HAND HOLE;

et

\
NEW FIBER OPTIC CONDUIT;
BY FIBER PROVIDER---.,e

BY: FIBER PROVIDER™

1
NEW 2" SCH. FIBER OPTIC SERVICE
CONDUIT BETWEEN FIBER HAND
HOLE AND POLE BASE; BY VERIZON

GC \ (L)

NEW POLE AND CONCRETE
F?UNDATION %’Y; BY VERIZON GC
ane®

\/’K
\)

b
@)

EXISTING UNDERGROUND
UT‘LITY LINE (TYP.)
\‘\’\
‘ (D\

LEGEND: (THIS SHEET)

CONSULTANT:

N Edge

15'

SCALE: 11" x 17" - 1" =30

GAS MAIN G G G Consulting Engineers, Inc.
2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
SANITARY SEWER sS sS ss Ry SR
www.edgeconsult.com
STORM SEWER ST ST ST
STREET LIGHTS E E £ CLIENT:
FIBER OPTIC FO FO FO -
WATER verizon
TELEPHONE T T T BL?S%A%?SNL,AI\/}I(I&;B%
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC OHE OHE: OHE
NEW ELECTRIC £ 3 E ENGINEER SEAL:
NEW FIBER OPTIC FO FO FO &
o
S8
49@‘%"‘?
NOTES: (THIS SHEET) &5
.09;3?
1. CONTRACTOR TO COMPLETE UTILITY LOCATE PRIOR TO COMPLETING QQQ&V'
ANY CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

2. CONTRACTOR TO MAINTAIN A MINIMUM 48" OF COVER BETWEEN
DIRECTIONAL CORE AND ROADWAY PAVEMENT TO THE EXTENT | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
PRACTICAL. SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR

UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS

3. CONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE A MINIMUM OF 12" OF CLEARANCE NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND

BETWEEN NEW CONDUIT AND EXISTING UTILITIES. THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE

4. ALL CONCRETE DAMAGED AS PART OF THIS WORK TO BE STATE OF MINNESOTA.
REPAIRED/REPLACED TO ITS ORIGINAL CONDITION.

5. ALL ASPHALT REMOVED DURING CONSTRUCTION IS TO BE PATCHED
AND REPAIRED TO ITS ORIGINAL CONDITION.

6. POT HOLE AND PATCH OVER ALL SANITARY SEWER LINES.

7. POT HOLE AND PATCH OVER ALL WATER LINES/MAINS.

8. THE SUBSURFACE UTILITY INFORMATION IN THIS PLAN IS UTILITY (@] '<£
QUALITY D. THIS UTILITY QUALITY LEVEL WAS DETERMINED 2] o
ACCORDING TO THE GUIDELINES OF CI/ASCE 38-02, ENTITLED Z9NH
STANDARD GUIDELINES FOR THE COLLECTION AND DEPICTION OF < Iy
EXISTING SUBSURFACE UTILITY DATA. -l % %

a s
>
FnZ
=
4
/ [~ °_°I %
Sl g2
‘ e\,P =3
&
w
e °
e W'
ohC
\5 ) PROJECT NO 17528437
"“ LOCATION CODE: | 472866
RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025
STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:
DATE: | DESCRIPTION:
R 07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266
SUBMITTAL:
INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:
L ALT | 07/25/25 |REV.A
A ALT | 08/15/25 [REV.0
F 4
)
CHECKED
o KM
3
EDGE
» STE D S11674
\
- EDGE
~ 5 prROJ.# | 42266
L |

22"x 34"-1"=158'

B POWER SOURCE

SET
S| FINAL

wees | E=101

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



L:\42200\42266\Design\CAD\CD\PIot\E-501.dgn

LEGEND: (THIS SHEET)

A EXOTHERMIC CONNECTION
Il MECHANICAL CONNECTION
@ COMPRESSION CONNECTION

CAN
ANTENNA

ANTENNA
INTEGRATED
RADIO

POWER
SUPPLY UNIT

ROUTE MAIN GROUND
CONDUCTOR THROUGH
FOUNDATION IN LIQUID-TIGHT
FLEXIBLE NON-METALLIC
CONDUIT TO 24" BELOW GRADE;
SEAL EXPOSED ENDS WITH
EXTERIOR GRADE 100%
SILICONE CAULK;

FOUNDATION GROUND;
SEE DETAIL TO RIGHT \

—————

~

MECHANICAL CONNECTION TO
ANTENNA MOUNT UNLESS ANTENNA
HAS DEDICATED GROUNDING POINT

| #6 SOLID TIN COATED MAIN
GROUND CONDUCTOR

RADIO

#6 THHN / TWN GREEN
INSULATED STRANDED
GROUND (TYP.)

DISCONNECT
—_—-- * SURGE ARRESTOR
[raul

ELECTRIC
METER

SN Y% /
50,80,
\/\i\/\\\//\ \/<\\,/\\ /( \i \

CONSULTANT:

<

w

=

o

=z

w

w

(2]
5/8" x 8-0" COPPER
CLAD STEEL
GROUND ROD (TYP.)

NOTES:

Rl

1. GROUNDING RISER FOR DIAGRAMMATIC PURPOSES ONLY. SEE ELEVATION DRAWINGS
FOR EQUIPMENT/ANTENNA LOCATIONS AND QUANTITIES.

ALL RIGID GALV. STEEL TO BE GROUNDED AT BOTH ENDS USING GROUNDING BUSHINGS.
GROUND WIRE TO BE RUN WITHIN 1/2" SCH. 40 PVC.
DRIVE GROUND RODS TO A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 6" BELOW GRADE

GROUNDING RISER

DIAGRAM

A

DIRECTIONAL

BORE

STREET
CENTERLINE
\

ECTION <l
AR AR AR SECTION UNDER SU,\?DE% SECTION UNDER Edge
#1 # #3 PAVEMENT OR VEHICLE GRAVEL GRASS OR BARE Consulting Engineers, Inc.
RAYCAP TRAFFIC AREAS \ SURFACE\ GROUND AREAS 2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
v v ¥ . BURNSVILLE, MN 55337
BOX A 7 7 A 608.644.1449 VOICE
/ / www.edgeconsult.com
RESTORE PAVEMENT SECTION [
—— AND BASE COURSE )
0200888 TYPE/THICKNESS AS WIDTH 5?35\‘5?_82 SNSEDED, CLIENT:
23888 S SPECIFIED, OR MATCH EXISTING AS REQUIRED :
ELECTRIC DD D 5@ o IF DETAILS NOT PROVIDED
METER | [E— =
L : / verizon
— AN\ /£ N
AWG CONDUCTOR [~ DUANA OANDANCANCA
ROUTE TO POWER \//\/ g NI LN, . BLOOMINGTON. M 55435
60 AMP TWO 74 \ ¢ </ DETECTABLE UTILITY WARNING TAPE; .
SOURCE, BY POWER POLE 240 VOLT. SN . TYP. ALL UTILITY TRENCH TYPES
PROVIDER; RRU RRU = N PA A
; #4 AWG TO w NN
SEE E-101 FOR NEW EQUIPMENT #1 #2 w KK
POWER ROUTE g O ENGINEER SEAL:
RAYCAP w q %L
= BOX % NN COMPACTED NATIVE SOIL &
PSU . /// o'&@@
& #1 NRROREE & O
R SELECT BACKFILL ( A AN |\ o
BEEEE SAND OR NATIVE SOIL) R [ UTILITY CONDUITS Y
8¢S S A R s?
220000 - /\ Lo 4
RIEAE ) NN RORS
| | o o - /\///\/ (’v“‘
. N QQ'Q&
: O NI
(7) AC CABLES \ N
(S3H)I(I§L1E‘)‘ /_I\vagl—% S / A % ¢ SELECT BACKFILL | HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
’ ) < X / / 4 X (SAND OR NATIVE SOIL) SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
N\ \\ / \\\ < \ \./ //\ \ UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
g 0" OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS
NOTES: —/ e 1-0 N NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
XTI HXLS THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
1. ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY FINAL ELECTRICAL ROUTING WITH UNDISTURBED SOIL PR ONAL ENGINEER
UTILITY COMPANY ON-SITE. STATE OF MINNESOTA.
2. ELECTRICAL CONDUCTOR SIZING IS BASED ON THE FOLLOWING ASSUMPTIONS:
240 VOLT SERVICE, SINGLE PHASE POWER, 100 A CIRCUIT, AND 3% ALLOWABLE NOTES:
VOLTAGE DROP. -
3. THE VERIZON GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO VERIFY ALL 1. UTILITY CONDUITS TO BE BURIED A MINIMUM DEPTH OF
REQUIRED CONDUCTOR AND CONDUIT SIZES DURING THE BIDDING PROCESS. 42" BELOW GROUND LEVEL OR 6® BELOW THE FROST LINE. 2
—
g
-
ELECTRICAL ONE-LINE DIAGRAM UTILITY TRENCH w o<
B C agg
> %5}
=T i
-
— -
==
D
1.0 m 1.0 o QEJ '9
U o3x
| ©
‘ CONCRETE 222
| FOUNDATION a é 2
z -
=
(]
(4
(U]

PO

\\\\(\\

NN
UTILITY
GIUZL,

N
LI,

4

o

A
N\

A
NI

LOCGATE PRIVATE ./
U UTILITIES WITHINS
X THIS zoNE/g//

NN AN

LOCATE SEWER &
WATER UTILITIES
WITHIN THIS ZONE

NOTE:

1.

CROSS SECTION REQUIRED WHEN TRENCH IS WITHIN 3' OF
PRIVATE UTILITIES, OR WITHIN 5' OF SEWER AND WATER UTILITIES
(OR WHEN DIRECTIONAL BORE IS WITHIN 1' OF ANY UTILITY)

TRENCH LOCATE REQUIREMENTS

N

UL RATED GROUNDING CLAMP RATED FOR
UNDERGROUND BURIAL OR CONCRETE ENCASEMENT

WRAP GROUND LEAD IN HEAT SHRINK
TAPE AT CONCRETE/GROUND INTERFACE
/ TO PREVENT CORROSION

#2 SOLID TINNED COPPER LEAD CONNECTED

<:_ TO REBAR W/ MECHANICAL CLAMP
h
/— PROPOSED GROUND ROD

NOTES:

1. FOUNDATION SHOWN IS
3. CONTRACTOR TO PROV

2. GROUNDING CONNECTIONS TO BE COVERED BY A MINIMUM OF 3" CONCRETE.

TYPICAL.
IDE ALL REQUIRED COMPRESSION CONNECTIONS.

REBAR CONNECTION

PROJECT NO: 17528437

LOCATION CODE 472866

RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025

STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:

DATE: | DESCRIPTION:

07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266

SUBMITTAL:

INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:

ALT | 07/25/25 | REV.A

ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0

CHECKED!
5 KJM

EDGE
smemp | S11674

EDGE
PROJ. # 42266

SET
SEe | FINAL

SHEET
NUMBER

E-501

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



L:\42200\42266\Design\CAD\CD\Plot\D-101.dgn

NEW CHANNELIZING DEVICE (TYP.)

DO NOT BLOCK TRAFFIC FLOW (10' MIN.)

|
| T

Kk—— &2
N
[N

EXISTING BIKE LANE, NARROW PARKING
LANE OR SHOULDER AVAILABLE

CONSTRUCTION VEHICLE PARKING
AND WORKING AREA

TABLE 1
POSTED DISTANCE BETWEEN SIGNS TAPER BUFFER
SPEED
(MPH)
A B c L (SEE NOTE)
15 100' 100" 100" 45' 100'
20 100' 100' 100' 80' 115'
25 100' 100' 100' 125' 155'
30 200' 200' 200' 180' 200'
35 200" 200' 200" 245' 250"
40 350" 350" 350" 320" 305'
45 350" 350" 350" 540' 360"
50 500' 500" 500" 600" 425'
55 500" 500" 500" 660" 495'
60 500" 500" 500' 720' 570"
65 500' 500" 500' 780" 645'
NOTES:
1. DISTANCES IN FEET UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.
2. CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY EXISTING SPEED LIMIT.
3. DISTANCES SHOWN ARE NOT VALID FOR LIMITED ACCESS HIGHWAYS.
CONSULT STATE D.O.T. MANUAL FOR DISTANCES.
4. ADJUST DISTANCES TO COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENT OF THE STATE OR
LOCAL HIGHWAY AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION. SEE NOTE 1/D-502.
5. TAPER LENGTHS SHOWN BASED ON 12' LANE WIDTH. SEE NOTE 18/D-502.

TEMPORARY MARKING
FOR CROSSWALK LINES

(CROSS-HATCHING
OPTIONAL)
3Y3H SSOHO
a3so1d ¥Ivm3aais

a
% st
o ER
<uw Nam) 1%}
B4 gz |8
MIVMSSOMD | | e ] i &
NVI¥L1S30d3d =h3) o
- l @ o
(OPTIONAL) /
PEDESTRIAN
CROSSWALK g\ ‘
b N d
7
J N D
SIDEWALK BARRICADE (TYP.)
L POLE LOCATION——/ <=

2
4

-

@ﬁ R
. —

PEDESTRIAN
SIGNAL (TYP.)
SIDEWALK CLOSED
CROSS HERE
PROVIDE PEDESTRIAN/WORKER SAFETY
CONTROL DEVICES IF REQUIRED
NOTES

NOTES:

1.

@nN

PLANS DEPICTED ARE GENERAL GUIDELINES FOR TEMPORARY VEHICULAR TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS (TCP) TO INCLUDE PEDESTRIAN AND WORKER
SAFETY. CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO HAVE PREPARED A SITE-SPECIFIC TCP FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL BY THE HIGHWAY AUTHORITY HAVING
JURISDICTION. IF REQUIRED, THE FIRM PREPARING THE TCP SHALL BE AUTHORIZED OR CERTIFIED BY THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

EXTEND CHANNELIZATION DEVICES INTO SHOULDER WHERE APPLICABLE.

DISTANCES AS INDICATED IN TABLE 1 SHOULD BE INCREASED FOR CONDITIONS THAT WOULD AFFECT STOPPING. DISTANCE SUCH AS DOWNGRADES OR
LIMITED SIGHT DISTANCES. DISTANCES CAN BE DECREASED FOR LOW-SPEED (RESIDENTIAL) AREAS WITH APPROVAL BY THE AUTHORITY HAVING
JURISDICTION. NIGHT-TIME WORK IS PROHIBITED UNLESS IT IS REQUIRED AS A CONDITION OF APPROVAL BY THE HIGHWAY AND LOCAL AUTHORITY
HAVING JURISDICTION.

SHOULDER TAPERS SHOULD BE 1/3 OF THE ON-STREET TAPER LENGTH.

MAINTAIN A MINIMUM LANE WIDTH OF 10'.

1. ALL TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNAGE, LAYOUTS AND PROCEDURES SHALL COMPLY WITH LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS AND MANUAL

OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD), LATEST EDITION, WHICHEVER IS MORE STRINGENT.

PRIOR TO ANY ROAD CONSTRUCTION, TRAFFIC CONTROL SIGNS AND DEVICES SHALL BE IN PLACE.

TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES FOR LANE CLOSURES INCLUDING SIGNS, CONES, BARRICADES, ETC. SHALL BE PLACED AS SHOWN ON PLANS. SIGNS SHALL

NOT BE PLACED WITHOUT ACTUAL LANE CLOSURES AND SHALL BE IMMEDIATELY REMOVED UPON REMOVAL OF THE CLOSURES.

SELECTION, PLACEMENT, MAINTENANCE, AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC, PEDESTRIANS, AND WORKERS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE MANUAL

OF UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD) - PART VI "TEMPORARY TRAFFIC CONTROL", AND LOCAL JURISDICTIONAL REQUIREMENTS UNLESS

OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS, AND SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE APPROPRIATE HIGHWAY AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

ADVANCE WARNING SIGNS, DISTANCES, AND TAPER LENGTHS MAY BE EXTENDED TO ADJUST FOR REDUCED VISIBILITY DUE TO HORIZONTAL AND

VERTICAL CURVATURE OF THE ROADWAY AND FOR ACTUAL TRAFFIC SPEEDS IF IN EXCESS OF POSTED SPEED LIMITS.

TAPERS SHALL BE LOCATED TO MAXIMIZE THE VISIBILITY OF THEIR TOTAL LENGTH.

CONFLICTING OR NON-OPERATING SIGNAL INDICATIONS ON THE EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL SYSTEMS SHALL BE BAGGED OR COVERED.

ALL EXISTING ROAD SIGNS, PAVEMENT MARKINGS AND/OR PLOWABLE PAVEMENT REFLECTORS WHICH CONFLICT WITH THE NEW TRAFFIC CONTROL

PLAN SHALL BE COVERED, REMOVED, OR RELOCATED. ALL TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES SHALL BE RESTORED TO MATCH PRE-CONSTRUCTION

CONDITION AFTER COMPLETION OF WORK.

9. CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT LOCAL AUTHORITY HAVING HIGHWAY JURISDICTION AND PROVIDE ADDITIONAL "FLAGMEN" OR POLICE SUPERVISION, IF
REQUIRED.

10.  ALL EXCAVATED AREAS WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO THE ROADWAY SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND PLACED ON A MINIMUM 6H:1V SLOPE PRIOR TO END OF EACH
WORK DAY. OTHER EXCAVATED AREAS WITHIN THE CLEAR ZONE ARE TO BE EITHER BACKFILLED OR PRECAST CONCRETE CURB BARRIER
CONSTRUCTION BARRIER SET TEMPORARILY IN PLACE TO SHIELD VEHICULAR AND PEDESTRIAN TRAFFIC.

11.  WHERE DICTATED BY LOCAL CONDITIONS, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE PROVISIONS FOR MAINTAINING PEDESTRIAN AND WORKER CROSSING
LOCATIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE CODES AND OSHA REQUIREMENTS.

12.  CONSTRUCTION ZONE SPEED LIMIT IF REDUCED FROM POSTED LIMITS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH MUTCD AND WILL BE DETERMINED BY THE
AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION.

13. THERE SHALL BE NO WORKERS, EQUIPMENT, OR OTHER VEHICLES IN THE BUFFER SPACE OR THE ROLL AHEAD SPACE.

14.  DRIVEWAYS AND/OR SIDE STREETS ENTERING THE ROADWAY AFTER THE FIRST ADVANCE WARNING SIGN SHALL BE PROVIDED WITH AT LEAST ONE W20-1
SIGN (ROAD WORK AHEAD) AS A MINIMUM.

15.  CONES MAY BE SUBSTITUTED FOR DRUMS AND INSTALLED UPON THE APPROVAL OF THE AUTHORITY HAVING JURISDICTION PROVIDED THEY COMPLY
WITH MUTCD.

16. THE SPACING BETWEEN CONES, TUBULAR MARKERS, VERTICAL PANELS, DRUMS, AND BARRICADES SHOULD NOT EXCEED A DISTANCE IN FEET EQUAL
TO 1.0 TIMES THE SPEED LIMIT IN MPH WHEN USED FOR TAPER CHANNELIZATION, AND A DISTANCE IN FEET EQUAL TO 2.0 TIMES THE SPEED LIMIT IN MPH
WHEN USED FOR TANGENT CHANNELIZATION.

17.  WHEN CHANNELIZATION DEVICES HAVE THE POTENTIAL OF LEADING VEHICULAR TRAFFIC OUT OF THE INTENDED VEHICULAR TRAFFIC SPACE, THE
CHANNELIZATION DEVICES SHOULD BE EXTENDED A DISTANCE IN FEET OF 2.0 TIMES THE SPEED LIMIT IN MPH BEYOND THE DOWNSTREAM END OF THE
TRANSITION AREA.

18. TAPER LENGTHS ARE CALCULATED AS FOLLOWS: L= WS?/60 (40 MPH AND HIGHER) OR L2= WS (OVER 40 MPH), WHERE W= OFFSET WIDTH (FT), S=
TRAFFIC SPEED (MPH).

H>owen

oONO o

TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN

A

PEDESTRIAN SAFETY PLAN

CONSULTANT:

N Edge

Consulting Engineers, Inc.
2101 HIGHWAY 13 W
BURNSVILLE, MN 55337
608.644.1449 VOICE
www.edgeconsult.com

CLIENT:

verizon

10801 BUSH LAKE RD
BLOOMINGTON, MN 55438

ENGINEER SEAL:

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THIS PLAN
SET WAS PREPARED BY ME OR
UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION
OTHER THAN THE EXCEPTIONS
NOTED IN THE SHEET INDEX, AND
THAT | AM A DULY LICENSED
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEER
UNDER THE LAWS OF THE
STATE OF MINNESOTA.

TRAFFIC & PEDESTRIAN PLANS
MNO08 LAMBERTON HS SC
LAMBERTON. MINNESOTA

PROJECT NO 17528437

LOCATION CODE: 472866

RFDS DATE: 06/17/2025

STRUCTURAL ANALYSIS:

DATE: | DESCRIPTION:

07/10/25 | REPORT NO. 42266

SUBMITTAL:

INT. | DATE: |DESCRIPTION:

ALT | 07/25/25 | REV.A

ALT | 08/15/25 |REV.0

CHECKED!
5 KJM

EDGE
smemp | S11674

EDGE
PROJ. # 42266

SET
SEe | FINAL

weex | D=101

© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC



© EDGE CONSULTING ENGINEERS, INC

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
| CONCRETE FOUNDATION
|
} POLE
| \
| 15" DIA. BOLT CIRCLE ¢
|
|
| o
| N
|
|
|
| 14.5" x 14.5" BASE
|
|
|
|
| FOUNDATION CHAMFER - ~
| FOUNDATION (PLAN VIEW) \ 78R
| A ‘
| .
} C AN . B
| il
|
|
| R =1
‘ / POLE 0 ] _— ANCHOR BOLT (TYP.)
| )/
\ ¥
| ] R ML= g
|
| | r
} %§ | EG L L HORIZONTAL SHEAR REINFORCING BAR (TYP.)
‘ _[ [ /_
| VERTICAL REINFORCING BAR (TYP.) )/
| z 1" FOUNDATION CHAMFER ABOVE \ U [ j
| = EXISTING GRADE S U=
‘ EXISTING GRADE ® ™ ;
| L — TT g CONCRETE FOUNDATION
| | //_
‘ '3
| R
| R
| a4 s |
| (4) 1-1/2" DIA. ANCHOR BOLTS WITH (3) HEX It
| |_— NUTS AND (2) WASHERS PER BOLT;
| 54" IN LENGTH k
| B
| qill
‘ i'-é}(')‘oDFl,As.l(,%A?,\l;lCRETEFOUNDATlON; et = B o At Tt Tttt ettt et et ot ot o e et e
| e ' ] = SOIL COMPACTION OF DISTURBED SOIL: 3
| E E =
| | = IF NEW FOUNDATION IS TO BE INSTALLED IN AN EXISTING HOLE =
(12) #4 HORIZONTAL SHEAR REINFORCING BARS; S E g = OR CAVITY, THE EXISTING HOLE OR CAVITY MUST BE BACKFILLED £
| | FIRST SHEAR TIE DOUBLED WITHIN THE FIRST B = AND COMPACTED TO SATISFACTORY CONDITIONS WITH NATIVE =
| P TOP 5" AND EVENLY SPACED THEREAFTER i = SOILS BEFORE INSTALLATION CAN OCCUR. THE CONTRACTOR IS =
| Py (o0} R = TO BACKFILL THE EXISTING HOLE OR CAVITY WITH 6 TO 8 INCH =
| = LIFTS TO 90-92% STANDARD PROCTOR WITH MODERATELY =
‘ Sk By = OPTIMUM MOISTURE CONTENT USING AN APPROPRIATE =
‘ U - = COMPACTION DEVICE SUCH AS A RAMMER. =
A E =
‘ =O| ¥ LA At A AL A A L A B A B A I L A B Al A I A A A L B I AL B B A L A L A B A B B B B
| < LU D
‘ Sk BT
| T
| IS
| . IS
‘ ‘ ] -
| [N
| ) )
‘ N
(12) #7 VERTICAL REINFORCING BARS EVENLY
| " SPACED FOUNDATION (ISOMETRIC VIEW)
| e C
|
|
|
| TABLE OF QUANTITIES
| 3" MIN.
} g MATERIAL DESCRIPTION SUPPLIED BY
| ® HORIZONTAL REBAR | (12) #4 ASTM A615 GRADE 60 CONTRACTOR
} VERTICAL REBAR (12) #7 ASTM A615 GRADE 60 CONTRACTOR
| 26" ANCHOR BOLT (4) 1-1/2" DIA. x 54" POLE MANUFACTURER
| CONCRETE 47B-1PF-4000; 4,000 PSI MIN. CONTRACTOR
| FOUNDATION (SIDE VIEW)
| B
|
|
|
|
|
|



City of

9-2-2025 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

FROM: Valerie Halter

SUBJECT: Stavnes Container

As requested by council | got additional quotes on moving the container from the Stavnes rental property
to Redwood Falls — approximately 35 miles. | gave each of them the same information. 40 foot container
not sure if it will be empty or full.

Midwest Storage — 612-920-3540 (New Brighton) — Has not returned call.

Lacey’s Services — 605-339-2747 (Sioux Falls)
e $225/hour
o  From the time they leave their location until they return.
e Can move loaded if not more than 10,000 pounds of stuff on the inside
¢ No mileage fees — just straight time charge

Northland Containers —
e $165/hour
o  From the time they leave their location until they return.
o  Can move loaded if not
¢ No mileage fees — just straight time charge

| will touch base with Chad on Monday and let you know any updates on Monday.




City of

9-2-2025 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

FROM: Valerie Halter

SUBJECT: 2026 Preliminary Budget

The city needs to set a preliminary levy by the end of September. The final levy set in December cannot
be HIGHER than this preliminary number. The preliminary number is used on the estimated property tax
statements sent to all property owners in Lamberton.

Attached are the preliminary budget numbers for all areas.
Wages - | did a 3% COLA.

| have set the preliminary levy to be 5%. This does not mean that is what the levy will need to be set at,
but it does mean the levy will not be set higher than this.

| do want to hold a work session to go over budget numbers and fee schedule before November.

We will need to pass a resolution accepting the 5% levy number of $879,900. The resolution is also
attached for you to see the breakdown.




2026 Preliminary Revenue Budget

Account Descr 2024 Budget | 2024 Amt|  2025Budget 2025YTL 2026Budget Notes
100 General Fund
R 100-31001|General Property Taxes $319,000.00 $387,621.47  $327,000.00 $263,102.04 365,000.00
R 100-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $250.00 $43.08 $500.00 $2,104.59 500.00
R 100-32101 Business Licenses & Permits $4,000.00 $2,654.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 2,500.00
R 100-32210 Building/Zoning Permits $750.00  $760.00 $750.00 $400.00 500.00
R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $600.00  $490.00 $750.00 $690.00 700.00
R 100-32260 ATV Permits $300.00  $525.00 $550.00 $510.00 500.00
R 100-32280 Cash Long/Short $0.00  $358.00 $0.00 $88.38 -
R 100-33101 Federal Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 345,000.00
R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $344,500.00 $346,159.50  $334,810.00 $145,679.96 -
R 100-33416 Police Training Reimbursemer $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 100-33418 Street State Aid $0.00 $16,059.50 $23,505.00 $0.00 18,000.00
R 100-33440 State Grants $65,000.00 $19,682.75 $0.00 $55,506.40 323,000.00 LSL Grants
R 100-33450 State Aid-Other (Training) $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $0.00 -
R 100-33470 Fire State Aid $20,000.00 $26,209.15  $25,000.00 $0.00 25,000.00
R 100-33480 Police State Aid $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 - Should Qualify for now
R 100-33620 Other County Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
R 100-33640 Grants from Private Foundatio ~ $15,000.00 $1,525.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 100-34101 Community Center/Hall Rent $2,000.00 $2,100.00 $2,000.00  $1,150.00 1,500.00
R 100-34108 Administration Charges $1,500.00  $836.11 $1,500.00 $541.91 1,000.00
R 100-34201 Special Police Services $0.00  $180.33 $200.00 $156.00 200.00
R 100-34202 Special Fire Protection Servic $5,000.00 $9,000.00 $7,500.00 $10,800.00 8,000.00
R 100-34207 Fire Contracts $30,000.00 $2,700.00 $35,175.00 $35,175.00 35,000.00
R 100-34405 Mowing/Str Servicces $2,000.00 $2,191.90 $1,500.00 $985.95 1,500.00
R 100-34503 Clinic Rent $7,800.00 $7,800.00 $8,400.00  $5,900.00 9,000.00
R 100-34720 Swimming Pool Fees $13,000.00 $15,854.00 $16,000.00 $15,745.00 15,000.00
R 100-34725 Swimming Pool Lessons $7,000.00 $8,085.00 $8,000.00  $9,561.50 9,000.00
R 100-34740 Concessions $4,000.00 $4,834.45 $4,800.00 $6,423.00 5,500.00
R 100-34780 Camping & Park Reservation F  $15,000.00 $19,827.61 $18,000.00 $12,530.42 15,000.00
R 100-35101 Court Fines $500.00  $309.10 $500.00 $704.90 750.00
R 100-35102 Parking Tickets/Admin Fines $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 100-36200 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $0.00 $6,939.53 $0.00 $1,367.89 -
R 100-36210 Bank Interest $30,000.00 $29,811.30 $3,500.00 $21,094.58 10,000.00
R 100-36230 Donations/Contributions $12,000.00 $23,847.10 $20,000.00 $10,000.00 10,000.00
R 100-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $5,000.00 $11,948.37  $10,000.00 $8,642.20 5,000.00
R 100-36250 Sale of scrap material $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

10f5



2026 Preliminary Revenue Budget

R 100-39100|Sale of Assets $1,000.00 $607.53 $0.00 $1.00 1,000.00

R 100-39201 | Transfer From Governmenta F $4,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 100-39990 | Sale of Investments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
100 General Fund $914,200.00 $948,959.78  $856,940.00 $608,860.72  1,208,150.00 Large increse LSL Grant
201 Ambulance
R 201-33450 State Aid-Other (Training) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 201-34205 Ambulance Revenues $66,000.00 $145,009.44 $66,000.00 $86,197.43 90,000.00
R 201-34208 Ambulance Contracts $31,000.00 $34,300.00 $31,000.00 $13,675.00 33,000.00
R 201-36210 Bank Interest $150.00 $5,264.65 $20.00 $66.16 50.00
R 201-36230 Donations/Contributions $10,000.00 $2,900.00 $10,000.00 $2,100.00 5,000.00
R 201-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $2500.00 $158.96 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 201-39201 Transfer From Governmenta F ~ $12,000.00 $12,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
201 Ambulance $121,650.00 $199,633.05 $107,020.00 $102,038.59 128,050.00
207 EDA
R 207-34102 EDA Land Rent $12,590.00 $12,417.90 $12,500.00 $0.00 12,500.00
R 207-36210 Bank Interest $400.00 $5,550.18 $1,500.00 $1,425.88 1,000.00
R 207-36241 Temporary Loans Repaid Prin $4,575.00 $5,793.60 $4,700.00 $3,862.40 4,800.00
R 207-36242 Temporary Loans Repaid Inter $1,190.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 900.00
R 207-39201 Transfer From Governmenta '~ $40,000.00 $40,000.00 $41,000.00 $0.00 40,000.00
R 207-39990 Sale of Investments $0.00 $0.28 $0.00 $0.00 -
207 EDA $58,755.00 $63,761.96  $60,700.00  $5,288.28 59,200.00
211 Library No revenue given by Alicia
R 211-31001 General Property Taxes $65,000.00 $65,000.00  $65,000.00 $0.00 65,000.00 Minimum required levy support $28,800
R 211-32280 Cash Long/Short $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
R 211-33620 Other County Grants and Aids ~ $14,000.00 $7,884.38 $14,000.00 $4,744.27 14,000.00
R 211-34760 Library Use Fees (Not Fines) $300.00 $337.75 $300.00 $166.50 250.00
R 211-35103 Library Fines $100.00  $246.80 $150.00 $193.80 150.00
R 211-36210 Bank Interest $20.00 $416.56 $600.00 $0.86 150.00
R 211-36230 Donations/Contributions $3,000.00 $5,184.25 $3,000.00 $2,775.00 3,000.00
R 211-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $0.00 $1,420.80 $2,000.00 $325.00 500.00
211 Library $82,420.00 $80,490.54  $85,050.00 $8,205.43 83,050.00
308 2019B GO Refunding Bond
R 308-31001 General Property Taxes $16,000.00 $17,983.98 $20,000.00 $9,101.84 18,000.00
R 308-31951 Principal on Spec Assess $4.800.00 $1,718.53 $0.00 $1,927.14 3,500.00

20f5



2026 Preliminary Revenue Budget

R 308-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $150.00 $2,566.50 $110,000.00 $242.74 250.00
R 308-36210 Bank Interest \ $50.00 $913.40 $7,800.00 $13.58 25.00
R 308-39202 Transfer From Enterprise Fund $100,000.00 $0.00 $7,600.00 $0.00

R 308-39990 Sale of Investments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
308 2019B GO Refunding Bond $121,000.00| $23,182.41| $145,400.00| $11,285.30 21,775.00
309 2021A Refunding Bond-was 2013B

R 309-31001 General Property Taxes $90,000.00 $89,582.41 $90,000.00 $51,186.28 90,000.00
R 309-31951 Principal on Spec Assess $325.00 $306.29  $17,000.00 $4,669.35 9,000.00
R 309-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $325.00 $1,144.68 $500.00 $2,004.24 500.00
R 309-36210 Bank Interest $3,000.00 $10,315.86 $5,000.00 $5,320.58 4,500.00
R 309-39301 Bond Proceeds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 309-39320 Premiums on bonds sold $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 309-39990 Sale of Investments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
309 2021A Refunding Bond-was 2013B $93,650.00| $101,349.24|  $112,500.00| $63,180.45 104,000.00
310 2019A GO Imp

R 310-31001 General Property Taxes $270,000.00 $268,643.16  $270,000.00 $153,566.79 270,000.00
R 310-31951 Principal on Spec Assess $60,000.00 $22,746.77 $6,000.00 $17,145.46 20,000.00
R 310-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $1,000.00 $25,785.63  $30,000.00 $18,848.34 20,000.00
R 310-36210 Bank Interest $1,500.00 $14,927.79  $10,000.00 $11,901.59 10,000.00
310 2019A GO Imp $332,500.00| $332,103.35|  $316,000.00 $201,462.18 320,000.00
400 CIP/Perm Imp Fund (Gen)

R 400-36210 Bank Interest $7,000.00 $13,402.10  $10,000.00 $9,832.21 10,000.00
R 400-39203 Transfer In $70,000.00 $70,000.00  $70,000.00 $0.00 70,000.00
400 CIP/Perm Imp Fund (Gen) $77,000.00| $83,402.10)  $80,000.00, $9,832.21 80,000.00
401 CIP/Perm Imp Enterprise Res

R 401-36210 Bank Interest $4,500.00 $18,180.92 $7,000.00 $6,720.04 7,000.00
R 401-39203 Transfer In $55,000.00 $55,000.00  $60,000.00 $0.00 60,000.00
401 CIP/Perm Imp Enterprise Res $59,500.00) $73,180.92|  $67,000.00| $6,720.04 67,000.00
410 2019/20 Imp Const in Progress

R 410-36210 Bank Interest $4,000.00 $0.51 $15,000.00 $3,873.22 5,000.00
R 410-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 410-39203 Transfer In $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 410-39301 Bond Proceeds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

30f5



2026 Preliminary Revenue Budget

R 410-39320 Premiums on bonds sold $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 410-39990 Sale of Investments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
410 2019/20 Imp Const in Progress $4,000.00 $0.51 $15,000.00 $3,873.22 5,000.00
601 Water

R 601-31951 Principal on Spec Assess $10,000.00 $0.23 $11,000.00 $0.00 5,000.00
R 601-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $500.00 $10,386.90 $150.00 $0.00 150.00
R 601-33101 Federal Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 601-33439 PERA Pension Revenue $0.00 -$7.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 601-36210 Bank Interest $150.00 $250.57 $2,000.00 $34.95 50.00
R 601-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $205,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 601-37101 Water $205,000.00 $190,262.62 $225,000.00 $127,576.84

R 601-37150 Connection Fees $500.00 $1,319.41 $1,000.00 $126.56

R 601-37160 Penalties and Interest-water b $3,000.00 $4,726.82 $2,500.00 $3,341.12

R 601-39201 Transfer From Governmenta F $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 601-39700 Capital Contributions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 601-39999 Prior Period Adjustment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
601 Water $424,150.00| $206,939.55|  $241,650.00 $131,079.47 5,200.00
602 Sewer

R 602-31951 Principal on Spec Assess $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 602-31952 Penalty & Int Spec Assess $0.00 $2,376.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 602-33439 PERA Pension Revenue $0.00 -$5.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 602-36210 Bank Interest $100.00 $2,962.31 $150.00 $49.43 100.00
R 602-37150 Connection Fees $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 602-37160 Penalties and Interest-water b $3,000.00 $3,973.86 $2,750.00 $3,389.82 2,750.00
R 602-37201 Sewer $193,000.00 $185,633.03 $205,000.00 $128,943.54 220,000.00
R 602-39700 Capital Contributions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 602-39999 Prior Period Adjustment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
602 Sewer $196,100.00| $195,940.20)  $207,900.00 $132,382.79 222,850.00
603 Garbage Collection

R 603-33439 PERA Pension Revenue $0.00 -$1.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 603-36210 Bank Interest $40.00 $1,130.65 $50.00 $14.47 25.00
R 603-37160 Penalties and Interest-water b $750.00 $597.54 $500.00 $465.49 500.00
R 603-37301 Garbage $21,000.00 $20,966.39 $24,000.00 $14,292.44 24,000.00
R 603-39999 Prior Period Adjustment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
603 Garbage Collection | $21,790.00] $22,693.58]  $24,550.00 $14,772.40] 24,525.00 |

4 of 5



2026 Preliminary Revenue Budget

617 Storm Sewer

R 617-36210 Bank Interest $50.00 $2,647.84 $75.00 $57.28 75.00
R 617-37160 Penalties and Interest-water b $1,600.00 $1,750.22 $1,200.00 $1,673.24 1,200.00
R 617-38001 Storm Sewer $82,000.00 $88,609.91 $95,000.00 $61,030.71 95,000.00
R 617-39700 Capital Contributions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
617 Storm Sewer $83,650.00) $93,007.97|  $96,275.00 $62,761.23 96,275.00
700 ARPA

R 700-33101 Federal Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 700-36200 MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 700-36210 Bank Interest $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

700 ARPA $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

800 Small Cities Development Grant

R 800-33440 State Grants $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

R 800-36210 Bank Interest $10.00  $306.95 $25.00 $2.49

R 800-36240 Refunds & Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -

R 800-36241 Temporary Loans Repaid Prini $4,700.00 $4,082.40 $2,200.00  $2,125.97 1,800.00
R 800-36242 Temporary Loans Repaid Inter $25.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -
800 Small Cities Development Grant $4,735.00) $4,389.35 $2,225.00) $2,128.46 1,800.00
TOTALS $2,595,125.00 | $2,429,034.51/$2 418,210.00 $1,363,870.77 | 2 426,875.00

50f5



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

Account Descr 2024 Budget 2024 Actual 2025 Budget 2025 As of 2026 Budget
41110
E 100-41110-103|PT Wages $11,000.00 $0.00 $11,000.00 $120.00 $11,000.00
E 100-41110-122 Employer FICA Contributions $650.00 $0.00 $650.00 $7.44 $650.00
E 100-41110-126 Employer Medicare $150.00 $1.06 $150.00 $1.74 $150.00
E 100-41110-151|Workers Comp Ins $100.00 $60.88 $100.00 $82.96 $100.00
MN Leave - New $484.00
E 100-41110-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $1,200.00 $1,082.79 $2,000.00 $1,897.52 $2,500.00
E 100-41110-315|Travel Conference Schools $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
41110 $13,600.00 $1,144.73 $13,900.00 $2,109.66 $14,884.00
41425 Clerk
E 100-41425-101 FT Wages $52,000.00 $36,695.24 $52,000.00 $39,120.11 $49,000.00
E 100-41425-103 PT Wages $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $10000.00
E 100-41425-121 Employer PERA Contributions $3,400.00 $2,351.19 $3,500.00 $2,492.18 $3,900.00
E 100-41425-122 Employer FICA Contributions $3,800.00 $2,237.59 $3,400.00 $2,387.79 $3,700.00
E 100-41425-126 Employer Medicare $800.00 $523.32 $750.00 $558.37 $900.00
MN Leave - New $275.00
E 100-41425-130 Employer Paid Life Ins. $350.00 $220.15 $350.00 $233.34 $350.00
E 100-41425-131 Employer Paid Health Ins. $7,436.77 $0.00 $8,600.00 $0.00 $12,500.00
E 100-41425-151 Workers Comp Ins $425.00 $172.81 $250.00 $125.83 $200.00
E 100-41425-180 Health Savings Account $1,050.00 $525.00 $1,050.00 $525.00 $1,050.00
E 100-41425-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $3,800.00 $1,071.05 $5,000.00 $1,433.21 $4,000.00
E 100-41425-315 Travel Conference Schools $2,500.00 $1,537.96 $2,500.00 $2,046.13 $2,500.00
E 100-41425-445 Licenses & Taxes $200.00 $98.38 $250.00 $70.23 $200.00
E 100-41425-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
41425 Clerk $75,761.77 $45,432.69 $77,650.00 $48,992.19 $88,575.00
41450 Publishing
E 100-41450-340 Printing Publishing Advertisin $500.00 $2,170.00 $1.500.00 $2,318.50 $2,500.00 LSL/Roads
41450 Publishing $500.00 $2,170.00 $1,500.00 $2,318.50 $2,500.00
41530 Accounting
E 100-41530-305 Other Contractual Services $25000.00 $18,595.00 $25,000.00 $22,200.50 $25,000.00 1099 Filing $1,000
41530 Accounting $25000.00 $18,595.00 $25,000.00 $22,200.50 $25,000.00
41610 Attorney
E 100-41610-305 Other Contractual Services $10000.00 $1.786.00 $6,500.00 $852.00 $5,000.00

10f13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

41610 Attorney $10000.00 $1,786.00 $6,500.00 $852.00 $5,000.00
41700 Planning/Zoning/Code Enf
E 100-41700-305 \Other Contractual Services $20000.00 $21,192.62 $25,000.00 $14,762.68 $25,000.00
41700 Planning/Zoning/Code Enf $20000.00  $21,192.62  $25,000.00  $14,762.68  $25,000.00
41940 City Hall
E 100-41940-103 | PT Wages $4,500.00 $69.18 $3,000.00 $403.79 $2,500.00
E 100-41940-121 |Employer PERA Contributions $300.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-41940-122 | Employer FICA Contributions $125.00 $4.30 $100.00 $25.04 $155.00
E 100-41940-126 |Employer Medicare $50.00 $0.99 $0.00 $5.84 $40.00
MN Leave $11.00
E 100-41940-151 |Workers Comp Ins $375.00 $79.16 $150.00 $53.15 $100.00
E 100-41940-210 |Operating Supplies & Postage $500.00 $353.70 $500.00 $137.82 $3000.00 2500 for elec pannel
E 100-41940-361 |Insurance: General Liability $1,250.00 $1,263.50 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
E 100-41940-381 | Utilities $3,500.00 $1,677.53 $3,000.00 $2,194.81 $3,000.00
E 100-41940-445 | Licenses & Taxes $2,500.00 $0.00 $50.00 $0.00 $200.00
E 100-41940-750 |Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
41940 City Hall $13,100.00 $3,448.36 $8,550.00 $2,820.45  $10,506.00
41950 Assessing
E 100-41950-305 |Other Contractual Services $7000.00 $6,684.00 $7.000.00 $6,871.00 $6,900.00
41950 Assessing $7000.00 $6,684.00 $7,000.00 $6,871.00 $6,900.00
41960 Elections
E 100-41960-103 |PT Wages $2,500.00 $570.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1500.00
E 100-41960-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $0.00 $6.51 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00
E 100-41960-126 |Employer Medicare $0.00 $1.52 $0.00 $0.00 $220.00
E 100-41960-210 |Operating Supplies & Postage $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $100.00
E 100-41960-315 | Travel Conference Schools Trn¢ $200.00 $243.66 $0.00 $0.00 $750.00
E 100-41960-340 |Printing Publishing Advertisin $100.00 $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
41960 Elections $3,050.00 $921.69 $0.00 $0.00 $2670.00
42110 Police
E 100-42110-101 |FT Wages $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $16,771.70 $88000.00
E 100-42110-103 |PT Wages $50,000.00 $34,311.73  $100,000.00 $25,875.58 $6,000.00
E 100-42110-112 |Clothing Allowance $500.00 $109.99 $1,000.00 $1,225.95 $1,000.00
E 100-42110-121 |Employer PERA Contributions $10,750.00 $6,013.62 $17,700.00 $7,505.93 $16,750.00

20f13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 100-42110-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $0.00 $14.10 $3,500.00 $0.00 $6,000.00
E 100-42110-126 |Employer Medicare $1,000.00 $503.26 $7,800.00 $603.43 $1,400.00
MN Leave $450.00
E 100-42110-130 |Employer Paid Life Ins. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $78.38 $200.00
E 100-42110-151 |Workers Comp Ins $5,500.00 $3,750.56 $4,200.00 $3,882.11 $4,000.00
E 100-42110-210 |Operating Supplies & Postage $5,000.00 $2,665.93 $5,000.00 $2,014.29 $5,000.00
E 100-42110-211 |Motor Fuel & Lubricants $2,000.00 $310.93 $2,500.00 $552.72 $5,500.00
E 100-42110-305 |Other Contractual Services $7,500.00 $7,393.90 $12,000.00 $3,402.47 $10,000.00
E 100-42110-315 |Travel Conference Schools Trng $1,000.00 $571.05 $1,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
E 100-42110-361 | Insurance: General Liability $4,500.00 $4,427.00 $4,800.00 $0.00 $4,800.00
E 100-42110-381| Utilities $1,500.00 $770.97 $1,500.00 $1,016.41 $1,700.00
E 100-42110-401|Rep & Maint-Bldg $2,500.00 $654.99 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
E 100-42110-404|Rep & Maint-Equipment $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $211.10 $2,000.00
E 100-42110-445|Licenses & Taxes $25.00 $45.81 $50.00 $124.00 $200.00
E 100-42110-510|Equip & Improvements $5,000.00 $11,224.79 $5,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 Cameras, Taser, Squad
E 100-42110-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
42110 Police $99,275.00 $72,768.63  $170,550.00 $63,264.07 $177,000.00
42220 Fire Fighting
E 100-42220-103 PT Wages $23,000.00 $0.00  $23,000.00 $0.00  $23,000.00
E 100-42220-122 Employer FICA Contributions $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
E 100-42220-124 State Cont for Fire Retirem $15,000.00 $0.00  $19,000.00  $26,209.15  $27,000.00
E 100-42220-125 City Contribution Fire Depart $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00
E 100-42220-126 Employer Medicare $350.00 $0.00 $350.00 $0.00 $350.00
MN Leave $125.00
E 100-42220-151|Workers Comp Ins $3,000.00 $2,236.13 $2,750.00 $2,320.56 $2,500.00
E 100-42220-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $10,000.00 $4.482.65 $10,000.00 $9,563.65 $10,000.00
E 100-42220-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $1,500.00 $557.63 $1,750.00 $609.39 $1,750.00
E 100-42220-305 Other Contractual Services $2,500.00 $2,275.58 $3,000.00 $781.53 $2,500.00
E 100-42220-315 Travel Conference Schools Trng $4,000.00 $2,175.18 $4,000.00 $1,920.00 $4,000.00
E 100-42220-361 Insurance: General Liability $3,250.00 $3,543.83 $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
E 100-42220-381 Utilities $3,500.00 $1,660.05 $3,000.00 $2,077.01 $3,000.00
E 100-42220-401 Rep & Maint-Bldg $1,000.00 $849.07 $1,000.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 elec panel
E 100-42220-404 Rep & Maint-Equipment $2,500.00 $1,326.80 $2,500.00 $2,830.17 $2,500.00
E 100-42220-445 Licenses & Taxes $25.00 $195.69 $250.00 $877.35 $1500.00
E 100-42220-510 Equip & Improvements $5,000.00  $13,037.48 $5,000.00 $8,203.28 $5,000.00
E 100-42220-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
42220 Fire Fighting $78,125.00  $32,340.09  $83,100.00  $57,392.09  $94,225.00

30f13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

42501 Civil Defense

E 100-42501-103|PT Wages $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
E 100-42501-122 | Employer FICA Contributions $125.00 $0.00 $125.00 $0.00 $125.00
E 100-42501-126 |Employer Medicare $30.00 $0.00 $30.00 $0.00 $30.00
MN Leave $10.00
E 100-42501-151|Workers Comp Ins $40.00 $12.16 $40.00 $12.56 $40.00
E 100-42501-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $50.00
E 100-42501-361|Insurance: General Liability $250.00 $249.00 $300.00 $0.00 $300.00
E 100-42501-381| Utilities $750.00 $528.00 $1,000.00 $528.00 $1,000.00
E 100-42501-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
42501 Civil Defense $3,695.00 $789.16 $3,995.00 $540.56 $0.00
43120 Street
E 100-43120-101 FT Wages $43,000.00 $31,927.62 $45,500.00 $36,456.58 $55,500.00
E 100-43120-112 Clothing Allowance $700.00 $340.93 $700.00 $0.00 $700.00
E 100-43120-121 Employer PERA Contributions $2,800.00 $2,264.37 $3,250.00 $2,593.75 $3,650.00
E 100-43120-122 Employer FICA Contributions $2,750.00 $1,955.64 $2,900.00 $2,233.07 $3,500.00
E 100-43120-126 Employer Medicare $650.00 $457.38 $700.00 $522.36 $810.00
MN Leave $250.00
E 100-43120-130 Employer Paid Life Ins. $100.00 $39.02 $100.00 $49.82 $100.00
E 100-43120-131 Employer Paid Health Ins. $5,200.00 $1,796.80 $5,800.00 $2,228.29 $5,800.00
E 100-43120-151 Workers Comp Ins $3,250.00 $1,577.89 $2,000.00 $1,133.32 $1,300.00
E 100-43120-180 Health Savings Account $1,200.00 $562.50 $1,200.00 $562.50 $1,200.00
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $17,500.00 $5,720.31 $15,000.00 $10,794.38 $15,000.00
E 100-43120-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $10,000.00 $3,899.20 $7,500.00 $3,176.72 $7,500.00
E 100-43120-305 | Other Contractual Services $125,000.00 $13.58  $150,000.00 $2,880.70  $150,000.00
E 100-43120-315 Travel Conference Schools Trng $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-43120-361|Insurance: General Liability $2,500.00 $2,637.25 $3,000.00 $500.00 $2,000.00
E 100-43120-381 |Utilities $4,500.00 $883.77 $3,500.00 $1,448.92 $3,500.00
E 100-43120-404 Rep & Maint-Equipment $5,000.00 $2,880.65 $5,000.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
E 100-43120-445 Licenses & Taxes $250.00 $406.90 $500.00 $150.13 $500.00
E 100-43120-510 Equip & Improvements $30,000.00 $51,835.46 $30,000.00 $16,946.67 $30,000.00
E 100-43120-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
43120 Street $254,400.00 $109,199.27 $276,650.00 $81,677.21  $286,310.00
43160 Street Lighting
E 100-43160-210‘Operatinq Supplies & Postage $1,000.00 $1,105.36 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,200.00

4 0f 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 100-43160-381| Utilities $11,000.00 $8,244.00 $12,500.00 $10,224.00 $13,000.00
E 100-43160-510 Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
43160 Street Lighting $12,000.00 $9,349.36 $14,000.00 $10,224.00 $14,200.00
43210 Sanitation/Clean
E 100-43210-305\Other Contractual Services $3,000.00 $1,107.27 $2,000.00 $1,238.45 $1,500.00
43210 Sanitation/Clean $3,000.00 $1,107.27 $2,000.00 $1,238.45 $1,500.00
44101 Clinic
E 100-44101-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $500.00 $91.28 $250.00 $54.82 $200.00
E 100-44101-305|Other Contractual Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-44101-361|Insurance: General Liability $1,500.00 $1,299.00 $3,000.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
E 100-44101-401|Rep & Maint-Bldg $1,750.00 $0.00 $25,000.00 $1,666.24 $5,000.00
E 100-44101-445|Licenses & Taxes $3,400.00 $2,772.36 $3,000.00 $2,858.00 $3,000.00
E 100-44101-510|Equip & Improvements $1,000.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-44101-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
44101 Clinic $8,150.00 $4,162.64 $33,750.00 $4,579.06 $9,700.00
45124 Swimming Pool
E 100-45124-103|PT Wages $36,000.00 $31,198.79 $32,000.00 $35,572.40 $39,000.00
E 100-45124-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $2,300.00 $1,934.31 $2,100.00 $2,205.50 $2,500.00
E 100-45124-126 |Employer Medicare $525.00 $452.37 $500.00 $515.79 $575.00
MN Leave $175.00
E 100-45124-151|Workers Comp Ins $2,750.00 $1,591.24 $1,800.00 $1,060.50 $1,200.00
E 100-45124-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $6,500.00 $6,117.59 $6,500.00 $6,641.88 $7,000.00
E 100-45124-221|Rep & Maint/Supplies $2,000.00 $201.04 $1,000.00 $2,368.62 $2,500.00
E 100-45124-250 Merchandise for Resale $2,750.00 $2,441.00 $2,750.00 $3,072.21 $3,200.00
E 100-45124-305 | Other Contractual Services $200.00 $273.53 $300.00 $341.53 $500.00
E 100-45124-315|Travel Conference Schools Trng $1,000.00 $2,590.00 $3,000.00 $1,950.00 $3,000.00
E 100-45124-340 | Printing Publishing Advertisin $100.00 $130.00 $200.00 $0.00 $200.00
E 100-45124-361 |Insurance: General Liability $3,250.00 $2,967.00 $3,200.00 $0.00 $3,200.00
E 100-45124-381 |Utilities $14,000.00 $4,166.22 $22,000.00 $5,244 11 $20,000.00
E 100-45124-445|Licenses & Taxes $2,500.00 $2,130.61 $2,500.00 $1,583.35 $2,500.00
E 100-45124-510|Equip & Improvements $7,000.00 $116.77 $5,000.00 $2,199.00 $3,000.00
E 100-45124-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
45124 Swimming Pool $80,875.00 $56,310.47 $82,850.00 $62,754.89 $88,550.00

50f 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

45202 Parks
E 100-45202-101 |[FT Wages $31,000.00 $56,310.47 $34,000.00 $25,127.34 $40,500.00
E 100-45202-121 | Employer PERA Contributions $2,050.00 $26,078.42 $2,000.00 $1,804.24 $2,650.00
E 100-45202-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $2,000.00 $1,479.61 $2,100.00 $1,535.12 $2,600.00
E 100-45202-126 |Employer Medicare $500.00 $1,599.00 $500.00 $359.17 $600.00
MN Leave $200.00
E 100-45202-130 | Employer Paid Life Ins. $50.00 $373.89 $50.00 $42.19 $60.00
E 100-45202-131 |Employer Paid Health Ins. $3,500.00 $26.03 $2,250.00 $1,912.44 $3,500.00
E 100-45202-151|Workers Comp Ins $3,250.00 $1,347.59 $2,000.00 $1,133.32 $1,200.00
E 100-45202-180 |Health Savings Account $750.00 $1,577.89 $750.00 $375.00 $700.00
E 100-45202-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $10,000.00 $375.00 $6,500.00 $2,631.09 $5,000.00
E 100-45202-211 |Motor Fuel & Lubricants $3,000.00 $3,888.07 $2,000.00 $866.93 $2,000.00
E 100-45202-305|Other Contractual Services $1,500.00 $547.35 $1,500.00 $2 377.76 $2,500.00
E 100-45202-340 | Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $2.561.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-45202-361 |Insurance: General Liability $3,750.00 $4,136.58 $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00
E 100-45202-381 | Utilities $3,750.00 $1,455.85 $4,100.00 $2,067.39 $4,000.00
E 100-45202-445 |Licenses & Taxes $1,000.00 $1,180.13 $2,000.00 $985.87 $1,000.00
E 100-45202-510 |Equip & Improvements $41,000.00 $29,334.21 $7,500.00 $0.00 $5,000.00
E 100-45202-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
45202 Parks $107,100.00 $132,272.04 $71,750.00 $41,217.86 $76,010.00
45300 Celebrations & Tourism
E 100-45300-311 \Other fees & Miscellaneous $2,000.00 $1,957.34 $3,000.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
45300 Celebrations & Tourism $2,000.00 $1,957.34 $3,000.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
45400 Community Center
E 100-45400-103 |PT Wages $14,300.00 $3,442.85 $7,500.00 $4,346.37 $11,500.00
E 100-45400-121 | Employer PERA Contributions $950.00 $248.15 $500.00 $267.25 $750.00
E 100-45400-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $900.00 $500.00 $62.49 $267.40 $725.00
E 100-45400-126 |Employer Medicare $225.00 $150.00 $3.68 $62.49 $175.00
MN Leave $50.00
E 100-45400-130 | Employer Paid Life Ins. $25.00 $25.00 $425.09 $3.68 $425.00
E 100-45400-131 |Employer Paid Health Ins. $600.00 $650.00 $159.32 $425.09 $650.00
E 100-45400-151|Workers Comp Ins $350.00 $350.00 $1,019.27 $159.32 $200.00
E 100-45400-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $61.53 $1,019.27 $1500.00
E 100-45400-305|Other Contractual Services $250.00 $250.00 $0.00 $61.53 $200.00
E 100-45400-361 |Insurance: General Liability $2,750.00 $3,000.00 $1,812.72 $0.00 $3,000.00
E 100-45400-381 | Utilities $2,500.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $1,812.72 $2500.00

6 of 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 100-45400-401|Rep & Maint-Bldg $500.00 $750.00 $154.78 $0.00 $750.00
E 100-45400-445|Licenses & Taxes $250.00 $250.00 $0.00 $154.78 $200.00
E 100-45400-510|Equip & Improvements $0.00 $500.00 $0.00 $0.00 $500.00
E 100-45400-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-45400-810|Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $65.00 $65.00 $0.00
45400 Community Center $25,350.00 $14,366.00 $11,763.88 $8,644.90 $23,125.00
46102 Shade Tree/Compost
E 100-46102-103 PT Wages $5000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-46102-122 Employer FICA Contributions $310.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-46102-126 Employer Medicare $75.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-46102-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $500.00 $329.93 $500.00 $165.30 $500.00
E 100-46102-305 Other Contractual Services $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00  $18,000.00 $20,000.00 Blvd Trees
E 100-46102-510 'Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,480.00 $0.00
46102 Shade Tree/Compost $25885.00 $329.93 $20500.00 $19645.30 $20500.00
49201 Unallocated
E 100-49201-311 Other fees & Miscellaneous $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-49201-340 Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-49201-361 ' Insurance: General Liability $11,250.00 $8,386.00 $9,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-49201-445 |Licenses & Taxes $1,000.00 $4,250.22 $5,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 100-49201-810 Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49201 Unallocated $12,250.00 $12,636.22 14000 0 0
49301 Other Financial Use
E 100-49301-720 Interfund Transfers $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
49301 Other Financial Use $35,000.00 $0.00 $35,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
201 Ambulance42153 Ambulance
E 201-42153-103 PT Wages $53,000.00 $0.00 $55,000.00 $12,831.10 $93,000.00
E 201-42153-121 Employer PERA Contributions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $951.75 $6100.00
E 201-42153-122 Employer FICA Contributions $3,500.00 $0.00 $3,500.00 $763.63 $5,800.00
E 201-42153-126 Employer Medicare $800.00 $0.00 $800.00 $178.56 $1400.00
MN Leave $410.00
E 201-42153-130 Employer Paid Life Ins. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $81.02 $150.00
E 201-42153-131 Employer Paid Health Ins. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $2,412.15 $5900.00
E 201-42153-151 Workers Comp Ins $6,500.00 $3,829.74 $4.500.00 $2.,852.65 $3,000.00

70f13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 201-42153-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $8,000.00 $7,400.08 $8,000.00 $8,576.60 $10,000.00
E 201-42153-211 |Motor Fuel & Lubricants $2,500.00 $1,043.01 $2,000.00 $1,973.71 $3,000.00
E 201-42153-305|Other Contractual Services $12,500.00 $12,857.08 $13,000.00 $15,494.90 $18,000.00
E 201-42153-315|Travel Conference Schools Trng $6,000.00 $1,250.00 $6,000.00 $4,955.00 $6,000.00
E 201-42153-361|Insurance: General Liability $1,400.00 $1,368.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
E 201-42153-381| Utilities $1,750.00 $760.30 $1,500.00 $1,016.39 $1,500.00
E 201-42153-401|Rep & Maint-Bldg $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $304.14 $2,000.00
E 201-42153-404|Rep & Maint-Equipment $3,000.00 $312.50 $2,000.00 $2,292.09 $2,500.00
E 201-42153-445|Licenses & Taxes $550.00 $121.46 $500.00 $22.50 $250.00
E 201-42153-510|Equip & Improvements $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 Backboard, Door Frames
E 201-42153-720|Interfund Transfers $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 201-42153-750| Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 201-42153-800|Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $56,945.00 $0.00 Cot Here should be under equuip
E 201-42153-810|Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 -$0.09 $0.00
42153 Ambulance $104,000.00 $28,94217  $102,300.00 $111,651.10  $162,510.00
207 EDA46501 Economic Development
E 207-46501-103 PT Wages $12,200.00 $9,802.58  $12,800.00  $10,633.97  $14,000.00
E 207-46501-121 Employer PERA Contributions $800.00 $620.75 $850.00 $671.45 $925.00
E 207-46501-122 Employer FICA Contributions $760.00 $597.07 $800.00 $648.85 $875.00
E 207-46501-126 Employer Medicare $180.00 $139.85 $190.00 $151.57 $225.00
MN Leave $65.00
E 207-46501-130 Employer Paid Life Ins. $125.00 $62.82 $150.00 $66.68 $150.00
E 207-46501-131 Employer Paid Health Ins. $2,200.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
E 207-46501-151 Workers Comp Ins $450.00 $228.37 $300.00 $169.95 $200.00
E 207-46501-180 Health Savings Account $300.00 $150.00 $300.00 $150.00 $300.00
E 207-46501-201 Office Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $1,300.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 207-46501-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $1,300.00 $787.60 $1,000.00 $761.01 $1,000.00
E 207-46501-305 Other Contractual Services $1,000.00  $16,138.59 $1,500.00 $839.04 $1,500.00
E 207-46501-315 Travel Conference Schools Trng $500.00 $518.00 $1,000.00 $17.03 $1,000.00
E 207-46501-340 Printing Publishing Advertisin $250.00 $0.00  $13,000.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 207-46501-445Licenses & Taxes $12,000.00 $11,829.96 $0.00 $12,450.95 $14000.00
E 207-46501-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 207-46501-800 Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 207-46501-810 Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 207-46501-811 Temporary Loans $25,000.00 $0.00  $25,000.00 $0.00  $25,000.00
46501 Economic Development $57,065.00  $40,875.59  $60,690.00  $26,560.50  $61,740.00

8 of 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

211 Library45501 Library

E 211-45501-101 |FT Wages $43,500.00 $29,777.08 $44 250.00 $32,062.26 $49,250.00
E 211-45501-103|PT Wages $3,500.00 $2,207.74 $3,500.00 $976.32 $2,600.00
E 211-45501-121|Employer PERA Contributions $3,575.00 $2,233.38 $3,200.00 $2,404.66 $3,400.00
E 211-45501-122 | Employer FICA Contributions $3,650.00 $1,965.20 $3,000.00 $2,029.82 $3,250.00
E 211-45501-126 |Employer Medicare $850.00 $459.59 $850.00 $474.70 $775.00
MN Leave $250.00
E 211-45501-130|Employer Paid Life Ins. $65.00 $33.11 $65.00 $33.12 $65.00
E 211-45501-131 |Employer Paid Health Ins. $6,100.00 $3,654.14 $5,800.00 $3,825.47 $5,900.00
E 211-45501-151|Workers Comp Ins $450.00 $242.86 $300.00 $162.13 $200.00
E 211-45501-180|Health Savings Account $1,500.00 $750.00 $1,500.00 $750.00 $1,500.00
E 211-45501-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $3,700.00 $2,853.91 $3,500.00 $2,130.58 $3,700.00 Alicia Numbers until end
E 211-45501-214 |Library Books $5,000.00 $2,868.17 $4,000.00 $2,544.75 $5,000.00
E 211-45501-215|Periodicals $800.00 $473.62 $500.00 $125.00 $500.00
E 211-45501-216|DVD and Multimedia $1,600.00 $749.52 $1,000.00 $294.11 $100.00
E 211-45501-305|Other Contractual Services $5,100.00 $5,408.59 $6,200.00 $5,541.53 $6,200.00
E 211-45501-310|Reading Programs Fees $600.00 $489.80 $500.00 $509.83 $500.00
E 211-45501-315|Travel Conference Schools Trng $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $0.00 $250.00
E 211-45501-340 |Printing Publishing Advertisin $100.00 $0.00 $35.00 $0.00 $100.00
E 211-45501-361|Insurance: General Liability $1,325.00 $2,699.00 $2,800.00 $0.00 $2,800.00
E 211-45501-381| Utilities $2,000.00 $1,622.74 $2,500.00 $1,812.59 $2,500.00
E 211-45501-445|Licenses & Taxes $300.00 $51.63 $300.00 $13.16 $30.00
E 211-45501-510|Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $12000.00 4- New Book Shelves
E 211-45501-750 | Transfer Out $1,000.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 Wants on levy not donations
45501 Library $84,715.00 $58,540.08 $85,050.00 $55,690.03  $100,870.00
308 2019B GO Refunding Bond47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 308-47001-305|Other Contractual Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 308-47001-340 | Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 308-47001-601 |Debt: Bond Principal $111,000.00 $0.00  $120,000.00 $111,000.00  $119,000.00
E 308-47001-611 |Debt: Bond Interest $7,900.00 $3,937.50 $5,400.00 $6,626.25 $7,000.00
E 308-47001-620 Debt: Fiscal Agent Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 308-47001-800 | Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $118,900.00 $3,937.50 $125,400.00 $117,626.25 $126,000.00
309 2021A Refunding Bond-was 2013B47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 309-47001-305|Other Contractual Services $1,000.00 $1,045.00 $1,100.00 $275.00 $600.00
E 309-47001-340 | Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

90f 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 309-47001-601 |Debt: Bond Principal $85,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $150,000.00 $155,000.00
E 309-47001-611|Debt: Bond Interest $3,055.00 $27,020.00 $24,100.00 $26,044.00 $37,550.00
E 309-47001-620|Debt: Fiscal Agent Fees $495.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 309-47001-800 Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $89,550.00 $178,065.00 $175,200.00 $176,319.00 $193,150.00
310 2019A GO Imp47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 310-47001-305 Other Contractual Services $0.00 $495.00 $1,000.00 $275.00 $0.00
E 310-47001-510 Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 310-47001-601 Debt: Bond Principal $205,000.00  $205,000.00  $210,000.00  $210,000.00 $0.00
E 310-47001-611 Debt: Bond Interest $132,000.00 $131,837.50 $125,612.50 $126,107.50 $0.00
E 310-47001-620 Debt: Fiscal Agent Fees $495.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 310-47001-800 Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 310-47001-810 Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $337,495.00 $337,332.50 $336,612.50 $336,382.50 $0.00
400 CIP/Perm Imp Fund (Gen)49100 Capital/Permanent Improvement
E 400-49100-510 Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 400-49100-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 400-49100-800 Purchase of Investment $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00
49100 Capital/Permanent Improvement $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00
410 2019/20 Imp Const in Progress
43120 Street
E 410-43120-340  Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 | think | need to put Grove
E 410-43120-510 Equip & Improvements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 St here
E 410-43120-750 Transfer Out $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
43120 Street $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
601 Water47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 601-47001-305 Other Contractual Services $500.00 $395.00 $500.00 $0.00 $500.00
E 601-47001-340 Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 601-47001-601 Debt: Bond Principal $26,000.00  $19,000.00  $20,000.00  $20,000.00  $20,000.00
E 601-47001-611 Debt: Bond Interest $4,000.00 $3,064.50 $3,500.00 $1,404.00 $1,500.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $30,500.00 $22,459.50 $24,000.00 $21,404.00 $22,000.00

49400 Water

10 0f 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 601-49400-101 |FT Wages $35,000.00 $24.671.29 $37,000.00 $26,122.80 $40,000.00
E 601-49400-121|Employer PERA Contributions $2,300.00 $1,728.71 $2,500.00 $1,827.19 $2,600.00
E 601-49400-122 | Employer FICA Contributions $2,200.00 $1,514.98 $2,300.00 $1,604.84 $2,500.00
E 601-49400-126 |Employer Medicare $525.00 $354.26 $600.00 $375.39 $600.00
MN Leave $180.00
E 601-49400-130 | Employer Paid Life Ins. $100.00 $39.18 $100.00 $40.11 $100.00
E 601-49400-131 |Employer Paid Health Ins. $4,300.00 $898.41 $4,100.00 $953.33 $3,710.00
E 601-49400-151|Workers Comp Ins $3,500.00 $1,577.89 $4,000.00 $1,133.32 $1,500.00
E 601-49400-180|Health Savings Account $850.00 $375.00 $850.00 $375.00 $850.00
E 601-49400-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $15,000.00 $10,259.22 $15,000.00 $5,999.52 $15,000.00
E 601-49400-211 |Motor Fuel & Lubricants $1,000.00 $343.75 $1,000.00 $422.30 $1,000.00
E 601-49400-305 |Other Contractual Services $10,000.00 $2,734.98 $10,000.00 $35,881.78 $10,000.00
E 601-49400-315|Travel Conference Schools Trng $2,000.00 $1,615.64 $4,000.00 $976.14 $4,000.00
E 601-49400-340 |Printing Publishing Advertisin $800.00 $0.00 $800.00 $891.00 $1000.00
E 601-49400-361|Insurance: General Liability $6,750.00 $7,211.59 $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00
E 601-49400-381| Utilities $15,000.00 $11,135.18 $16,000.00 $15,920.18 $18,500.00
E 601-49400-404 |Rep & Maint-Equipment $3,000.00 $2,851.61 $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
E 601-49400-420|Depreciation $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 $1,500.00
E 601-49400-445|Licenses & Taxes $1,500.00 -$307.04 $1,500.00 -$341.58 $1,000.00
E 601-49400-500|Capital Outlay $25,000.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00  $350000.00 LSL Replacement
E 601-49400-510|Equip & Improvements $25,000.00 $80,356.27 $25,000.00 $13,323.38 $2,500.00
E 601-49400-720|Interfund Transfers $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00
E 601-49400-750| Transfer Out $40,000.00 $0.00 $40,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00
E 601-49400-800|Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 601-49400-810|Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $9.57 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49400 Water $215,325.00 $147,370.49 $197,750.00 $105,504.70  $538,040.00
602 Sewer47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 602-47001-601|Debt: Bond Principal $65,000.00 $0.00 $65,000.00 $0.00 $70,000.00
E 602-47001-611|Debt: Bond Interest $15,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $0.00 $19,500.00
E 602-47001-620 | Debt: Fiscal Agent Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $80,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $0.00 $89,500.00
49450 Sewer
E 602-49450-101|FT Wages $23,500.00 $18,624.52 $25,000.00 $19,521.96 $27,000.00
E 602-49450-121 |Employer PERA Contributions $1,550.00 $1,293.62 $1,700.00 $1,352.14 $1,800.00
E 602-49450-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $1,500.00 $1,146.07 $1,600.00 $1,201.60 $1,700.00
E 602-49450-126 | Employer Medicare $350.00 $267.92 $400.00 $280.91 $400.00

110f13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

MN Leave $125.00

E 602-49450-130 | Employer Paid Life Ins. $75.00 $31.25 $75.00 $32.23 $75.00
E 602-49450-131 |Employer Paid Health Ins. $21,000.00 $449.20 $2,300.00 $476.67 $3,000.00
E 602-49450-151|Workers Comp Ins $3,600.00 $1,577.89 $4,000.00 $1,133.32 $1,500.00
E 602-49450-180|Health Savings Account $525.00 $262.50 $525.00 $262.50 $525.00
E 602-49450-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $15,000.00 $5,728.82 $15,000.00 $8,309.96 $15,000.00
E 602-49450-211 |Motor Fuel & Lubricants $1,000.00 $258.69 $1,000.00 $177.47 $1,000.00
E 602-49450-305 |Other Contractual Services $10,000.00 $752.83 $10,000.00 $896.10 $5,000.00
E 602-49450-315|Travel Conference Schools Trng ~ $15,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $74.68 $5,000.00
E 602-49450-321 | Communications:Phone $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 602-49450-340 |Printing Publishing Advertisin $100.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 602-49450-361|Insurance: General Liability $5,500.00 $6,733.25 $7,250.00 $0.00 $7,250.00
E 602-49450-381 | Utilities $1,500.00 $931.92 $1,750.00 $1,263.23 $2,000.00
E 602-49450-404 |Rep & Maint-Equipment $2,500.00 $499.99 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,500.00
E 602-49450-420 | Depreciation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 602-49450-445|Licenses & Taxes $1,500.00 $10.14 $1,500.00 $345.00 $1,000.00
E 602-49450-510|Equip & Improvements $3,750.00 $2,750.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00
E 602-49450-620 | Debt: Fiscal Agent Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 602-49450-720 | Interfund Transfers $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 $0.00 $25,000.00
E 602-49450-750 | Transfer Out $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00
E 602-49450-800|Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 602-49450-810|Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $9.90 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49450 Sewer $137,950.00 $41,328.51  $118,600.00 $35,327.77  $118,875.00

603 Garbage Collection49500 Refuse

E 603-49500-101 |FT Wages $1,100.00 $2,386.47 $2,000.00 $1,901.06 $2,500.00
E 603-49500-121|Employer PERA Contributions $75.00 $178.92 $200.00 $142.55 $163.00
E 603-49500-122 |Employer FICA Contributions $75.00 $147.84 $200.00 $117.72 $175.00
E 603-49500-126 |Employer Medicare $20.00 $34.51 $50.00 $27.54 $40.00
MN Leave $12.00

E 603-49500-129 | Pension Expense $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 603-49500-130 | Employer Paid Life Ins. $5.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 603-49500-131|Employer Paid Health Ins. $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 603-49500-180 |Health Savings Account $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $0.00 $2,000.00
E 603-49500-210|Operating Supplies & Postage $2,000.00 $1,425.31 $15,000.00 $1,621.53  $15,000.00
E 603-49500-305|Other Contractual Services $15,000.00 $8,227.22 $250.00 $9,497 .57 $15000.00
E 603-49500-340 | Printing Publishing Advertisin $250.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 603-49500-445 Licenses & Taxes $200.00 -$389.53 $0.00 -$652.72 $0.00

12 0f 13



2026 Preliminary Expenditure Budget

E 603-49500-800|Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

E 603-49500-810|Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $1.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49500 Refuse $18,725.00 $12,012.57 $20,200.00 $12,655.25 $34,890.00
617 Storm Sewer47001 DEBT SERVICE
E 617-47001-611  Debt: Bond Interest $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
47001 DEBT SERVICE $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49710 Storm Sewer
E 617-49710-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $3,000.00 $817.33 $3,000.00 $1,047.65 $2,500.00
E 617-49710-305 Other Contractual Services $5,000.00 $283.40 $5,000.00 $236.79 $5,000.00
E 617-49710-340 Printing Publishing Advertisin $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 617-49710-420 Depreciation $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 617-49710-445 Licenses & Taxes $0.00 $16.88 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 617-49710-720 Interfund Transfers $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00 $0.00 $60,000.00
E 617-49710-750 Transfer Out $10,000.00 $0.00 $10,000.00 $0.00 $15,000.00
E 617-49710-800 Purchase of Investment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
E 617-49710-810 Refunds and Reimbursements $0.00 $4.95 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
49710 Storm Sewer $78,000.00 $1,122.56 $78,000.00 $1,284.44 $82,500.00
TOTALS $2,337,341.77 $1,420,949.98 $2,461,811.38 $1,452,510.91 $2,574,730.00

13 0f 13



m DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION
August 12, 2025

Dear Minnesota City Clerks,

Thank you for your commitment to ensuring your city’s residents have access to public library
services. The attached documentation provides your city’s state-certified level of library support
for 2026. Minnesota Statutes, sections 134.34 and 275.761 establish the amount at 90% of the
state-certified level of support set in 2011.

Please be advised that should a city fall below its state-certified level of library support,
Minnesota Statutes, section 134.34, subdivision 4 requires removal of the city from State Library
Services’ funding formulas. This would greatly reduce the breadth and depth of library services
available to the city’s residents.

Thank you again for your continued support of Minnesota’s libraries. Together, we can ensure
that all Minnesota residents benefit from quality library services.

Sincerely,

G T V..

Emma De Vera
State Library Program Specialist

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
400 NE Stinson Blvd. ® Minneapolis, Minnesota 55413 = 651-582-8200 * mde.contactus@state.mn.us *
@MnDeptEd


mailto:mde.contactus@state.mn.us
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/134.34
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/cite/275.761

m DEPARTMENT
OF EDUCATION
August 2025

CERTIFICATION OF MINIMUM LOCAL SUPPORT REQUIREMENT: 2025

This is to certify the 2026 minimum level of financial support to be provided for operating
expenses for public library services and participation in the regional public library system
programs pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 134.34 for the city of:

Lamberton

The state-certified level of library support for 2026 is: $28,800

This amount represents the equivalent of 90% of the official 2011 state-certified level of library
support.

MINNESOTA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
400 NE Stinson Blvd. ® Minneapolis, Minnesota 55413 = 651-582-8200 * mde.contactus@state.mn.us *
@MnDeptEd


mailto:mde.contactus@state.mn.us

City of

9-2-2025 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

FROM: Valerie Halter

SUBJECT: Work Session

[ would like to set a work session before November.

October may be better as | need to get all employee reviews done so we can look at those as well.
Possible Dates

September 22, 25, 29, 30

October 14,15,20,21,22,27

Nov 3,4

Topics of Work Session — Budget




Library Report
August 2025
Program Update:
e End of the Summer Reading Program Party Wed (40 attended)

o 58 kids sign up for the program, 50 kids who collected points, 49 kids create characters, 134
attended programs who were signed up, and over 1,300 books were read!
e Sound Bath with Amanda Cairns Aug. 19t (2)

e Movie Day (Live Action Lilo and Stitch) 27% (16)

e Glow Dance Party during Hot Iron Days ()

Most of the month was wrapping up Summer Reading Program Events.

Upcoming Events/Programs

e Sound Baths are set for October 23rd, November 20th, December 18th, January 22nd, February
26th

e Community Rummage Sale has the community room booked from the 18-28™"

e We will be discussing event ideas at our upcoming Board Meeting on Thursday Sep. 11th

Circulation Report
o August

= Total Books:356
= Audio Books:6
= Total DVDs: 70
=  Non-Print (cake pans, Computers, Hotspots, Chromebooks):77
=  Wireless Stats: 32
=  Online Materials(overdrive, RB Digital):106
= |LL (Inter Library Loan ): 49

Respectfully Submitted
Alicia Vogel



Customer Vehicle RO# : 410755

BESFFriBORG ,
i SWETT WNESLE BRERT BEALS CITY OF LAMBERTON 2019 Ford E-Series Cutaway Tag# : KDC75266
- (269) 267 - 1822 VIN
clerk@lambertonmn.com 1FDXE4FS8KDC75266
1307 E Bridge St Redwood Base: - - ---DR - - -: 2WD
Falls MN US 56283 38,649 Mi In / 38,649 Mi
https://www.mykwford.com/ Out

Pending Recommendation(s)

1. RECOMM A/C COMPRESSOR LEAKING
ENDATIO Customer Pay $1,259.55
N

2. RECOMM OIL LEAK AROUND BELLHOUSING(rear
ENDATIO main/torque converter seal) Customer Pay $1,976.81
N

3. RECOMM REAR DIFF COVER LEAKING

ENDATIO Customer Pay $388.04
N
4. BGRDS BG REAR DIFFENTIAL SERVICE Customer Pay $210.00
Additional Fees $25.21
Additional Discount $0.00
Tax $0.00
Recommendations Estimate $3,859.61
Services
1. AMPM Ambulance Maintenance Inspection- check bra Customer Pay $80.00
kes cust states they are squeaky
2. WRKSAMB Motorcraft Oil & Filter Change, & Tire Rotation -
AMBULANCE Customer Pay $114.44
Additional Fees $14.79
Additional Discount $0.00
Tax $0.00
Current Estimate $209.23
8 © Tekion Corp 2025 Customer Copy v2 | Page 1 of 2

Wed Sep 3, 2025 1 8:23 AM



City of

9-2-2025 REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION
TO: HONORABLE MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

FROM: Valerie Halter

SUBJECT: Ambulance Members

Accept Brian Goblirsch to the Ambulance service. Brian has been an EMT for Wabasso, North and Centra
Care.




City of

112 2nd Ave W « PO Box 356 « Lamberton, MN 56152
Phone: (507) 752-7601 « Fax: (507) 752-7117 » Website: https://lambertonmn.com

City Clerk/EDA Report:
1. Ambulance Billing Meeting
2. Housing Institute
3. Child Care Initiative
4. LMC Committees
5. MN Paid Leave Law Meeting
6. Child Care meeting — St Johns & VVM
7. EDA - potential business

8. Budget Work



City of

FINANCIAL REPORT
September 2025

NEW VENDORS

FINANCIALS

Claims for Approval:

Start # End# Total
Checks 47169 47197 $18,828.26
eChecks 1652e 1670e $38,200.19
Payroll 0502879 | 0502942 $51,254.88
Claims Total $108,283.33

Voided Checks: None

Approved: Date:

Mayor

Approved: Date:

Clerk



L

Check #

10100 Checking

47169 09/08/25
E 100-42110-210
E 201-42153-210
E 211-45501-216
E 211-45501-216
E 211-45501-210
E 211-45501-310
E 211-45501-310
E 100-42220-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210

Check Date

47170 09/08/25
E 201-42153-210
E 201-42153-210

47171 09/08/25
E 211-45501-214

47172 09/08/25
E 201-42153-315

47173 09/08/25
E 100-45300-311
E 100-45300-311

47174 09/08/25
E 201-42153-210
E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42220-210
E 601-49400-210
E 100-43120-210
E 207-46501-210
E 211-45501-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-45400-210
E 602-49450-210
E 100-41110-210
E 603-49500-210

47175 09/08/25

CITY OF LAMBERTON
*Check Detail Register©

09/04/25 4:39 PM
Page 1

Checks 47169-48000

Vendor Name Amount
AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES, INC.
Operating Supplies & Post $35.99
Operating Supplies & Post $35.99
DVD and Multimedia $223.31
DVD and Multimedia $17.63
Operating Supplies & Post $33.02
Reading Programs Fees $48.65
Reading Programs Fees $31.19
Operating Supplies & Post $27.78
Operating Supplies & Post $27.78
Operating Supplies & Post $17.51
Operating Supplies & Post $7.93

Total $506.78
BOUNDTREE MEDICAL, LLC
Operating Supplies & Post $123.16
Operating Supplies & Post $29.49
Total W
CENTER POINT LARGE PRINT
Library Books $49.14
Total $49.14
CENTRACARE EMS
Travel Conference School $200.00
Total $200.00
CITIZEN PUBLISHING CO. INC.
Other fees & Miscellaneou $73.20
Other fees & Miscellaneou $12.00
Total $85.20
CLARA CITY TELEPHONE CO
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $43.79
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $43.79
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.65
Operating Supplies & Post $10.68
Total $204.76

CORE & MAIN LP

Invoice

Comment

85877973
85887038

2185809

360110
360201

13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850
13684850

PD PAPER TOWELS
AMBU PAPER TOWELS
DVD'S

DVvD

LIB SUPPLY

READING PROGRAM
READING PROGRAM
FIRE PAPER TOWELS
CLERK PAPER TOWELS
PD PATCHES

EMS SUPPLY
EMS SUPPLY

LIB BK

INTERCEPT MC

HOT IRON DAYS
HOT IRON DAYS

TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET
TELE & INTERNET



09/04/25 4:39 PM
Page 2

CITY OF LAMBERTON
*Check Detail Register©

Checks 47169-48000

L

Check # Check Date  Vendor Name Amount Invoice Comment
E 601-49400-210 Operating Supplies & Post $1,057.10 X338755 PARTS WATER DEPT
Total $1,057.10
47176 09/08/25 ECONO SIGNS LLC
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Post $576.80 10-997546  SIGNS BY SCHOOL
Total $576.80
47177 09/08/25 FARMERS CO-OP OIL COMPANY
E 100-42110-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $0.00 PD FUEL
E 100-42220-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $0.00 FIRE FUEL
E 201-42153-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $0.00 AMBU FUEL
E 100-43120-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $0.00 STREET FUEL
E 100-45202-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $0.00 PARKS FUEL
E 100-42110-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $248.15 PD FUEL
E 201-42153-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $289.93 AMBU FUEL
E 100-43120-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $235.82 STREETS FUEL
E 100-45202-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $169.40 PARKS FUEL
E 601-49400-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $15.18 WATER FUEL
E 602-49450-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $88.11 SEWER FUEL
E 100-45124-210 Operating Supplies & Post $29.89 POOL FUEL
Total $1,076.48
47178 09/08/25 FERGUSON WATERWORKS, INC #2516
E 601-49400-305 Other Contractual Service $948.60 519434 HOST/SUPPORT 8/1/25-7/31-26
E 602-49450-305 Other Contractual Service $948.60 519434 HOST/SUPPORT 8/1/25-7/31-26
Total $1,897.20
47179 09/08/25 GOPHER STATE ONE-CALL, INC.
E 601-49400-305 Other Contractual Service $12.82 5080533 LOCATE
E 602-49450-305 Other Contractual Service $12.83 5080533 LOCATE
Total $25.65
47180 09/08/25 HAWKINS, INC.
E 601-49400-210 Operating Supplies & Post $40.00 CHLORINE
Total $40.00
47181 09/08/25 HEIMAN, INC.
E 100-42220-210 Operating Supplies & Post $1,019.44 0946058-IN FIRE FS 2 MAX WITH CASE
Total $1,019.44
47182 09/08/25 HOMETOWN BILLING
E 201-42153-305 Other Contractual Service $697.28 EMS BILLING
Total $697.28
47183 09/08/25 JEFFERS DRAY LINE INC
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Post $640.00 20073 BLACK DIRT
E 100-43120-510 Equip & Improvements $5,747.68 20083 CLASS 2 3/4" FINES & HAULING
Total W
47184 09/08/25 JOHN DEERE FINANCIAL
E 100-45202-210 Operating Supplies & Post $125.50 13382190 PARKS PARTS BELT



CITY OF LAMBERTON 09/04/25 4:40 PM

[ Page 3
% . .
Check Detail Register©
Checks 47169-48000
Check # Check Date  Vendor Name Amount Invoice Comment
E 100-45202-210 Operating Supplies & Post $80.15 13384450 PARKS PARTS
E 100-45202-210 Operating Supplies & Post $139.82 13388370 PARKS PARTS BELTS
Total $345.47
47185 09/08/25 KIDS REFERENCE COMPANY, INC.
E 211-45501-214 Library Books $197.89 KRCO07-1416 LIB BOOKS
Total $197.89
47186 09/08/25 KIRVIDA FIRE
E 100-42220-210 Operating Supplies & Post $600.82 13254 2004 INTERN.PUMPER SERVICE ANNUAL TEST
E 100-42220-210 Operating Supplies & Post $375.00 13255 1984 FORD PUMPER ANNUAL PUMP TEST
Total $975.82
47187 09/08/25 L & S CONSTRUCTION, INC..
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Post $64.95 082825-Q PARTS SKID STREETS
Total $64.95
47188 09/08/25 LINDE GAS & EQUIPMENT, INC
E 201-42153-210 Operating Supplies & Post $194.20 51865607 EMS OXYGEN
Total $194.20
47189 09/08/25 MAYNARDS FOOD CENTER
E 100-42110-210 Operating Supplies & Post $7.49
Total $7.49
47190 09/08/25 MID AMERICA BOOKS
E 211-45501-214 Library Books $95.80 0071642 LIB BOOKS
Total $95.80
47191 09/08/25 MN DOH DRINKING WATER PROTECTION
G 601-21002 Connection Fees Payable $993.00 QUARTERLY SERVICE CONN FEE
Total $993.00
47192 09/08/25 MN VALLEY TESTING LABS, INC
E 602-49450-210 Operating Supplies & Post $187.50 1319902 WATER SAMPLES
Total $187.50
47193 09/08/25 RUNNINGS SUPPLY, INC.
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Post $108.30 STREETS SUPPLY
E 211-45501-210 Operating Supplies & Post $76.45 LIB BULBS
E 100-45202-210 Operating Supplies & Post $89.99 PARK EXT CORD
E 100-43120-210 Operating Supplies & Post $19.99 STREETS CHALKREEL
Total $294.73
47194 09/08/25 SNAK ATAK #57
E 100-45202-211 Motor Fuel & Lubricants $89.25 DIESEL MOWER
Total $89.25
47195 09/08/25 SOUTHERN MN EMS EDUCATION
E 201-42153-315 Travel Conference School $500.00 1395 EMS TRAINING

Total $500.00



CITY OF LAMBERTON 09104/25 4:40 PM
Page 4
*Check Detail Register©

Checks 47169-48000

L

Check # Check Date  Vendor Name Amount Invoice Comment
47196 09/08/25 TRACY AMB SERVICE EDUCATION
E 201-42153-305 Other Contractual Service $800.00 EMS INTERCEPTS X4: EE; EC, PS; JA
Total $800.00
47197 09/08/25 US POSTAL SERVICE
E 100-41425-210 Operating Supplies & Post $106.00 BOX RENTAL ONE YEAR
Total $106.00

10100 $18,828.26

Fund Summary

10100 Checking

100 General Fund $10,784.32
201 Ambulance $2,880.70
207 EDA $10.65
211 Library $816.87
601 Water $3,077.35
602 Sewer $1,247.69
603 Garbage Collection $10.68

$18,828.26

Valerie Halter, Clerk Date Lydell Sik, Mayor Date



L

Check # Check Date

10100 Checking

1645e 08/01/25

G 100-21701
G 100-21703
G 100-21704

1646 e 08/01/25

G 100-21705
G 100-21706

1647 e 08/01/25

G 100-21702

1649 e 08/06/25

G 100-21713

1650 e 08/06/25

E 201-42153-381
E 100-42110-381
E 100-45400-381
E 211-45501-381
E 100-43160-381
E 601-49400-381
E 602-49450-381
E 100-45202-381
E 100-43120-381
E 100-45124-381
E 100-42501-381
E 100-42220-381
E 100-41940-381

1651 e 08/04/25

E 100-45202-305
E 100-45202-305

1652 e 08/15/25

G 100-21701
G 100-21703
G 100-21704

1653 e 08/15/25

G 100-21705

CITY OF LAMBERTON
*Check Detail Register©

2025 (August, September)

Vendor Name Amount Invoice

EFTPS

Federal Withholding $1,445.01

FICA Withholding $2,324.50

Medicare Withholding $638.38
Total $4,407.89

PERA

PERA Coord Withholding $1,631.67

PERA Police Withholding $964.42
Total $2,596.09

MN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

State Withholding $854.00
Total $854.00

USABLE LIFE

Health Insurance Withhold $48.30
Total $48.30

REDWOOD ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE

Utilities $56.11
Utilities $56.12
Utilities $116.48
Utilities $116.48
Utilities $1,278.00
Utilities $1,581.00
Utilities $135.18
Utilities $669.79
Utilities $31.61
Utilities $1,177.40
Utilities $66.00
Utilities $99.96
Utilities $99.96

Total $5,484.09

FIRST DATA MERCHANT SVCS LLC

Other Contractual Service $138.34

Other Contractual Service $5.00
Total $143.34

EFTPS

Federal Withholding $1,230.16

FICA Withholding $2,217.92

Medicare Withholding $595.84
Total $4,043.92

PERA

PERA Coord Withholding $1,652.08

Comment

PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

PP 16 8-1-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

080625 ECHECK

JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC
JUNE- ELECTRIC SVC

SERVICE FEES
FEES

PP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

09/04/25 4:38 PM

Page 1

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONPP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL

DEDUCTION



L

Check #

1654 e

1655 e

1656 e

1657 e

1658 e

Check Date

G 100-21706

G 100-21702

E 100-45202-305
E 100-45202-305

E 601-49400-381
E 100-43120-381
E 100-42220-381
E 100-41940-381
E 201-42153-381
E 100-42110-381
E 100-45400-381
E 211-45501-381
E 100-45124-381

G 601-21000

G 601-21001

G 603-21000

E 100-45124-445
E 100-42110-445
E 100-42220-445
E 100-41425-445
E 100-45202-445
E 100-45400-445
E 100-43120-445
E 211-45501-445
E 603-49500-445
E 601-49400-445
E 601-49400-445

E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42220-210
E 100-43120-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-41110-210
E 100-45400-210
E 601-49400-210

08/15/25

08/11/25

08/11/25

08/19/25

08/22/25

Vendor Name

PERA Police Withholding

Total

CITY OF LAMBERTON

*Check Detail Register©

2025 (August, September)

Amount Invoice

$964.42

$2,616.50

MN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

State Withholding
Total

REZPLOT SYSTEMS, LLC

Other Contractual Service

Other Contractual Service
Total

$777.00
$777.00

$100.00
$58.80
$158.80

MN ENERGY RESOURCES CORP.

Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Total

$83.21
$22.50
$25.31
$25.30
$9.45
$9.45
$11.01
$11.00
$381.03
$578.26

MN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

Sales Taxes Payable
Local Sales Tax Payable
Sales Taxes Payable
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Licenses & Taxes
Total

CARDMEMBER SERVICE
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post

$202.80
$14.77
$182.40
$412.41
$0.07
$0.00
$8.00
$324.39
$0.00
$20.65
$1.55
($3.40)
$1.43
($0.07)
$1,165.00

$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69

79344
79344

Comment

09/04/25 4:38 PM
Page 2

PAYROLL DEDUCTIONPP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL

DEDUCTION

PP 17 08-15-25 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

WEB PAYMENT FEES 081125
MARKETPLACE BOOKING FEE

UTILITY PAYMENT: WATER
UTILITY PAYMENT:STREET
UTILITY PAYMENT:FIRE

UTILITY PAYMENT:CITY HALL

UTILITY PAYMENT: AMBULANCE

UTILITY PAYMENT:POLICE

UTILITY PAYMENT:COMM CENTER

UTILITY PAYMENT:.LIBRARY
UTILITY PAYMENT:POOL

07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment
07-2025 Sales Tax Payment

BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE



L

Check # Check Date

E 602-49450-210
E 201-42153-210
E 603-49500-210
E 211-45501-210
E 207-46501-210
E 100-41940-381
E 100-43120-381
E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42220-210
E 100-43120-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-41110-210
E 100-45400-210
E 601-49400-210
E 602-49450-210
E 201-42153-210
E 603-49500-210
E 211-45501-210
E 207-46501-210
E 211-45501-310

E 100-42110-210
E 100-42110-112
E 100-41425-315
E 100-42110-112
E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42220-210
E 100-43120-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-41110-210
E 100-45400-210
E 601-49400-210
E 602-49450-210
E 201-42153-210
E 603-49500-210
E 211-45501-210
E 207-46501-210
E 601-49400-210
E 602-49450-210
E 603-49500-210
E 617-49710-210
E 100-45124-250
E 100-45124-210
E 100-45124-250
E 100-45124-250
E 100-45124-250
E 100-45124-250

Vendor Name

Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Utilities

Utilities

Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Reading Programs Fees

Operating Supplies & Post
Clothing Allowance

Travel Conference School
Clothing Allowance
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Merchandise for Resale
Operating Supplies & Post
Merchandise for Resale
Merchandise for Resale
Merchandise for Resale
Merchandise for Resale

CITY OF LAMBERTON
*Check Detail Register©

2025 (August, September)

Amount Invoice

$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.69
$3.70
$12.00
$10.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$2.00
$1.95
$325.00

$20.05
$119.72
$8.00
$268.89
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.15
$56.20
$336.00
$336.00
$336.00
$336.00
$155.00
$43.88
$179.00
$126.70
$219.35
$67.75

Comment

BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE
BILLS ADOBE

09/04/25 4:38 PM
Page 3

BILLS PREMIUM WATER CITY HALL

BILLS PREMIUM WATER SHOP

BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX
BILLS SR FAX

SWANK MOTION PICTURE; REIMB BY GRANT

LATER

PD CAR DOOR OPENER
PD RAIN JACKET
MNGFOA DAY REG VAL
PD CLOTHING
POSTAGE

POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE STAMPS
POSTAGE UB BILLING
POSTAGE UB BILLING
POSTAGE UB BILLING
POSTAGE UB BILLING
POOL RESALE DG
POOL SUPPLY MENARDS
POOL RESALE DG
POOL RESALE DG
POOL RESALE DG
POOL RESALE DG



L

Check #

Check Date

E 100-45124-210
E 100-42110-210
E 201-42153-210
E 201-42153-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-45124-221

1659 e
E 100-45124-210
E 100-45124-210

1660 e
G 100-21713

1661 e
G 100-21712

1662 e
E 100-42110-210
E 100-41425-210
E 100-42220-210
E 100-43120-210
E 100-45124-210
E 100-41110-210
E 100-45400-210
E 601-49400-210
E 602-49450-210
E 201-42153-210
E 603-49500-210
E 211-45501-210
E 207-46501-210
E 617-49710-210

1663 e
E 201-42153-381
E 100-42110-381
E 100-45400-381
E 211-45501-381
E 100-43160-381
E 100-45124-381
E 100-42220-381
E 100-41940-381

08/22/25

08/20/25

08/18/25

08/15/25

08/25/25

Vendor Name

Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Rep & Maint/Supplies
Total

CENTURYLINK

Operating Supplies & Post

Operating Supplies & Post
Total

BLUE CROSS BLUE SHIELD

Health Insurance Withhold

Total
AFLAC
AFLAC Withholding
Total

FIRST SECURITY BANK

Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post
Operating Supplies & Post

Total

CITY OF LAMBERTON
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Utilities
Total

CITY OF LAMBERTON

*Check Detail Register©

2025 (August, September)

Amount Invoice

$33.00
$12.68
$86.91
$11.99
$24.95
($43.88)
$43.88
$3,872.80

$62.53
($62.53)
$0.00

Comment

POOL SUPPLY DG
PD CERTIFIED MAIL
EMS SUPPLY

EMS SUPPLY

09/04/25 4:38 PM
Page 4

POOL HOME BASE SCHEDULING

POOL SUPPLY MENARDS
POOL SUPPLY MENARDS

JULY AUG - PHONE POOL
JULY AUG - PHONE POOL

$2,489.33 25081125302 SEPT BCBS

$2,489.33

$328.40
$328.40

$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.28
$7.29
$0.00
$94.65

$35.51
$35.52
$46.35
$46.34
$0.00
$203.46
$18.63
$18.63
$404.44

828039

JULY PREMIUM

JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES
JULY 2025 BANK FEES

082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill
082525 Utility Bill



L

Check # Check Date

1664 e 08/26/25
E 100-42110-210
E 100-42110-210
E 201-42153-210
E 100-43120-210
E 601-49400-210
E 100-42110-210

1665 e 08/29/25
G 100-21701
G 100-21703
G 100-21704

1666 e 08/29/25
G 100-21705
G 100-21706

1667 e 08/29/25
G 100-21702

1668 e 08/22/25
E 100-45124-210

1669 e 09/03/25
E 100-45202-305
E 100-45202-305

1670 e 08/22/25
E 100-45124-210

CITY OF LAMBERTON
*Check Detail Register©

09/04/25 4:38 PM
Page 5

2025 (August, September)

Vendor Name Amount Invoice

VERIZON WIRELESS

Operating Supplies & Post $165.69
Operating Supplies & Post $40.01
Operating Supplies & Post $40.01
Operating Supplies & Post $38.38
Operating Supplies & Post $38.38
Operating Supplies & Post $38.38
Total $360.85
EFTPS
Federal Withholding $1,386.07
FICA Withholding $2,226.40
Medicare Withholding $615.48
Total $4,227.95
PERA
PERA Coord Withholding $1,602.78
PERA Police Withholding $964.42
Total $2,567.20

MN DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

State Withholding $828.00

Total $828.00

CENTURYLINK

Operating Supplies & Post $62.56

Total $62.56

FIRST DATA MERCHANT SVCS LLC

Other Contractual Service $2.60
Other Contractual Service $25.66
Total $28.26

CENTURYLINK

Operating Supplies & Post $62.56

Total $62.56

10100 $38,200.19

Comment

WIRELESS SVC - CSO CELL

WIRELESS SVC - POLICE TOUGHBOOK
WIRELESS SVC - AMBULANCE HOT SPOT
WIRELESS SVC - PUBLIC WORKS CELL
WIRELESS SVC - WATER TOWER CELL
WIRELESS SVC - POLICE CELL

PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION
PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

PP 18 082925 PAYROLL DEDUCTION

JULY AUG - PHONE POOL

FEES AUG 2025
SERVICE CHARGES AUG 2025

JULY AUG - PHONE POOL



L

Check # Check Date  Vendor Name

Fund Summary

CITY OF LAMBERTON 09/04/25 4:38 PM
Page 6
*Check Detail Register©

2025 (August, September)

Amount Invoice Comment

10100 Checking
100 General Fund

201 Ambulance

207 EDA

211 Library

601 Water

602 Sewer

603 Garbage Collection
617 Storm Sewer

Valerie Halter, Clerk Date

$33,465.40
$309.10
$69.14
$569.49
$2,326.64
$540.30
$584.12
$336.00

$38,200.19

Lydell Sik, Mayor Date



CITY OF LAMBERTON 09/04/25 4:42 PM

Page 1
Paid Register

Check Employee Pay Pay Group Check Check

Number Number Employee Name Period Description Amount Date Status
0502881 000000007 NN 16 Biweekly $2,359.80 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502889 000000425 NN 16 Biweekly $610.99 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502883 000000010 16 Biweekly $292.08 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502887 000000404 NN 16 Biweekly $453.72 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502890 000000434 NN 16 Biweekly $462.40 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502891 000000435 NN 16 Biweekly $153.74 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502892 000000436 NN 16 Biweekly $577.34 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502893 000000437 NN 16 Biweekly $580.18 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502894 000000438 NN 16 Biweekly $390.38 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502885 000000013 16 Biweekly $1,334.33 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502880 000000004 N 16 Biweekly $2,200.22 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502895 000000439 NN 16 Biweekly $564.70 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502896 000000440 NN 16 Biweekly $401.05 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502882 000000008 NN 16 Biweekly $1,379.00 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502884 000000012 16 Biweekly $1,508.67 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502888 000000406 N 16 Biweekly $882.77 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502897 000000442 NN 16 Biweekly $105.98 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502879 000000003 NN 16 Biweekly $54.44 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502886 00000002° NN 16 Biweekly $2,285.47 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502898 000000443 NN 16 Biweekly $185.82 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502899 000000446 GGG 16 Biweekly $191.38 8/1/2025 Outstanding
0502902 000000007 NS 17 Biweekly $2,359.80 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502903 000000008 NN 17 Biweekly $1,379.00 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502905 000000011 GG 17 Biweekly $43.44 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502906 000000012 17 Biweekly $1,520.00 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502910 000000406 GGG 17 Biweekly $835.55 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502911 000000425 NS 17 Biweekly $491.42 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502904 000000010 17 Biweekly $412.57 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502909 000000404 NN 17 Biweekly $412.26 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502912 000000434 NN 17 Biweekly $396.66 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502913 000000435 NN 17 Biweekly $326.83 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502914 000000436 EEEEENGNGNGNS 17 Biweekly $281.34 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502915 000000437 NN 17 Biweekly $177.65 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502916 000000438 NN 17 Biweekly $198.14 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502907 000000013 17 Biweekly $1,319.44 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502901 000000004 S 17 Biweekly $2,200.22 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502917 000000439 NN 17 Biweekly $575.79 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502918 000000440 N 17 Biweekly $263.35 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502919 000000442 NN 17 Biweekly $234.57 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502900 000000003 NN 17 Biweekly $96.78 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502908 000000029 NN 17 Biweekly $1,859.92 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502920 000000443 NN 17 Biweekly $343.06 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502921 000000446 I 17 Biweekly $134.62 8/15/2025 Outstanding
0502924 000000007 NN 18 Biweekly $2,359.80 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502925 000000008 NN 18 Biweekly $1,384.58 8/29/2025 Outstanding



CITY OF LAMBERTON
Paid Register

09/04/25 4:42 PM

Check Employee Pay Pay Group Check Check

Number Number Employee Name Period Description Amount Date Status
0502927 000000011 G 18 Biweekly $21.72 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502928 000000012 18 Biweekly $1,391.06 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502932 000000406 GGG 18 Biweekly $823.22 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502933 000000425 NN 18 Biweekly $398.14 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502926 000000010 NN 18 Biweekly $209.36 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502931 000000404 NGNS 18 Biweekly $435.52 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502934 000000434 NN 18 Biweekly $549.87 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502935 000000436 NN 18 Biweekly $785.79 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502936 000000437 NN 18 Biweekly $646.56 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502937 000000438 NN 18 Biweekly $614.51 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502929 000000013 18 Biweekly $1,466.58 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502923 000000004 NS 18 Biweekly $2,200.22 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502938 000000439 NN 18 Biweekly $594.30 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502939 000000440 NS 18 Biweekly $384.59 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502940 000000442 NN 18 Biweekly $262.23 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502922 000000003 S 18 Biweekly $54.44 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502930 000000029 NN 18 Biweekly $2,711.02 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502941 000000443 NN 18 Biweekly $517.50 8/29/2025 Outstanding
0502942 000000446 NN 18 Biweekly $607.00 8/29/2025 Outstanding

$51,254.88
Explanation of Difference:
City Clerk Date Mayor Date

Page 2



Lamberton Swimming Pool

Daily Deposit Tracking

6/1/2025 |Sunday 17 1 18] 102.00 0.00 3,255.00| 180.00 314.50| 3,851.50] 3,150.00| 706.00| 1.00| 3,857.00 -5.50] 3,867.00| 6/2/25
6/2/2025 |Monday 14 7 52 80.00 220.00 1,380.00 0.00 173.00) 1,853.00§ 1,545.00| 303.00| 5.50| 1,853.50 -0.50) 1,853.50| 6/2/25
6/3/2025 |Tuesday 2 3 26| 8.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 49.00 57.00 0.00 51.00| 6.25 57.25 -0.25 57.25| 6/4/25
6/4/2025 |Wednesday 26 11 63] 92.00 55.00 715.00 0.00 216.75| 1,078.75] 460.00| 597.00| 21.75| 1,078.75 0.00] 1,078.75| 6/6/25
6/5/2025 |Thursday 4 3 30 22.00 110.00 375.00 0.00 43.50 550.50] 485.00 65.00| 0.25 550.25 0.25 550.25| 6/6/25
6/6/2025 |Friday 3 2 44 14.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 88.00 102.00 0.00 99.00| 3.00 102.00 0.00 101.99| 6/9/25
6/7/2025 |Saturday 7 2 34 42.00 0.00 85.00 0.00 87.00 214.00 91.00|/ 115.00| 8.00 214.00] 0.00 224.00| 6/9/25
6/8/2025 |Sunday 3 1 8] 18.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 29.25 102.25 55.00 47.00f 0.25 102.25 0.00I 102.25| 6/9/25
6/9/2025 |Monday 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6/10/2025 |Tuesday 18 16 80} 108.00 110.00 255.00 0.00 240.75 713.75] 255.00| 457.00| 0.75 712.75 1.00 712.75| 6/10/25
6/11/2025 |Wednesday 4 2 16 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.50 40.50 0.00 40.00| 0.50 40.50 0.00 40.50| 6/12/25
6/12/2025 |Thursday 1 1 6 6.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.00 13.00 0.00 12.00| 1.00 13.00 0.00 13.00| 6/13/25
6/13/2025 |Friday 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6/14/2025 |Saturday 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00| 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
6/15/2025 |Sunday 0 2 9 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 29.75 29.75 0.00 26.00| 3.75 29.75 0.00 29.75| 6/18/25
6/16/2025 |Monday 16 7 48] 96.00 110.00 0.00 0.00 117.50 323.50] 55.00f 263.00| 5.50 323.50] O.OOI 323.50| 6/17/23
6/17/2025 |Tuesday 16 5 53| 88.00 0.00 205.00 0.00 204.75 497.75 0.00| 498.00f 0.75 498.75 -1.00 498.75| 6/18/25
6/18/2025 |Wednesday 5 1 44 26.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.00 110.00} 0.00| 104.00| 7.00 111.00} -1.00} 110.00| 6/20/25
6/19/2025 |Thursday 14 11 62 106.00 110.00 205.00 0.00 295.00 716.00] 315.00| 405.00| 6.00 726.00 -10.00 725.75| 6/20/25
6/20/2025 |Friday 18 13 50 80.00 110.00 0.00 0.00 164.75 354.75] 110.00| 243.00f 1.75 354.75 0.00 355.75| 6/23/25
6/21/2025 |Saturday 22 18 41 97.00 110.00 255.00 0.00 131.75 593.75] 255.00| 360.00| 2.75 617.75 -24.00 617.25| 6/23/25
6/22/2025 |Sunday 24 8 44 124.00 0.00 255.00 0.00 77.25 456.25] 255.00| 199.00| 2.25 456.25 0.00} 456.25| 6/23/25
6/23/2025 |Monday 2 0 63] 2.00 0.00 0.00| 160.00 81.25 243.25] 120.00| 113.00| 0.25 233.25 10.00 234.25| 6/24/25
6/24/2025 |Tuesday 17 6 61 82.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 137.50 219.50] 22.50| 198.00/ 0.00 220.50] -1.00} 220.50| 6/27/25
6/25/2025 |Wednesday 1 0 7 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.50 31.50 0.00 29.00| 2.50 31.50 0.00 31.50| 6/27/25
6/26/2025 |Thursday 0 0 23] 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22.50 22.50] 0.00 23.00/ 0.00 23.00] -0.50] 23.00| 6/27/25
6/27/2025 |Friday 15 5 22| 45.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 89.50 134.50 0.00| 134.00f 0.50 134.50 0.00 134.50| 7/1/25
6/28/2025 |Saturday 10 4 30 66.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 93.25 214.25 0.00| 215.00| 0.00 215.00 -0.75 215.50| 7/1/25
6/29/2025 |Sunday 16 2 29) 96.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.00 132.00 30.00| 100.00| 2.00 132.00 0.00 132.00| 7/1/25
6/30/2025 |Monday 29 10 80| 162.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 125.50 342.50] 55.00f 282.00| 5.50 342.50] 0.00} 342.50| 7/1/25
TOTALS 304 141 1043| 1,583.00 1,100.00 6,985.00| 340.00 2,990.00| 12,998.00§ 7,258.50| 5,684.00| 88.75| 13,031.25 -33.25] 13,051.99




Lamberton Swimming Pool

Daily Deposit Tracking July 2025

7/1/2025  Tuesday 17 9 65 98.00 55.00 65.00 0.00 111.25 329.25 55.00 227.00 6.25 288.25 41.00 288.25  7/2/25
7/2/2025  Wednesday 27 5 64 145.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 176.00 321.00 0.00 259.00 16.25 275.25 45.75 275.50  7/3/25
7/3/2025  Thursday 13 3 47 72.00 55.00 205.00 0.00 59.50 391.50 12.00 374.00 5.25 391.25 0.25 391.25  7/7/25
7/4/2025  Friday 12 0 16 67.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 37.00 104.00 13.00 88.00 3.20 104.20 -0.20 104.70  7/7/25
7/5/2025  Saturday 0 0 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 0.00 10.00 7/7/25
7/6/2025  Sunday 14 0 24 84.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 84.00 168.00 0.00 168.00 0.50 168.50 -0.50 168.50  7/7/25
7/7/2025  Monday 12 4 29 62.00 55.00 0.00 125.00 72.25 314.25 180.00 134.00 0.25 314.25 0.00 314.25  7/8/25
7/8/2025  Tuesday 22 11 50| 120.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 151.50 326.50 55.00 272.00 0.25 327.25 -0.75] 327.25 7/10/25
7/9/2025  Wednesday 11 7 34 66.00 110.00 615.00 0.00 55.00 846.00] 465.00  400.00 0.75 865.75 -19.75 865.75 7/11/25
7/10/2025 Thursday 7 4 55 40.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 139.75 179.75 18.00 158.00 15.00 191.00 -11.25 191.00 7/11/25
7/11/2025  Friday 8 7 33 48.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 94.25 142.25 0.00 167.00 2.75 169.75 -27.50 169.75 7/15/25
7/12/2025 Saturday 8 2 20| 43.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.50 54.50 0.00 50.00 4.50 54.50 0.00 54.50 7/15/25
7/13/2025 Sunday 9 3 31 49.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 82.50 0.00 82.00 0.50 82.50 0.00 82.50 7/15/25
7/14/2025 Monday 12 4 35 76.00 55.00 0.00 375.00 73.50 579.50] 430.00 148.00 2.50 580.50 -1.00 580.50 7/15/25
7/15/2025 Tuesday 8 5 60 48.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 166.00 269.00 0.00 267.00  3.50 270.50 -1.50 270.50 7/16/25
7/16/2025 Wednesday 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7/17/2025 Thursday 7 5 23 37.00 0.00 0.00 180.00 26.00 243.00 180.00 61.00 2.10 243.10 -0.10 243.10 7/21/25
7/18/2025  Friday 13 4 23 76.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 75.00 206.00 55.00 151.00 0.50 206.50 -0.50 206.50 7/21/25
7/19/2025 Saturday 0 0 9 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.50 11.50 0.00 10.00 1.50 11.50 0.00 11.50 7/21/25
7/20/2025 Sunday 5 2 13 30.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.75 65.75] 0.00 65.00 0.75 65.75 0.00 65.75 7/21/25
7/21/2025 Monday 11 5 29 39.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 32.75 166.75 95.00 71.00 0.75 166.75 0.00 166.75 7/22/25
7/22/2025 Tuesday 29 16 72 141.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 301.50 497.50 155.00 341.00 0.50 496.50 1.00 496.50 7/24/25
7/23/2025 Wednesday 6 1 55 36.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 40.50 76.50 18.00 58.00 0.50 76.50 0.00 76.50 7/30/25
7/24/2025 Thursday 10 4 60 39.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 95.00 134.00 0.00 125.00 9.00 134.00 0.00 134.00 7/29/25
7/25/2025  Friday 20 0 40| 105.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 77.50 182.50 0.00 182.00 0.50 182.50 0.00 182.50 7/30/25
7/26/2025 Saturday 20 10 14 140.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 41.00 236.00 55.00 181.00 0.00 236.00 0.00 236.00 7/28/25
7/27/2025 Sunday 22 5 23 139.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 105.75 244.75 0.00 241.00 3.75 244.75 0.00 24475 7/28/25
7/28/2025 Monday 2 3 20| 12.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 77.00 89.00] 17.00 71.00 1.29 89.29 -0.29 89.29 7/31/25
7/29/2025 Tuesday 6 7 14 36.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 36.75 72.75) 0.00 72.00 0.75 72.75 0.00 72.75 7/31/25
7/30/2025 Wednesday 4 3 11 24.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 57.50 0.00 55.00 2.50 57.50 0.00 57.50 8/4/25
7/31/2025 Thursday 9 5 27 50.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.50 57.50 0.00 57.00 0.50 57.50 0.00 57.50 8/6/25

Totals 344| 134 I 1002 1,922.00 I 605.00 I 885.00 I 775.00 I 2,272.00 6,459.00 | 1,803.00 I 4,545.00' 86.34 | 6,434.34 24.66 6,435.09 I




Lamberton Swimming Pool

Daily Deposit Tracking August 2025

8/1/2025  Friday 3 0 191 14.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32.00 46.00 0.00 45.00 1.00 46.00 0.00 46.00 8/4/25
8/2/2025  Saturday 8 0 2 48.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.50 79.50 15.00 63.00 1.50 79.50 0.00 79.50  8/4/25
8/3/2025  Sunday 0 0 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8/4/2025  Monday 9 0 15 54.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00 99.00 18.00 81.00 0.00 99.00 0.00 99.00 8/6/25
8/5/2025  Tuesday 7 9 54 31.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 196.00 282.00 67.00 208.00 0.50 275.50 6.50 275.50 8/6/25
8/6/2025  Wednesday 4 0 33 24.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 30.50 54.50 0.00 54.00 0.50 54.50 0.00 54.50  8/8/25
8/7/2025  Thursday 12 5 31 63.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 64.75 127.75 10.00 116.00 0.75 126.75 1.00 126.75 8/11/25
8/8/2025  Friday 28 7 35 164.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 76.50 295.50 63.50 232.00 0.00 295.50 0.00 296.00 8/12/25
8/9/2025  Saturday 8 0 12 48.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48.00 0.00 48.00 0.00 48.00 0.00 48.00 8/11/25
8/10/2025 Sunday 1 7 10 6.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 30.00 91.00 0.00 91.00 0.00 91.00 0.00 91.00 8/11/25
8/11/2025 Monday 9 3 45 48.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 56.50 104.50 12.00 89.00 3.50 104.50 0.00 104.50 8/12/25
8/12/2025 Tuesday 81 0 4 406.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 268.25 674.25 25.00 648.00 1.75 674.75 -0.50 674.75 8/13/25
8/13/2025 Wednesday 44 7 3 18.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33.50 51.50 0.00 51.00 0.50 51.50 0.00 51.50 8/13/25
8/14/2025 Thursday 3 3 11 18.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9.50 27.50 0.00 26.00 1.50 27.50 0.00 27.50 8/18/25
8/15/2025 Friday 5 7 28 26.00 55.00 0.00 0.00 58.50 139.50 55.00 84.00 0.50 139.50 0.00 139.50 8/18/25
8/16/2025 Saturday 7 9 17 42.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 31.50 73.50 0.00 73.00 0.50 73.50 0.00 73.50 8/18/25
8/17/2025 Sunday 0 0 9 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.50 2.50 0.00 2.00 0.50 2.50 0.00 2.50 8/18/25
8/18/2025 Monday 4 0 12 22.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11.50 33.50 0.00 33.00 0.00 33.00 0.50 33.00 8/19/25
8/19/2025 Tuesday 14 1 26 76.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24.75 100.75 0.00 93.00 7.25 100.25 0.50 100.25 8/21/25
8/20/2025 Wednesday 8 0 29 43.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 38.00 81.00 0.00 81.00 0.00 81.00 0.00, 81.00 8/25/25
8/21/2025 Thursday 15 9 73 78.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 68.50 146.50 12.00 136.00 0.50 148.50 -2.00 148.50 8/22/25
8/22/2025 Friday 7 5 27| 32.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 45.00 77.00 0.00 77.00 0.00 77.00 0.00 77.00 8/25/25
8/23/2025 Saturday 3 0 8 18.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 10.00 28.00 0.00 28.00 0.00 28.00 0.00 28.00 8/27/25
8/24/2025 Sunday 0 0 8 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 7.50 7.50 0.00 7.00 0.30 7.30 0.20 7.30 8/27/25

Totals 280| 72 I 511 1,279.00 I 220.00 I 0.00 I 0.00 I 1,171.75 2,670.75 | 277.50 I 2,366.00 I 21.05| 2,664.55 6.20 2,665.05 I
2025 Summary
928 347 2556 27 30 24




L

Fund 100 General Fund

Revenue

R 100-34720 Swimming Pool Fees

Transactions
Transactions
Transactions
Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

R 100-34725 Swimming Pool Lessons

Transactions
Transactions
Transactions
Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

2025 4 April
2025 5 May
2025 6 June
2025 7 July
2025 8 August

100-25300 Unreser Total

2025 4 April
2025 5 May
2025 6 June
2025 7 July
2025 8 August

100-25300 Unreser Total

R 100-34740 Concessions

Transactions
Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

Total

2025 6 June
2025 7 July
2025 8 August

100-25300 Unreser Total

Revenue

Fund 100

R 100-34720

CITY OF LAMBERTON

Revenue/Expenditure
Audit Monthly Summary

Audit 2025 January to 2025 August

Swimming Pool Fees

In Balance Total

R 100-34725

Swimming Pool

Lessons

In Balance Total

R 100-34740
Concessions

In Balance Total

09/03/25 9:09 AM

Budget Encumbered Total Balance
$16,000.00 $0.00 $15,745.00 $255.00
Begin Debit Credit Ending
$0.00 $240.00 ($240.00)
$0.00 $870.00 (%$1,110.00)
$0.00 $9,788.00 ($10,898.00)
$0.00 $3,336.00 ($14,234.00)
$0.00 $1,511.00 ($15,745.00)
$0.00 $15,745.00 ($15,745.00)
$15,745.00
$8,000.00 $0.00 $9,561.50 -$1,561.50
Begin Debit Credit Ending
$0.00 $5,430.00 ($5,430.00)
$0.00 $1,895.00 ($7,325.00)
$0.00 $1,210.00 ($8,535.00)
$0.00 $1,026.50 ($9,561.50)
$0.00 $0.00 ($9,561.50)
$0.00 $9,561.50 ($9,561.50)
$9,561.50
$4,800.00 $0.00 $6,423.00 -$1,623.00
Begin Debit Credit Ending
$0.00 $2,990.00 ($2,990.00)
$72.25 $2,256.00 ($5,173.75)
$0.00 $1,249.25 ($6,423.00)
$72.25 $6,495.25 ($6,423.00)
$6,423.00
$72.25 $31,801.75 ($31,729.50)
$72.25 $31,801.75 ($31,729.50)

Page 1

Difference
($240.00)
($870.00)

($9,788.00)

($3,336.00)

($1,511.00)

Difference
($5,430.00)
($1,895.00)
($1,210.00)
($1,026.50)
$0.00

Difference
($2,990.00)
($2,183.75)
($1,249.25)



L

CITY OF LAMBERTON

Revenue/Expenditure

Audit Monthly Summary

Audit 2025 January to 2025 August

Fund 100 General Fund

Expenditure Budget Encumbered Total Balance
E 100-45124-103 PT Wages $32,000.00 $0.00 $29,122.49 $2,877.51
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 5 May $494.00 $0.00 $494.00
Transactions 2025 6 June $5,147.05 $0.00 $5,641.05
Transactions 2025 7 July $12,417.39 $0.00 $18,058.44
Transactions 2025 8 August $11,064.05 $0.00 $29,122.49
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-103 $29,122.49 $0.00 $29,122.49
PT Wages
In Balance Total $29,122.49
E 100-45124-122 Employer FICA Contributions $2,100.00 $0.00 $1,805.61 $294.39
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 5 May $30.62 $0.00 $30.62
Transactions 2025 6 June $319.13 $0.00 $349.75
Transactions 2025 7 July $769.90 $0.00 $1,119.65
Transactions 2025 8 August $685.96 $0.00 $1,805.61
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-122 $1,805.61 $0.00 $1,805.61
Employer FICA
Contributions
In Balance Total $1,805.61
E 100-45124-126 Employer Medicare $500.00 $0.00 $422.28 $77.72
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 5 May $7.16 $0.00 $7.16
Transactions 2025 6 June $74.66 $0.00 $81.82
Transactions 2025 7 July $180.03 $0.00 $261.85
Transactions 2025 8 August $160.43 $0.00 $422.28
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-126 $422.28 $0.00 $422.28
Employer Medicare
In Balance Total $422.28
E 100-45124-151 Workers Comp Ins $1,800.00 $0.00 $1,060.50 $739.50
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 2 February $994.27 $0.00 $994.27
Transactions 2025 6 June $66.23 $0.00 $1,060.50
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-151 $1,060.50 $0.00 $1,060.50
Workers Comp Ins
In Balance Total $1,060.50
E 100-45124-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $6,500.00 $0.00 $6,641.88 -$141.88
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 1 January $82.87 $0.00 $82.87
Transactions 2025 2 February $107.86 $0.00 $190.73
Transactions 2025 3 March $261.24 $0.00 $451.97
Transactions 2025 4 April $300.71 $0.00 $752.68
Transactions 2025 5 May $1,431.40 $0.00 $2,184.08
Transactions 2025 6 June $4,538.60 $913.25 $5,809.43
Transactions 2025 7 July $1,523.83 $1,179.01 $6,154.25

09/03/25 9:15 AM
Page 1

Difference
$494.00
$5,147.05
$12,417.39
$11,064.05

Difference
$30.62
$319.13
$769.90
$685.96

Difference
$7.16
$74.66
$180.03
$160.43

Difference
$994.27
$66.23

Difference
$82.87
$107.86
$261.24
$300.71
$1,431.40
$3,625.35
$344.82



Transactions

Control Act

Transactions
Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

Transactions
Transactions
Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

Transactions
Transactions

Control Act

E 100-45124-381 Utilities

Transactions
Transactions

CITY OF LAMBERTON

09/03/25 9:15 AM

Page 2
Revenue/Expenditure
Audit Monthly Summary
Audit 2025 January to 2025 August
E 100-45124-210 Operating Supplies & Postage $6,500.00 $0.00 $6,641.88 -$141.88
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 8 August $806.52 $318.89 $6,641.88 $487.63
100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-210 $9,053.03 $2,411.15 $6,641.88
Operating Supplies &
Postage
In Balance Total $6,641.88
E 100-45124-221 Rep & Maint/Supplies $1,000.00 $0.00 $2,368.62 -$1,368.62
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 6 June $913.25 $0.00 $913.25 $913.25
2025 7 July $1,179.01 $0.00 $2,092.26 $1,179.01
2025 8 August $276.36 $0.00 $2,368.62 $276.36
100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-221 $2,368.62 $0.00 $2,368.62
Rep & Maint/Supplies
In Balance Total $2,368.62
E 100-45124-250 Merchandise for Resale $2,750.00 $0.00 $3,072.21 -$322.21
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 4 April $127.98 $127.98 $0.00 $0.00
2025 6 June $795.51 $0.00 $795.51 $795.51
2025 7 July $1,318.92 $0.00 $2,114.43 $1,318.92
2025 8 August $957.78 $0.00 $3,072.21 $957.78
100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-250 $3,200.19 $127.98 $3,072.21
Merchandise for
Resale
In Balance Total $3,072.21
E 100-45124-305 Other Contractual Services $300.00 $0.00 $341.53 -$41.53
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 5 May $61.53 $0.00 $61.53 $61.53
2025 7 July $280.00 $0.00 $341.53 $280.00
100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-305 $341.53 $0.00 $341.53
Other Contractual
Services
In Balance Total $341.53
E 100-45124-315 Travel Conference Schools Trng $3,000.00 $0.00 $1,950.00 $1,050.00
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 2 February $300.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00
2025 8 August $1,650.00 $0.00 $1,950.00 $1,650.00
100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-315 $1,950.00 $0.00 $1,950.00
Travel Conference
Schools Trng
In Balance Total $1,950.00
$22,000.00 $0.00 $5,244.11 $16,755.89
Begin Debit Credit Ending Difference
2025 1 January $213.01 $0.00 $213.01 $213.01
2025 2 February $215.14 $0.00 $428.15 $215.14
2025 3 March $215.02 $0.00 $643.17 $215.02

Transactions



CITY OF LAMBERTON

Revenue/Expenditure
Audit Monthly Summary

Audit 2025 January to 2025 August

09/03/25 9:15 AM

E 100-45124-381 Utilities $22,000.00 $0.00 $5,244.11 $16,755.89
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 4 April $214.06 $0.00 $857.23
Transactions 2025 5 May $214.46 $0.00 $1,071.69
Transactions 2025 6 June $420.91 $0.00 $1,492.60
Transactions 2025 7 July $1,989.62 $0.00 $3,482.22
Transactions 2025 8 August $1,761.89 $0.00 $5,244.11
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-381 $5,244.11 $0.00 $5,244.11
Utilities
In Balance Total $5,244.11
E 100-45124-445 Licenses & Taxes $2,500.00 $0.00 $1,583.35 $916.65
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 1 January $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Transactions 2025 2 February $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Transactions 2025 3 March $102.15 $0.00 $102.15
Transactions 2025 4 April $45.00 $0.00 $147.15
Transactions 2025 5 May $17.26 $0.00 $164.41
Transactions 2025 6 June $64.16 $0.00 $228.57
Transactions 2025 7 July $942.37 $0.00 $1,170.94
Transactions 2025 8 August $412.41 $0.00 $1,583.35
Control Act 100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-445 $1,583.35 $0.00 $1,583.35
Licenses & Taxes
In Balance Total $1,583.35
E 100-45124-510 Equip & Improvements $5,000.00 $0.00 $2,199.00 $2,801.00
Begin Debit Credit Ending
Transactions 2025 7 July $2,199.00 $0.00 $2,199.00
Control Act  100-25300 Unreser Total E 100-45124-510 $2,199.00 $0.00 $2,199.00
Equip &
Improvements
In Balance Total $2,199.00
Total Expenditure $58,350.71 $2,539.13 $55,811.58
Fund 100 $58,350.71 $2,539.13 $55,811.58

Page 3

Difference
$214.06
$214.46
$420.91

$1,989.62

$1,761.89

Difference
$0.00
$0.00

$102.15
$45.00
$17.26
$64.16
$942.37
$412.41

Difference
$2,199.00



~RER
F

60 Pine Street - Clements, Minnesota 56224-5000
(507) 692-2214 - FAX {507) 692-2211

August 2025

Dear Member,

We are writing to inform you of an important update regarding electricity rates within our cooperative. On
August 1, 2015, you became a member of Redwood Electric Cooperative as part of the acquisition of Alliant
Energy’s territory. As we reach the ten-year anniversary of the sale, Redwood Electric Cooperative will be
implementing the final stage of merging the rates, which was approved by the terms of the sale.

As part of our ongoing efforts to ensure fairness, efficiency, and operational consistency, we will be merging
the rate structure of the acquired territory with our legacy rates. This integration will take effect beginning with
the October 2025 bill.

What This Means:

e General demand rate of $50/month and $.09/kwh and $9/kW demand will transition to the city single
phase general service rate of $30/month and $.122/kwh and no demand charge

e Location "p- 20 - O3 /_?,,297427///@ pfﬁﬁ‘@

The harmonized rate helps streamline operations, ensures equitable treatment of all members, and strengthens
our ability to invest in reliability and future improvements.

If you have any questions or would like to discuss how this change might impact your household or business,
please don’t hesitate to contact us at 888-251-5100 between 7 AM and 3:30 PM.

Thank you for your continued trust in Redwood Electric Cooperative. We are proud to serve you and grateful
to be growing together as one unified community.

Redwood Electric Cooperative

Thi's will be the Same -
Hehar
Arub / Pelice



	9-8-2025 - Agenda Page
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA/CEREMONIAL DUTIES
	2. CONSENT AGENDA
	3. GENERAL BUSINESS
	4. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
	5. NEXT MEETING DATES

	8-11-2025 - CC Minutes
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA/CEREMONIAL DUTIES
	2. CONSENT AGENDA
	3. GENERAL BUSINESS
	4. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
	5. NEXT MEETING DATES

	12-4-2024 - EDA Minutes
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA
	3. OLD BUSINESS – Updates
	A. Day Care – Halter is waiting to hear on the grant funding.
	B. Assisted Living – No Update
	C. Old School Campus – Halter explained there is a group looking at taking over the old school site.  The group met with the building committee of RRC.  Discussion was held.
	D. Southside Addition Lots – No Update
	E. Housing / Twin Home Development – Halter attended an open house in Tracy for the UCAP homes they have built.  Discussion was held.
	F. Business Inquiries - No Update
	4. NEW BUSINESS
	A. CD Coming Due – Discussion held.
	Motion/Second/Pass (Bittner/Mattison/unanimous 4/0) to leave the CD with First Security Bank and reinvest in a 7 month CD.
	5. EDA BOARD REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
	Board terms were discussed.  Will look into it further with the by-laws.

	Bollig - 25-09-08_Agenda_Council Meeting
	Lamberton_LSLR_01-Award Letters-signed
	Hubert - All
	Before pics
	Hubert 2 - Weeds

	2025-03 Meadowland Coop - Lumber Yard Location 9-8-2025
	Tank Storage Links
	Small Cell Info - ALL
	Rev 0_MN08 Lamberton HS SC_08-15-2025
	G-001
	C-101
	T-201
	T-501
	T-502
	T-701
	T-702
	E-101
	E-501
	D-101
	S-501

	SA_v2_MN08+Lamberton+HS+SC_08-25-25
	small cells are found in Chapter 237

	RCA - Stavnesss Container Quotes
	RCA - 2026 Preliminary Budget
	Revenue Preliminary Budget 2026
	Table 1

	Expenditures Preliminary Budget 2026.
	Table 1

	2026 Required Library Aid - Lamberton
	RCA - Work Session
	Library - August Council Report 2025
	Ambulance Repair
	City Clerk Report
	Full Financial Report
	Financial Report 9-2025
	_Check Detail Register©¢
	e_Check Detail Register©¢
	pyr_Paid Register_Redacted

	2025 Pool Summary as of Sept 3
	2025 Season Summary
	Aug 2025
	June 2025
	July 2025

	2025 Revenue
	2025 Expenses

	REC Rate Change
	9-8-2025 - Agenda Page.pdf
	1. CALL TO ORDER/ADOPT AGENDA/CEREMONIAL DUTIES
	2. CONSENT AGENDA
	3. GENERAL BUSINESS
	4. MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS
	5. NEXT MEETING DATES




